
EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING
West Covina, CA

Friday, October 23, 2015



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SPECIAL EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING 
8:00 AM, October 23, 2015 
Foothill Transit Administrative Office 
2nd Floor Board Room 
100 South Vincent Avenue 
West Covina, CA 91790 

Public Comment: Members of the public shall have the right to address the Board on any item of interest which is 
within the jurisdiction of the Board before or during the Board’s consideration of the item.  Presentation shall not 
exceed three minutes in length.  Action may be taken on any item identified on the agenda.  Persons wishing to 
comment should submit a “Request to Speak” form to the Secretary.  Note: ACTION MAY BE TAKEN ON ANY ITEM 
IDENTIFIED ON THE AGENDA. 
 
The public may view and obtain all written information supporting this agenda provided to the board both initially 
and supplementary prior to the meeting by calling (626) 931-7300 extension 7204 or at the agency’s offices located 
at 100 S. Vincent Ave., Suite 200, West Covina, CA 91790. Documents, including PowerPoint handouts, distributed 
to Board Members by staff or Board Members at the meeting will simultaneously be made available to the public 
upon request. 

 
 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER  
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

3. ROLL CALL:  MEMBERS CALAYCAY, DE LA TORRE, DELACH, HERRERA, 
STERNQUIST  

 

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FOR THE REGULAR MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 25, 
2015 
 

5. PRESENTATIONS: 
 

5.1. Contractors’ Employee Recognition 
 

6. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR: Items 7 through 11 are consent items which may be received 
and filed and/or approved by the board in a single motion. If any member of the 
Executive Board wishes to discuss a consent item, please request that the item be 
pulled for further discussion and potential action.  
 

Revised 



 
 
 
 
 
 
8:00 AM, October 23, 2015 
2nd Floor Board Room, 100 South Vincent Avenue, West Covina, CA 91790 
Page 2 

 
7. FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INVESTMENT 

SUMMARY  
 
Recommended Action: Receive and file the Financial Statements and Investment Summary year-
to-date report through September 30, 2015. The attached Financial Statements and Investment 
Report summarize Foothill Transit’s unaudited operations and financial condition as of September 
30, 2015 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2016. 
 

8. OCTOBER 2015 LEGISLATIVE SUMMARY  
 
Recommended Action: Receive and file the October 2015 Legislative Summary. There are no 
recommended positions on bills this month. 
 
 

 
In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, if you require a disability-related modification or 
accommodation to attend or participate in this meeting, including auxiliary aids or services, please contact the 
Executive Director’s office at (626) 931-7300 extension 7204, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
If you require translation services, please contact the Executive Director’s office at (626) 931-7300 extension 7204, 
at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
Si necesita servicios de traducción, por favor póngase en contacto con la oficina del Director Ejecutivo en el (626) 
931-7300, extensión 7204, al menos 48 horas antes de la reunión. 

 
如果需要翻译服务，请至少于会议前48小时致电高级主任办公室:（626）931-7300 分机 7204。 
 
Nếu Quý vị có yêu cầu dịch vụ dịch thuật, xin vui lòng liên hệ với văn phòng Giám đốc Điều hành tại (626) 931-7300 số lẻ 7204, ít 
nhất 48 giờ trước khi cuộc họp. 

 
Kung nangangailangan ka ng mga serbisyo sa pagsasalin, pakisuyong makipag-ugnayan sa opisina ng Executive Director sa (626) 
931-7300 extension 7204, ng hindi bababa sa 48 oras bago ang pulong. 
 
번역 서비스가 필요하시면 미팅 최소 48시간 이전에  임원 사무실로  (626-931-7300, 내선 번호  7204) 전화주시기 바랍니다. 

 
翻訳サービスが必要な方は、会議の48時間前までに(626) 931-7300 内線 7204のエグゼクティブディレクター事務所にご連絡くだ

さい。 

 
Եթե Ձեզ թարգմանչական ծառայությունների են հարկավոր, հանդիպումից առնվազն 48 ժամ առաջ խնդրում ենք զանգահարել 
Գործադիր տնօրենի գրասենյակ՝ (626) 931-7300 լրացուցիչ՝ 7204 հեռախոսահամարով:  
 
្របសិនរបនេ�កអ�នបអ បបសុនបស�កមរ�ក្ររប បូក��់ទងក��រ ��ល័យ�យ�្របសរបត ស �កនលខទូរប័ព�៖  (626) 931-7300 
នលខរ�� �ិ រ តិ  7204 កដល�ិរយៈនពល�៉ងបសច 48 ន�៉ង កសិនពល�សច�្របសុ”។ 

 

 
หากคณุต้องการบริการการแปลภาษากรุณาติดต่อสาํนกังานผู้อํานวยการบริหารท่ี (626) 931-7300 ต่อ 7204, อย่างน้อย 48 ชัว่โมงก่อนท่ีจะมีการประชมุ 

 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
8:00 AM, October 23, 2015 
2nd Floor Board Room, 100 South Vincent Avenue, West Covina, CA 91790 
Page 3 

 
9. RESOLUTION ADOPTING EXECUTIVE AND GOVERNING BOARD MEETING 

SCHEDULE FOR 2016 
 
Recommended Action: Adopt Resolution 2015-07 Executive and Governing Board Meeting 
Schedule for 2016. 
 

10. PROPOSED PROCUREMENT POLICIES AND PROCEDURES MANUAL REVISIONS 
 
Recommended Action: Approve and adopt the proposed Procurement Policies and Procedures 
Manual Revisions. 
 

11. REQUEST TO ISSUE INVITATION FOR BIDS (IFB) NO. 16-023 – ARCADIA VAULT 
CANOPY  
 
Recommended Action: Authorize the Executive Director to Issue IFB No. 16-023 for construction 
activities related to the Arcadia Vault Canopy Installation project. 
 

REGULAR AGENDA: 
 

12. CONTRACT AWARD – ART COMPONENT AT THE AZUSA INTERMODAL 
TRANSPORTATION CENTER  
 
Recommended Action: Authorize the Executive Director to execute a contract with Artist Jose 
Antonio Aguirre for an estimated contract amount of $170,000 to include fabrication and 
installation of an art element for the Azusa Intermodal Transportation Center. 
 

13. FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL AUDIT 
REPORT RESULTS  
 
This item has been rescheduled and will be presented at the December 11, 2015 
Executive Board Meeting. 
 

14. CALIFORNIA TRANSIT ASSOCIATION’S 50th ANNUAL FALL CONFERENCE & 
EXPO UPDATE, NOVEMBER 18-20, PASADENA  
 
Recommended Action: Receive and file the California Transit Association’s 50th Annual Fall 
Conference & EXPO Update. 
 

  



 
 
 
 
 
 
8:00 AM, October 23, 2015 
2nd Floor Board Room, 100 South Vincent Avenue, West Covina, CA 91790 
Page 4 

 
15. WEST COVINA BUS STOP ENHANCEMENT PROJECT 

 
Recommended Action:  Authorize the Executive Director to develop designs for transit stop 
shelters adjacent to Foothill Transit’s Administrative office and execute an agreement with the 
City of West Covina in an amount not to exceed $200,000 to construct, own and maintain these 
shelters. 
 

16. FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016 FIRST QUARTER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
REPORT  
 
Recommended Action: Receive and file the FY 2015-2016 First Quarter Performance Indicators 
Report. 
 

17. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR COMMENT 
 

18. BOARD MEMBER COMMENT 
 

19.  CLOSED SESSION: CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS 
(Government Code § 54956.8)  
 
Property Address/Location: 1162 N. Citrus Avenue, Covina, CA 91722 
Agency Negotiator(s): Doran J. Barnes, Sharlane Bailey, Darold D. Pieper, Kevin 
McDonald 
Negotiating Parties: Charles McKeag, MLC Holdings, Inc.,  
Under Negotiation: Price and Terms 
 

20. CLOSED SESSION REPORT 
 

21. ADJOURNMENT 

 

The Executive Board Meeting  

Scheduled for October 30, 2015 is cancelled. 

 

The next Regular Meeting of the Foothill Transit 

Executive Board is scheduled for 

Friday, December 11, 2015 at 8:00 a.m. 



 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
 The meeting was called to order by Chair Herrera at 8:03 a.m. 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Chair Herrera. 
 
3. ROLL CALL 
 
 Roll call was taken by Christina Lopez, Board Secretary. 
 
 Present:  Member Corey Calaycay, Member Peggy Delach, Member  
   Michael De La Torre, Vice Chair Becky Shevlin, Chair Carol  
   Herrera 
  
 Chair Herrera welcomed Governing Member Corey Warshaw and Governing 
 Member Gary Boyer. 
 
4. REVIEW & APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 
 
 Approval of the minutes for the Regular Meeting of August 28, 2015. 
 
 Motion by Member Delach, second by Vice Chair Shevlin, the minutes for the 
 Regular Meeting of the Executive Board of August 28, 2015 were approved. 
 Motion carried 4-0, Member Calaycay abstention. 
 
5. PRESENTATIONS 
 
 5.1 Contractors’ Employee Recognition 
 
  Jim Marshall, General Manager, First Transit, introduced and  
  recognized the following Pomona location First Transit operator of the 

STATEMENT OF PROCEEDINGS FOR THE 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

FOOTHILL TRANSIT EXECUTIVE BOARD 
 

FOOTHILL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE 
2ND FLOOR BOARD ROOM 
100 S. VINCENT AVENUE 

WEST COVINA, CALIFORNIA 91790 
 

Friday, September 25, 2015 
8:00 a.m. 



     Statement of Proceedings   September 25. 2015 
 
 

Page 2 of 7 

  month: 
 
  Eugene Calloway, Operator of the Month (September 2015) 
   
  Bill Jackson, General Manager, Transdev, introduced and recognized 
  the following Arcadia location Transdev operator and employee of 
  the month: 
 
  Raul Cano Flores, Operator of the Month (September 2015) 
  Tim Reed, Employee of the Month (September 2015) 
 
  After discussion, by Common Consent, and there being no objection, 
  the Board recognized the operator and employee of the month. 
 
 5.2 New & Promoted Employee Introduction 
 
  Doran Barnes, Executive Director, Foothill Transit, recognized the  
  following Foothill Transit newly hired and promoted employees: 
 
  New Hire: 
  Joshua Smalley, Creative Content Designer 
 
  Promoted: 
  Lany Hernandez, Accountant 
   
6. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 Mike Murray, Chief Operating Officer, Transdev, addressed the Foothill 
 Transit Executive Board. 
 
 Juan Antonio Lopez, Regional Vice President, First Transit, addressed the 
 Foothill Transit Executive Board. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
7.  FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INVESTMENT 

 SUMMARY 
  
 Recommendation: Receive and file the Financial Statements and Investment 
 Summary year-to-date report through August, 31, 2015. The attached 
 Financial Statements and Investment Report summarize Foothill Transit’s 
 unaudited operations and financial condition as of August 31, 2015 for the 
 fiscal year ending June 30, 2016. 



     Statement of Proceedings   September 25. 2015 
 
 

Page 3 of 7 

 
 Motion by Member Delach, second by Member De La Torre, to receive and 
 file. Motion carried 5-0. 

 
8.  AUGUST 2015 PERFORMANCE INDICATORS REPORT 

 
 Recommendation: Receive and file the August 2015 Performance Indicators 
 Report. 
 
 Motion by Member Delach, second by Member De La Torre, to receive and 
 file. Motion carried 5-0. 

 
9.  SEPTEMBER 2015 LEGISLATIVE SUMMARY 

 
 Recommendation: Receive and file the September 2015 Legislative 
 Summary. There are no recommended positions on bills this month. 
 
 Motion by Member Delach, second by Member De La Torre, to receive and 
 file. Motion carried 5-0. 

 
10.  CONTRACT AWARD – NETWORK EQUIPMENT SUPPORT RENEWAL 

 
 Recommendation: Authorize the Executive Director to enter into a three-
 year contract renewal with Trace3 in the amount of one hundred sixteen 
 thousand two hundred seventy five dollars and sixty one cents ($116,275.61) 
 for Network Equipment Support. 
 
 Motion by Member Delach, second by Member De La Torre, to approve. 
 Motion carried 5-0. 

 
11.  AZUSA INTERMODAL TRANSPORTATION CENTER MEMORANDUM OF 

 UNDERSTANDING (MOU) – AMENDMENT NO. 5 
 
 Recommendation: Authorize the Executive Director to execute Amendment 
 No. 5 to the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the City of Azusa 
 related to the construction of the Azusa Intermodal Transportation Center. 
 
 Motion by Member Delach, second by Member De La Torre, to approve. 
 Motion carried 5-0. 

 
12.  LOW CARBON FUEL STANDARDS PROGRAM 

 
 Recommendation: Action: Receive and file an update on the Low Carbon 



     Statement of Proceedings   September 25. 2015 
 
 

Page 4 of 7 

 Fuel Standards (LCFS) program. 
 
 Motion by Member Delach, second by Member De La Torre, to receive and 
 file. Motion carried 5-0. 
 

REGULAR AGENDA 
 

13.  FOOTHILL TRANSIT CLASS PASS UPDATE 
 
 Recommendation: Receive and file the Foothill Transit Class Pass Update. 
 
 Katie Gagnon, Special Projects Manager, presented this item. 
 
 Chair Herrera stated that the Class Pass Program has been an outstanding 
 success story. Member Delach is pleased with the progress made with Cal 
 Poly Pomona. In response to comments made by the Board, Doran Barnes, 
 Executive Director stated that staff will continue to work with all its partners 
 to make the program a success. 
 
 Motion by Member Delach, second by Member Calaycay, to receive and file. 
 Motion carried 5-0. 
  

14.  RECENT RIDERSHIP TRENDS 
 
 Recommendation: Receive and file a report on recent ridership trends. 
 
 Joe Raquel, Director of Planning, presented this item. 
 
 Member Delach commented that she commends staff for trying to get 
 people to ride the bus.  
 
 Motion by Vice Chair Shevlin, second by Member Calaycay, to receive and 
 file. Motion carried 5-0. 
  

15.  PROPOSED SERVICE ENHANCEMENTS 
 
 Revised Recommendation: Recommend that the Governing Board approve 
 the proposed service enhancements recommended for implementation in 
 January 2016. Recommend that the Governing board authorize 
 implementation of Pilot Line 496 service between the Azusa Intermodal 
 Transportation Facility and Downtown Los Angeles. Receive and file an 
 update on preliminary public outreach related to other possible service 
 enhancements proposed for implementation in June 2016. 



     Statement of Proceedings   September 25. 2015 
 
 

Page 5 of 7 

 
 Joe Raquel, Director of Planning, presented this item. 
 
 Motion by Vice Chair Shevlin, second by Member Corey Calaycay, to 
 approve. Motion carried 5-0. 
  

16.  CONTRACT AMENDMENT – SMARTBUS TECHNICAL ADVISORY SERVICES 
 
 Recommendation: Authorize the Executive Director to execute Amendment 
 No. 2 to Agreement No. 14-030 with IBI Group in the amount of $645,316 for 
 SMARTBus Technical Advisory Services for additional technical assistance to 
 accomplish the replacement of the analog radio with VoIP technology and 
 assistance with the implementation of Foothill Transit’s SMARTBus System 
 Replacement Project. 
 
 LaShawn King Gillespie, Director of Customer Service & Operations, 
 presented this item. 
 
 Motion by Vice Chair Shevlin, second by Member Calaycay, to approve. 
 Motion carried 5-0. 
 

17.  CONTRACT AWARD – ARCADIA FACILITY IMPROVEMENTS 
 
 Recommendation: Authorize the Executive Director to enter into Agreement 
 No. 16-005 with Kanaan Construction Inc. in the amount of $381,300 for 
 construction activities related to the interior and exterior improvements at 
 the Arcadia Operations & Maintenance Facility. 
 
 Vincent Sauceda, Construction Project Manager, presented this item. 
 
 Motion by Member Delach, second by Member Calaycay, to approve. Motion 
 carried 5-0. 
 

18.  REQUEST TO ISSUE RFP – TRANSIT SERVICES – ARCADIA FACILITY (RFP 
 NO. 16-021) 
 
 Recommendation: 1. Amend Agreement No. 14-028 with Transdev Services, 
 Inc., to change the expiration date for the base contract term from June 30, 
 2018 to July 2, 2016; and 2. Issue a request for proposals (RFP No. 16-021) 
 for transit operations and maintenance services at Foothill Transit’s Arcadia 
 Facility. 
 
 Kevin McDonald, Deputy Executive Director, presented this item. 



     Statement of Proceedings   September 25. 2015 
 
 

Page 6 of 7 

 
 Motion by Vice Chair Shevlin, second by Member Delach, to approve. Motion 
 carried 5-0. 
 

19.  TRANSIT STORE QUARTERLY REPORT 
 
 Recommendation: Receive and file the Transit Store Quarterly Report. 
 
 LaShawn King Gillespie, Director of Customer Service & Operations, 
 presented this item. 
 
 Motion by Member Delach, second by Member De La Torre, to receive and 
 file. Motion carried 5-0. 

 
20. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR COMMENT  

 
 Comments by Mr. Doran J. Barnes, Executive Director, Foothill Transit. 
  
 Mr. Barnes reported the following: 
 

• Mr. Barnes thanked the Executive Board for their leadership during the 
 September 18, 2015 Special Governing Meeting. 
 
• A Governing Board is scheduled for October 16, 2015. 
 
• Mr. Barnes extended congratulations to Chair Herrera who has moved 
 to the Vice Chair position on the APTA Transit Board Members
 Committee. 
 

21.  BOARD MEMBER COMMENT  
  

Comments by Members of the Foothill Transit Executive Board. 
 
• The Board thanked staff for putting together the cluster break-out 
 sessions at the September 18th Special Governing Board Meeting. The 
 sessions were well received. 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
 
22.  CLOSED SESSION: CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS 

 (Government Code § 54956.8)  
 Property Address/Location: 1162 N. Citrus Avenue, Covina, CA 91722 
 Agency Negotiator(s): Doran J. Barnes, Sharlane Bailey, Darold D. Pieper, 



     Statement of Proceedings   September 25. 2015 
 
 

Page 7 of 7 

 Kevin McDonald 
 Negotiating Parties: Charles McKeag, MLC Holdings, Inc.,  
 Under Negotiation: Price and Terms 
 
 General Counsel Pieper announced that Member Delach recused herself from 
 Closed Session Item 22. 
 

23.  CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION  
 (Gov’t Code § 54956.9(d)(2)): 
 Claim Received from: Transdev  
 

24. CLOSED SESSION REPORT 
 
 Darold Pieper, General Counsel, reported that no reportable actions were 
 taken on Closed Session items 22 and 23. 

 
25.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
 Adjournment for the September 25, 2015 Foothill Transit Executive Board 
 Meeting. 
 
 There being no further business, the Foothill Transit Executive Board 
 meeting adjourned at 9:44 a.m. 



 

Agenda Item No. 7 

October 23, 2015 
 
 
To: Executive Board 
 
Subject: Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Financial Statements and Investment 

Summary  
 
 
Recommendation 

Receive and file the Financial Statements and Investment Summary year-to-
date report through September 30, 2015.  

The attached Financial Statements and Investment Report summarize Foothill 
Transit’s unaudited operations and financial condition as of September 30, 
2015 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2016. 

Balance Sheet Analysis (Attachment A):  

Assets  

The balance sheet, as of September 30, 2015 shows total assets at $314 
million. This total consists primarily of $199 million in fixed assets, $97 million 
in cash and investments and $18 million in receivable and prepaid assets. 
Foothill Transit’s cash position of $79.8 million is $2.8 million more than the 
previous month, and is $8.3 million more than last year in September.   

Liabilities 

The accounts payable balance is $8.3 million. Accounts Payables include 
operating and maintenance for $4.5 million and $1.3 million for fuel. 

The deferred revenue of $77 million represents capital grants and funds that 
are reserved for planned capital expenditures.  

Investments (Attachment B) 

Our current investments are held in financial instruments pursuant to Foothill 
Transit’s investment policy. Funds held with Bank of the West in non-interest 
earning accounts qualify for FDIC insurance, eliminating the risk of loss.  

The cash and investments balance includes $22.3 million in non-interest 
bearing accounts held with Bank of the West; $31.4 million in interest bearing 
money market accounts with Bank of the West; $11 million with Chase; $14.0 
million with Bank of the West Agency notes; $3.0 million with Wells Fargo 
certificates of deposit; $500,000 with Bank of the West certificates of 
deposit; and $15 million invested in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). 



Special Executive Board Meeting – 10/23/15 
FY 2015-2016 Financial Statements and Investment Summary 

Page 2 
 

 Agenda Item No. 7 

 
The current interest rates on all accounts are included on Attachment B. The 
LAIF investment, money market accounts, and the deposits with Chase earn 
interest but are immediately available as cash should they be required.  The 
investments are held for six months to five years and are planned for future 
capital and operating funding requirements.  

Operating and Capital Revenues and Expense Analysis (Attachment C) 

September 2015 year-to-date fare revenues were $4,444,356 which is 
$275,644 (5.8%) less than the year-to-date budgeted amount and $399,549 
less than September 2014.  Through, September 2015, ridership is six percent 
lower than targeted and 6.7 percent lower than last year at this time.   

Year-to-date operating costs through September 2015 were $18,496,039 
which is $1,129,454 less than the budget and $1,136,317 more than September 
2014.  Of this $18,496,039, the year-to-date operating costs for the Arcadia 
and Pomona operating contractors total $14,283,607.  The other primary 
operating expense is fuel which was $1,302,436 through September 2015. 

Capital expenditures through September were $2,032,316, compared with 
$8,069,980 last year at this time. The annual budget for capital expenditures 
includes the purchase of 30 CNG buses and completion of the Azusa 
Intermodal Transportation Center.  

Farebox Recovery Ratio 

The farebox recovery ratio through September was 24 percent; nearly at the 
performance target of 24.1 percent. The farebox recovery ratio is derived by 
dividing the total fare revenue of $4,444,356 by the total bus operating 
expense of $18,496,039. This ratio is less than the September 2014 ratio of 
27.9 percent. 

Total Disbursements (Attachment D) 

Total disbursements reflect invoices paid for the month of September 2015; 
they do not reflect the total expense incurred for the month.  If an expense 
has been incurred but has not yet been invoiced or paid, Finance accrues the 
expense to properly track the expenses during the month in which they 
actually occurred. Total disbursements for September 2015 were $6,684,972.  

 



Foothill Transit 

Special Executive Board Meeting - 10/23/15 
FY 2015-2016 Financial Statements and Investment Summary 

Page 3 

Capital disbursements totaled $1,999,452, fuel was $16,371 and other 
significant disbursements include $1.8 million to First Transit and $ 2.3 million 
to Transdev for bus operating services. 

Sincerely, 

Michelle Lopes Caldwel l 
Director of Finance and Treasurer Executive Director 

Attachments 

Agenda Item No. 7 



Special Executive Board Meeting – 10/23/15 
FY 2015-2016 Financial Statements and Investment Summary 

Page 4 
 

 Agenda Item No. 7 

  

Foothill Transit 

Assets 
Current Assets: 

Cash 
Investments 

Foothill Transit 
Balance Sheet 

As of September 30, 20 '15 

Due from government agencies 
Other mceivables 
Other assets 

Total Curr,ent Assets 

Property & Equipment (net of depreciation) 

Total Assets 

Liab ilities and Equity 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilrties 

Deferred Revenue 
Total liabilities 

Equity 
Fund Balance: 

Investment in Capital Assets 
Current Year Change 
Reserve 

Total Equity 

Total Liabilities and Equity 

Executive Board Meeting 

A.ttachment A 

79>,844, 760 
17,239,000 
12,327 ,'983 
5,217,735 

496,184 
115,125,662 

199>,053,639 

3'14, 179.,30'1 

8,315,453 

77,189,346.51 
85,504,799 

199>,053,639 
(3,862,479) 
33,483,342 

228,674,502 

31 4,179,301 



Special Executive Board Meeting – 10/23/15 
FY 2015-2016 Financial Statements and Investment Summary 

Page 5 
 

 Agenda Item No. 7 

  



Special Executive Board Meeting – 10/23/15 
FY 2015-2016 Financial Statements and Investment Summary 

Page 6 
 

 Agenda Item No. 7 
  

Foothill Transit 

I Operating Revenue 
1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
G 

Farebox 
Pass Sales 
TAP Cash Purse 
t.letrolink & Access Service 
EZ Transit Pass 
T 01.31 Oper.l1Jng Revenue 

Non-Operating Re""'nue 

7 T ranspona:ion Development Act 

8 STA 
9 Prop A 4~ Discretionary 
10 Prop A~ BSCP 
11 Prop C BSIP 
12 Prop C Base Res1ructuring 
13 Prop C TransR Service Expansion 
14 TranSit Securily-Opef"ating 
15 t.leasure R Operating 
1G Ct.1AQ Opera:ing 
17 Gain on Saleot FIXed Assets 
18 Auxih.lil)' Revenue 
19 anng e-.renue 

20 Total Revenue 

21 
22 Total Revenue and Capital Funding 

ses 
23 Opera'lions 
24 M-3in:enance & Vehicle Technology 
25 Marke:ing and Communications 
2G lnfonna:ion Technology 
21 Adrnnstration 
28 Procurement 
29 Fnance 
30 Ranning 
31 F aeilitles 
32 T obi Opemng Expenses 

I Other Expenses 

33 Propeny Ma~ 
34 Dial-A-Ride 
35 Soeaal Services 
3G T obi OUler Expense5 

37 Total Operatng and ()-..he- Expenses 

I Capital Expen<frtures 
38 ~:.al Expenditures 

39 Total Expense5 and Capital Expenditures 

Executive Board Meeting 

Foothill Transit 
Statement of Revenue and Expense 
For Month Ended S~tembl!r 30, 2015 

Actual YTD 
S.epl:e-mber-15 

$2.405.310 
SP40.214 
S742,698 
$ 150.362 
S-205,771 

54.444.356 

$4,981.787 
$844,401 

S3,571,191 
$1,121.330 

$224,400 
$481,988 

$80.319 
$209,046 

$2,443,923 

$3,044 
S398.987 

$14.361.016 

$18.805.372 

S2.032,316 
$20,837,688 

$16,255,817 
$151,QQ2 
S361.200 
S353.500 
$561,240 
$137,454 
$243.478 
5-204.838 
$225.430 

$18,496.039 

St05,336 
Sl69.843 
$34, 154 

$309,333 

$18,805,372 

$2,032.316 

$20,837.688 

BudgetYTD 
September -15 

$2.457,500 
I , 100,000 

750,000 
162.500 
250,000 

S4.no.ooo 

4 ,Q81,787 
844.402 

3.571.191 
1,121.330 

224.401 
481,988 
80.320 

209,046 
2.443.923 

0 
0 

406.250 
14,364,635 

$19.084.635 

$14.250.641 
$33,335,276 

$16.60 1.673 
192.518 
477,723 
567. 115 
795,988 
208.3.50 
280,025 
281.438 
220,665 

$19.625.493 

$'37.500 
187,500 
81.250 

$406.250 

$20.031.743 

$13.303.533 

$33,335.276 

Abchment C 

Variance 

(11.56%) 
(14.~) 

(O.Qo7'%) 
(7.47%) 

(17.69%) 
(5.84%) 

O.OO'!i> 
O.OO'!i> 
O.OO'!i> 
O.OO'!i> 
0.(1()% 
O.OO'!i> 
0.(1()% 
O.OO'!i> 
0.(1()% 

O.OO'!i> 
-1.-ro% 

(0_1)3"*>) 

( 1.48'%) 

2.08% 
21.05% 
24.37% 
37.67% 
29.49% 
34.03% 
13.05% 
27.22% 
2.61%) 
5.76% 

23.39% 
9.42% 

57.96% 
57.38% 

6.12% 

84.72% 

37.49% 



Special Executive Board Meeting – 10/23/15 
FY 2015-2016 Financial Statements and Investment Summary 

Page 7 
 

 Agenda Item No. 7 

  

Foothill Transit 

Bank Account · Check O.etails 

Pet10d: G9ill1115 .. 1l~1~ 

Fo3:11111 Tr.rn61t 

ltlls repoA also InclUde& bJnk acc:ounls :1\31 onl)' rove D~n.ce&.. 
c ank ACcotrt No~ 5 0<11, 0<>.~ Flta: 119ltl1115 .• C9130/1 5 

Chect 
Date Chock No. Vend01 N~me 

80(}1 Genenl Cha<:lllng 

D!l/11211~ 

09.'D2115 

D9.'D2t1~ 

D9.'D2115 

09.'D211S 

09.'112115 

D!I.'D211S 

O~ID2115 

D!I.'D211~ 

09.'1l2t1~ 

09/D2115 

09.'112115 

09.'D2115 

09.'D2115 

09.'D2115 

09.'D2115 

09.1!12115 

09/D2115 

O~.'D2115 

D9.'D2115 

091112115 

09.'112115 

Pl1011e NO. W~86--22~S 

21731 Aragon Coostrudloo Inc. 

21732 Barl:can:t Celter.aanJI !J( Ill~ West 

21733 Ca.rol A. Hem ora 

21735 Clty or Arusa 

21736 F-11 ProclU~on 

21737 Gavemmflll f hance Olncer5 JosJc. 

21738 Heaay Satya 

21739 151 Grol.fl 

21741l 1nstan.1 srgns Inc. 

21741 JOlin Jo~ll UJtz 

21743 ~e~roUnk 

21744 omntran& 

21745 RNUln:etplan 

21746 Sa!Wta A&llley t.alhn.e 

21747 Sl<lte CO!npensa:Jon ln&tsa®e FUniS 

21748 s~even LeollilrG Gilo!!Oara 

21749 The Gas Co. 

21750 The Pel)' Po5t 

21751 Trons~ lnlonna:lon Products 

21752 Vi.M. KICCman consttuc::Jon Corp. 

21753 zones Inc. 

EOD143 Fll'51 Trans.'l lne. 

Daacllptlon 

GEfle>.illlaDJ:Iy • wos tor Rose 
a a .. t 

A:lmlniStra!IW B~ang 
l.6'10scape & Entry :>rojeet 

8115 O"eCIH:arG U&age5 

RellrtlunsaDJe Expenses - Al'TA 
con:e~enoe 

EIIUcall0031 iiWS:allce <riO 
r~ment 

BtJS Char9)ng staaon - Ele¢trlc 
Uthtty FeE 

813~ F~ Dr11 Tralnlng 

Memller5tMp - F. Kuo 

EIIUcalloo~ ass:Sla:lce ~~ 
r~ment 

CAOJAVL Reptacemem 
ConSIJIUng 

PGS~emoara am.-oot ror Boanl 
Room 
EIIUcallooaJ assi:S".amce ~~ 
re'm!llnement 

E<Jucallon~ assr~ance <r1a 
re!7r111Ur&ement 
U15t.letrolllkp~ 

OllYlltlans passes 

o~c.:11 Ar:' - Arcaala 
Jmpnr.-ernent 
Ellucallooall ass:Qallce <r1d 
rE!lniU"sement 

9115 wootm ecmp 11stsance 
P~Ernlum 

Educallmall ~lance and 
re!lii.IMiEment 
6J 15 Adman Bldg Gas 

A~o'E!rtlslf19 

EBool lor 7-12-1 5 

AZU$a PaGI & Me Ccn&tniCtlcn 

Cisco ou:ooor ratea swr.Cil 

7/25 Pomona R:l&€ a aA1 Specia l 
semce 

09.'!1211~ E0014.< lntemiir.IOnal Cll"Y Mil'lag>ement A660C. Pa)"lt)ll enelng &29115 rel!lm.em 

09.1D211S 

D911Cii1~ 

09.'10115 

09110115 

09110115 

0911GI15 

09.'10115 

09110115 

0911011 5 

R~:remern co run~ 

E0014S Tronsde•t Ser.!ces. Inc. 

21754 ACC BU61nes& 

21755 Acceu SeMo~ 

21756 AOvaneea ACceu Sy$":ems Inc. 

21757 Afl.AC 

217f8 Allied Allm!nlstra:orr.::rt Delta DEntal 

217&9 Aplft> 

217ED AT anciT • 5ll25 

21761 AT antiT - 5!)25 

8115 Managemeru Service• Fee 

rnrernet ~Der me 
Hara&9Ttelll p~Even!on lor lr.mslt 
&upervlr.or-G. 111 

Areadlil Warelloose Gate Repair 

91"15 N:ac prernn.rn 

10115 oenlaj Jnslr.lnce prEmium 

Mac Pro 

TS 6 can.pu:er llle 

lS 6 rax Rne 

Executive Board Meeting 

Amount 

154.DO 

32,925.10 

29,467..91 

1,169.79 

1.89Dll0 

M81ll0 

1.1DDllO 

tSOllO 

1,860.00 

59,79Dll0 

1,361.53 

997.;50 

763.75 

54..796.ll0 

3,.234..95 

3,151.DO 

997.;50 

~941.17 

I,SOOllO 

284~8 

500ll0 

!29.19 

1.520.556.90 

2.e553.72 

24,399..97 

31,228.ll4 

15S.07US 

1,!04~0 

100.00 

101~5 

1,292.74 

M62..3oi 

9,106..85 

167A9 

104.7 4 

Molll1aoy, ~erOQ, 2015 7:55AM 

Prtnteo 
Amount 

15UIJ 

32:,925. 10 

29,487.91 

1,169.79 

U81.D<J 

1.1DD.CIJ 

150.00 

1.800-~<:1 

59,790.00 

1,361.53 

763.75 

~.151.00 

!197 . 51.1 

1.500.0<1 

2"84.38 

SOO.CQ 

429. 19 

1~.556.9.:1 

2.553.12 

ll.C<J 

ll.CQ 

O.C<J 

1.404.20 

100. 0<:1 

101.35 

1.292.7~ 

Eo,ltl32.3d 

9,106-B.S 

187A9 

104.U 

!>age 1 

FOOTtil!.l TRANSIT\.'koo 

Attachment D 

VDIG&d Entry 
Amount Status 

O.DJ P06:J!od 

O.DJ P06:ed 

O.DJ P~E<I 

O.DJ P-

O.DJ P06:ed 

O.OJ P~~ed 

O.DJ P~J!<l 

O.DJ P06:J!<l 

O.DJ P06:ed 

O.DJ P06:ed 

O.DJ P06:ed 

O.DJ P06~ed 

O.DJ P06:ed 

O.DJ Pll6:E<J 

O.DJ P~ed 

O.DJ P06:ed 

O.DJ P06:J!<l 

O.DJ Pl!l>:ed 

O.DJ P06~ed 

O.DJ P06:ed 

O.DJ p
O.DJ P06:ed 

O.DJ P06:ed 

O.DJ Pll6:ed 

O.DJ PC6:J!<l 

O.Dl Pll6~ed 

O.DJ Pllfi:ed 

O.DJ P06:ed 

O.Dl Po..:ed 



Special Executive Board Meeting – 10/23/15 
FY 2015-2016 Financial Statements and Investment Summary 

Page 8 
 

 Agenda Item No. 7 
  

Foothill Transit 

Bank Account- Check Details 
P·E<Iod: 0011ll/15.1l9.'3011!; 

Foo:hfll Il'a.'llilt 

Cllacll 
oat& Check No. vendor tume 

09JICV15 

09/IQI15 

0911Clf15 

09/1(1115 

09/1(1115 

217~ Broalllllx Inc. 

21763 CiiJTOml'a CI'IOice 

21764 capnal Repi'KE!nta:Jon Group 

21765 CIGl-1 ... Group lru;~~rance 

217E6 CltrtJ: OnUil€ LLC 

D&ecrtpilon 

Fue-.Farce Fuel Ma~~agement 
Service 

111115 Hea:thlnSir.lnce premlum 

Pll!lnc....,"Ta~ 

9!15 Ufe, AD & o. srn and l rn 
lnSir.lnce p<ernlum 

GDT<lMSISI Corporate SeMce 
a net v:x:.e Al!dlo serv. 

09110115 

0911CV15 

217&7 CMC RE<&ouce GIWp lntema:IOna! InC 8."'15 Vlet4r.e M.llnlalan.:e 

0911Clf15 

09/10115 

O!l!la.~5 

09/10115 

0!1110115 

09110115 

09/10115 

09/10115 

09110115 

09110115 

0911Clf15 

09!1CV15 

0911Clf15 

0!111Clf15 

09110115 

09!1Clf15 

0911Clf15 

09110115 

09!10115 

09/1Clf15 

09110115 

09110115 

0911Clf15 

09/10115 

09110115 

0911(1115 

0911Clf15 

09J1Clf15 

0911QI15 

0911!1'15 

09110115 

09/10115 

09/10115 

09110115 

09J1Clf15 

21768 compte~ coacn woru 

2 I 71>9 Darold D. Pieper AIIDmey at !.a.r 

21110 oa·rtc~ Re)'IKl 

21771 FE.D::.X Corp. 

21772 Frank Koo 

2177J Grand car Wash 

21775 Home Depot credit Services 

21776 Jarrett StaiiZIIIS 

21777 Jolin xre 

21778 Lamtnart He-althplan or caatornJ a. 
Inc. 

21779 Lany LaUra He111.11ldez Vazquez 

21760 Lazar allcl Asroda:es 

21 7e.t MTGL, Int. 

21785 Ml'WJ9 Lee 

2 17E6 omnr.ran& 
21787 P:actnc ?rodUC15 anm services, Inc. 

217118 Panera. LLC 

2178,9 Pen&ke TD)'Ota SCion or West COOIIna 

21790 Puls.lJ Adv!'lt:.rng 

21791 RIC!loants watson and Gers:lon 

217!12 Ro-wyctutHIIV/esl CO't'rla 

21793 RUIJe1 cervantes 

217!!.1 SCAG fS. cal. Assoc. 

217!15 SCillndlef Eievaoor corporanon 

21796 StaplE£ Business Alt.J.--O€pl LA 

21 7!17 The OK E.a;rt Corporadon 

21796 rnomas J. Koontz: 

21799 Th0mp600 CoDUm lLP 

21 sno Toyo l andscaprng company 

2 I 601 TransiiT:i~nLC:om LLC 

2181n U.S. He<~c'tllllilllts ~'ectlcal Group_ P.C. 

218113 Vertzoo 51Efn ecss- 61500>72 

F-1 E04 i'IASI bus palm with Rvl!ly 
graphie5 

8115 t.eg,al Fees 

RetrrcursaDJe Expens;,o 

Expreos t.lall 

RetrrcursaDJe expa~ses
AJt,•ancect Flha:lclal ReponZng 

Veflkll~> washing 

Car Re<1tal - NT\ Prnco.-emen! 
Tral'lln9 

8115Tools 

NTI Protwli>mE!11111 Traln!n~ 
RetrrcursaDJes 

Relfi'Curs;aDJe expa~ses 

9!15 Clllrnprac:ar lnst..aooe 
prernl!n 

Rerrrcurs.aDJe expenses
Affvancect Flhanda.J Reportng 

Translation s~ 

E_,lfucallon.31 ao&~mce and 
r~me1t 

9!15 Spe<mrrn Manag<'ment 
Lease 

Coach opera:Dr IPEfi'Oimance 
AUdit$ 

Azlli.a ~!.R t.'.dE~a.l Telil:'ng 

2nct I'IOor R.emdgera:Or Service 

omnnranr; passes 

BllS S~p Ma:E41<i5 

8.!26 ExeCll'Jve Boom Meet.ng 

Vefllele sero!ce 

Coru;~~lnng ~!'!VIces 

m s Legal Fees 
Merrcen;Np - ooran Barnes 

RetrrtJUr&aDie ExpBI&eS 
Sllaroo Ne efts Retlll!rnenl E\'ent 

Elevator repa:r 

Otnce Suppnes 

BllS s~p Sign ReptacemerJ 
ProJECt 

Ml SAC Class P4$S BBitiOard • 
f.lll2015 

13(c) t ailor Pro:ectloo 

8115Ad!ro1 Bl!lg Moolllly 
Lililld~e M~ten.l/\Ce 

1:f5 1 &<1116 .?Iaiiie NOtlCe 

Pre-PI'acemem p~)$'e:!J - A. 
Pa;~san 

A1frnln. local calls 

Executive Board Meeting 

Amoonl 

13-, 132..20 

41).276..00 

4,000..00 

3-,Jn..J9 

1,247.2l 

2.850..00 

31.026..20 

£,,979.!57 

1,755!>4 

116..59 

167110 

711.65 

470..07 

259A6 

1~3_75 

309..57 

42..74 

170..00 

1.,070.00 

19,192..53 

D,316.00 

2~.358.13 

30..00 

4,920..00 

2'.1 47.()3 

191.65 

66il3 

8&.,207.75 

353. 10 

1,159.00 

79.94 

1,000..00 

2.653..08 

84..35 

4~..261.,60 

1,185..92 

Z,688..00 

1,219..39 

95..00 

55.00 

2.739..94 

Monday. OCtt()er 05. 2015 7:55AM 

Pr1ntiKI 
Amoonl 

1l.1J2.20 

4~.27&.00 

4.COO.OO 

3.3n.l9 

&.979.67 

1.7$ .!14 

11&_59 

187.80 

711.&5 

470.07 

259.46 

143.75 

309.57 

42.74 

170J!D 

1.470.00 

1~.192.53 

6.31&.00 

20.353.13 

JIUMJ 

4,.!121>.00 

2.1~7 .00 

191.&5 

0&.83 

86.,207.75 

353.10 

1,159.00 

79.9~ 

1.1Kl!UI!I 

2.65J.IIil 

e.£_35 

.i~.2a7.60 

1.185.92 

2.68&.00 

1.219.39 

Pag<> 2 

fOOTHI'-L TRIINSil\.""loo 

Attachment D 
Voided Enby 

AmoWit s tarua 

0.00 P-D6:ect 

0.00 P~:ed 

0.00 P~:ect 

0.00 P~:ect 

0.00 P~:ed 

0.00 P~:ect 

0.00 P~:ect 

0.00 P~:ect 

0.00 P~:Ed 

0.00 P~!ect 

0.00 P~:ed 

0.00 P~:ect 

0.00 P~:ect 

0.00 Por.:ect 

0.00 P~:ect 

0.00 Por.:ect 

0.00 P~:Ed 

O.OJ Por.!ect 

0.00 Por.:ect 

0.00 Por.:ect 

O.OJ P~:ed 

0.00 Por.:ect 

0.00 Por.:ect 

0.00 P~:ed 

0.00 P~:ect 

0.00 Por.:Ed 

0.00 P~:ect 

0.00 Por.:ed 

0.00 P-D6:ect 

0.00 P~:ect 

0.00 Poe.:ect 

0.00 Por.:Ed 

0.00 p~:ect 

0.00 P-D6:ect 

0.00 Por.:ect 

0.00 P~:ect 

0.00 Poe.:ect 

0.00 Por.:ect 

0.00 P~:ed 

0.00 P~:ect 

0.00 Por.:ect 



Special Executive Board Meeting – 10/23/15 
FY 2015-2016 Financial Statements and Investment Summary 

Page 9 
 

 Agenda Item No. 7 

  

Foothill Transit 

Bank Account - Check Deb ils 
Pet1ocl: 09J1Jti15 .. 09JJQI1S. 

FOC>"JIIII Tr.¥1611 

CtoH:Il 
Data Cback No. Vendor N.arne 

09/1Cl'15 

09!10115 

09110115 

09.'10115 

09/10f15 

09110f15 

09110115 

09110115 

09117115 

09117!15 

09117115 

09117115 

09117i 15 

09117/15 

09117/15 

09117!15 

09117115 

09117/15 

09.'17!15 

09.'17!15 

09117/15 

09.'1iJ15 

09117115 

09.'17/15 

09/17i15 

09JI7J15 

09.'17/15 

0911i/15 

09117!15 

09117!15 

09117/15 

09117!15 

09117115 

09.'17i15 

09117!15 

09117!15 

09.117/15 

O!llli/15 

09117115 

09/22115 

03.'2.l/15 

21804 Vertzcn SLEihess - 6607~ 

2161l6 v ertz-on ca - 920IJJOI 

2181l6 Vertzoo Wireless 

21607 V1610n Sero1ce ?Jan - (CA) 

21610 WC eJ. Broob 

21811 Yolo lga:Ma 

21613 A~l!i?ni Sel'\llce5 

21614 B.ner Dcne!&On Bearman artd C31. 

21815 Ba&lc Ba.ctnow 

21816 ca:Jtornla Decosmoo Reporters 

21617 CaJrar\6 

21818 CcmiJie-:e Coacb l'lort• 

21619 Crowe HCI'A'aih LLP 

21620 Da)'- Ule 1.1.111\:enafloe co. llle; 

21621 Dlvfl611'.ed Transportt.!oo, lLC 

21622 Ed'IO T...,sporta~on Found<TJIII1 

21623 FED EX C«"p. 

21824 G~een"& Lad and sa:.. 

21625 lrwtnda..e PCOCe Ollk:eJ1; A&iOda:Joo 

21 B26 K.a!J'lE;1ne E. Gagnon 

21827 Keystoneunltorm~ 

21828 LA Of:lnlan 

21629 0 '"\CE Depot 

218Jil Re-a!1rRelle•to 

21631 Re<:all Si!Cilre 0..5lrucdon Ser<. 

21832 RNU1rr:erplan 

21633 S13piE6 BU61ne&6A~.-Depl LA 

21834 suooroan wa:er Sysl>2ms 

21835 Thomas J. Koolltz 

21636 Tranod- Finance Lear11n1J Elll:llange 

21837 Un."rer-oao Adcom 

21838 Vl.M. !Ooml~ CDnitruc:lon Corp. 

EDD1 <16 Fll!>l Trano.!llnc. 

f(){)1¢i 

ED01<11l 

First Tr.ru;l lnc. 

lntema-Jcndl ClJy Ma~~aganemt ASWc. 
Re7ememco 

21640 Moone Relay A660CiatEs lnc. 

21841 AT atKI T • 5025 

Deac~llon 

Data~ &enfo!& 

can rorwanmg 
Cell phones serolce 

9f15 VSP ln5l.lallCC p rE\!li!Um 

9115 An:adla ViareJ~t>Se Trash 
SEIVIce 

VHIICie malrl:enace- ft'6S-iV1 
Oue•t 

09115 Trart&:t Stor@ Plartt ca~e 

RelrrWiursable expeme NTI 
Procurem~rtt Training Ill 

... DA ror l'lL"<< Root: AgellJCleS 
tralnlng - T. Plna 

!lf15Adnin Trash Ser•·lce& 
Pili.1klng l ei SWee~g 

PIJ:IIICAll'alr5 

(4) Backr.ow p~evertt:on :t>ev~oe 
te61&cem)' 

lfB 16-0C.S Pre-Eld con:erence 

Sp<ln&llr Ol'fen!illyJOI&alllllty 
.-,.,;;rene•• Day 

f-1712 NASI Dus patn1 wtin IIVe<y 
gra~ 

FY 15Ft1ardal a1Jdn 

9115 MoniN)' Ugll:tlg Cootract 

07115 Monrtl'tla Ol:al A Ride 

Trall5<t Exec-Ttr.Jon ll:)f ROland 
Cordero 

E~&&lolall 

Allnln Bi'dg D""Jca:O Ke,·r. 

Spo,.or Program~ 

Rel rrWIUIS3Die Expemses 
SI>'M -on Pall:tllll< Oe'""na ne-.. 
sre<y vest 
Alt<ertl61ng 

omoe s~pae• 

Drlrtl!ngl'l~r 

SEO.Jre Ds:rudton SeMcK 

O~Cal A!.f - A.ccesslb!llty 
Ri?VII>'A' 

omces~pae& 

6115 Adrrln Bl:i;J Fire Pump 
Walef 

6115 Fooln0:€6 

Me~n!ihlp Fee'()( -~'Y 2015 to 
June 2016 

MolllDV\a H:gll SCIIOOI AtJ • 
sa&~eeat snr.s 
Relmi:Jurse -File Alann 
PEfllltt IStalr Ptll1 Clleek 

WHS BaseDall :ro 16 Season 
Sili'lner Program 

611D-14 Pomona~98 E.na Trl~ 

611-1 s Pomona Contract 
semoer. 

Pa}TDII En!Dlg ~12115 
Re1lremer1 FIJ!UI& 

Olgr.al 'ladle Equlpma11 

TS 5 LOc.1l c:a 6 

Executive Board Meeting 

Amount 

1,290.,04 

43.34 

3.539.09 

1,~64-91 

19U2 

164~5 

72()25 

20&-19 

5-MO 

1,12&.04 

5.722.36 

200.00 

5(){).00 

15,~0D.OO 

9&.00 

56,735..81 

3,70~.00 

4&.50 

3[).30 

25D..OO 

9M3 

16~.59 

1,801>.00 

cSM& 
6VS 

219..87 

6,971.35 

5QD.22 

82;}~3 

901>.00 

81E..90 

852.65 

601>..DO 

997.59 

507,J4.:U2 

31,922.94 

189,987.00 

I,A7D.IS 

Monday. OC1tller GS. 2015 7:55AM 

Prtllle<l 
Amounl 

1.290.~ 

~3-~ 

3,53U9 

1,C64.91 

193.72 

720.2'5 

21l6.19 

1,126.~ 

8,722. 3-S 

200.00 

Slll.0\1 

15,513.10 

15,COO.OO 

96.00 

56,735.81 

3,700.0() 

46. W 

Jll. 30 

250_0() 

90.63 

1,1!00.00 

656.=<i 

6!1.75 

219"~ 

&.971.8-5 

823..23 

600.00 

o.~oJ 

0.00 

0.00 

t 6g.sa7.o-J 

1,410. 15 

Page 3 

fOOTHl'-LTRANSI~"I:OO 

Attachment D 
VOided Entry 

Amount S tafua 

0.00 P06:£<! 

0.00 P-OE:ed 

0.00 POii:£<1 

0.00 POii.:ed 

o.oo Poced 

0.00 POCed 

0.00 POii.:£<1 

0.00 P06:£<1 

o.oo Poc£<1 

0.00 PO&:ed 

0.00 POCed 

0.00 P0&:£<1 

0.00 POC£<1 

0.00 P06:ed 

0.00 P0&:£<1 

0.00 Pno;:£<1 

0.00 PO&:ed 

0.00 P06:ed 

0.00 PO&:ed 

0.00 POii:£<1 

0.00 PO&:ed 

0.00 P0&:£<1 

0.00 P06:ed 

0.00 PO&:ed 

O.OJ PM:ed 

0.00 P06:£<1 

0.00 P06!£<1 

0.00 POliO£<! 

o.oo Poc£<1 

O.f>J Poc£<1 

0.00 POC£<1 

0.00 Poc£<1 

0.00 POCJ!<I 

o.oo Poc£<1 

0.00 P062ct 

0.00 P06:£<1 

0.00 POC£<1 



Special Executive Board Meeting – 10/23/15 
FY 2015-2016 Financial Statements and Investment Summary 

Page 10 
 

 Agenda Item No. 7 

  

Foothill Transit 

Bank Account - Check Details 
Peflod: 11910 1115 . .09.'3011 l> 

FoG:h.:IITr.linoJt 

Clled 
Data Ctlack No. ·venaor Name 

D9lZ41'1S 

091241'1S 

09n4f15 

091241'1& 

091241'1S 

091241'1& 

09l 2:41'1S 

09.'241'15 

OS/ 2...,15 

0~1S 

Ow.t...,15 

091241'1:. 

0912AI1S 

0912411& 

O!ln41'1S 

0912...,15 

0912#15 

091241'1& 

O!lnA/'1 S 

O!ln41'15 

0912411 s 

09.7#15 

O!ln...,15 

O!ln41'15 

09.7...,15 

O!ln41'15 

09.'241'1& 

09.0:W1S 

0912411& 

091241'1 s 
09.'2411& 

0912...,15 

09.74115 

091241'1S 

09.'2...,15 

09124115 

O!ln4115 

09.'2Af1 s 
0912411 s 

21642 Ca.'lfOI'IIi:l TranoJtA£&octa:Jon 

21843 CapfLire TeciVtologles, Inc. 

21844 Cl11136 ~ PnJiecllon 

Z1845 Comp4e-.r! C03cll Vo'Ofts 

21646 CGneJ115 

21647 FEDl:X Corp. 

Z184S Hl!flf)' Lopez 

21649 151 Gf0\41 

21650 IMUStry ~Ublle Ul'.:lty comrni55J0'1 

21851 J06~ Raqllel 

21 8S2 Ke'lln Me Donal~ 

218S3 Lazar and ~a:e5 

21854 I'Ujgnal s~e-:y comco - It 

21855 Hef.6an'Nygoaard 

218S6 Hn·ago PHM, lLC 

218S7 Parsoos Brtu:aelbo!llnc. 

21858 Platinum secumy1ne. 

218S9 RomycruoolWaJ1U1Vaney 

21 8ffJ san GaDitel valley e~ap;r 

21861 sman CaRl Alia~. Inc. 

216€(2 soca1 ornoe Te<fHlOIQ91es 

21863 SOII.Ilem Cailfomta ECIISOfl Co. 

21864 sou:11em CailfOmta EdiSOn co. 
21665 SOII.Ilem CallfOmla Pullflc Racllo• 

216€6 Tllamas J. Koontz 

21867 TllampsoncooumLLP 

21868 naceJ. Inc. 

21 869 Tran6ttTaEnLC:om LLC 

21870 TVt t'le. 

21871 u nrrersnyoru verne 

21sn venzon 5uslheii- 6<i0794 

2187J VertzonBLISineii-€60794 

21874 Vertzon ca •- 920~~1 

21875 venzon ca&:- 920~~1 
21876 vtalnii:Vali;>yVIarer D15111ci 

21877 Vlealhme Cotpa'atiCfl 

Z1 876 Wt!glll E>:p<-

21879 zonar sys:ems Inc. 

GPPOD lA Fl~t Tr.ll!l6!11nc. 

GPP0015 Flm ira<~&lllnc. 

GPPOO I 5 Fl~t ir.lms!llnc. 

~PPOO I 5 Flm Trans!! Inc. 

Metrller>Np Directory AJJ 

Nice reconlen; cllallnel 
e.xpanslon 

fll&pe<::lon • ouar.efly 
Spflnll!!ol>lontnl)' fll'e I'UI\p 

F-1724 w.lll OtiS paln1 wttn 11\/.E-f)l 
grapllieS 

7115 coora aiJ!Ul\litra:II'HCE 

Expre&.&.Mall 

E IJ!Icauon~ ~s1at1ee and 
RelmDur>ement 

CII.OlAVL Rl!1llaocem~ 
consurang 

8115 lmt!'Jet!y P8.l~ ETecinCity 

Reltrllur>abE expemoe&-APT A 
Plannln9 & i\mu<!ta>nf 

Reltrllur5abE Expal'Oes • 
COMTO COn!l!fei!CE! 

8115 ln:Bpretng 5l>Mce• 

AnnU31 Metrlle,;Np 

compn!nen~ Opera!onal 
Anal)'61& 

10115 TS 2 o:noe lea..., 

All~» P&R - LaiXlr Compliance 
Sef'llce& 

8115 El MOll:&> Tr~ S".:>re 
&ecurny &e:M.ces. 
Quai1EIIy memoer d..es- J. 
Raquel 

A:to'er1l6UI.g 

CSCIP OOCUmerttat!'OR lllr J . XI!! 

COpl'er> a.'E'i3ge cll31gl!'i 

011115 EJ:aridty u:sage- Pomona 
Tran.Sl center 

8115 AJJ!Tal Bldg Electlldty 

A:h'er1lsllt9 

Interior Cards 

General LE9a! 
ASA relll!'ot'al 

lffl I 6-lll C PI.CIII~ Notice 

A6iel T13::klng IIWentOI)' Sy&tem 

Emplo~ees Tlllt!C'l doMI 
pa)ment· Fall :N13 

consoi!Ga~ IJata ~rans:er 
servtee 

600 Ride 1nro 6e1Ytce 

Fire monJtOOh91ne 

LOe31 can• 
lrld""':ry P &R Fire SpltnklEf 
Wab>r 

HVAC Repaln; - ATM Room 

8115Vehll:le I'Uellllq 

M~ Zone~£ and 
equlpmem 

8117-31 £9& PomoniO Ena Tt1Jl6 
6.124-31 ~s& Pomona EDa Tn~ 

6.125 Pomona Sped'al serv1ee 

6f1W1 Pomona con~ 
$EfV1~S 

Executive Board Meeting 

Amounl 

20~.50 

2.~02..75 

1,075.00 

15,.513.10 

897.50 

1,,!0&.31 

534.50 

~54.70 

&S.10 

~5~.00 

66J25 

7,J0&.07 

2.972:.50 

IJ4AO 

4,03&.50 

101ll00 

~54.98 

1$.50~.63 

30,,!0&..()0 

1.312:.50 

S.794A4 

10,9SM1 

2J)J9.15 

95Jl0 

6,274..15 

2.6J2..63 

Sll. 17 

3.034.39 

20~A7 

574..00 

860.92 

1,75&.90 

1.76&.03 

715..07 

1.1&0.77922 

MoMay, OC1reler!lo5. 2015 7:55AM 

Printed 
Amount 

2.,402.75 

1,D7S.OO 

1M·1:UO 

JD.J6 

1~ 

8.97.5.0 

13,417.00 

534.50 

454.70 

55..10 

4.50LOO 

6.6J.ZS 

7,3<la.01 

2.,972.5-:1 

134.40 

4 ,1)38,, 5!.) 

100.00 

454.98 

30A)6..00 

U12.50 

~.794.A.O 

lll,!lO&.ol 

2..GJ9.15 

9.5.00 

11,4a6.00 

&.274.15 

2.,&32..6J 

50.17 

l,004.39 

203.47 

574.oa 

e60. 92 

4.43.00 

Page 4 

FOOTHII.L TRANSIT\.'I:oo 

Attachment D 
Voided Entry 

Amount s talua 

0.00 PQ6.:~ 

0.00 P06:~ 

0.00 PQ6.:e<l 

0.00 PQ6.:~ 

0.00 P«:~ 

0.00 PQ6.:~ 

O.Dl Pe&:e<l 

0.00 Pos:e<J 

0.00 PQ6.:e<J 

0.00 PQ6.:e<l 

0.00 PQ6.:e<l 

0.00 PDS:.."<l 

0.00 Pos:e<l 

0.00 PQ6.:e<J 

0.00 POE-:e<l 

0.00 POE-:e<l 

0.00 PQ6.:~ 

0.00 P06:e<l 

0.00 Pos:e<l 

o.oo Pos:e<J 

0.00 POE-:e<l 

0.00 P06:e<l 

O.Dl PDE-:e<l 

O.Dl P06:e<l 

0.00 P«:~ 

0.00 POE-:e<l 

0.00 PQ6.:e<l 

0.00 P«:~ 

0.00 P06:e<l 

0.00 Pos:~ 

0.00 Pos:e<l 

0.00 Pos:e<J 

0.00 PQ6.:e<J 

o.oo Pos:e<l 

0.00 Pos:e<l 



Special Executive Board Meeting – 10/23/15 
FY 2015-2016 Financial Statements and Investment Summary 

Page 11 
 

 Agenda Item No. 7 

 

Foothill Transit 

Bank Account- Ctteck Details 
P~od: C9lU1115 . .ll9.'Jill 15 

F oo:r.n TranSit 

Check 
oat& Check No. venaor Nama 

0!1124115 

09124115 

09124115 

GPP0015 Trarn;oevSeMceo,. lne

GPPOD15 Trarn;devSeroiceo,. lnc. 
-4 

GPP0015 Trarn;dev Ser&:eo,. lne; 

General Ctl&ektng 

oaacrrptlon 

6!1-15 Areaclca Cort:ract SeMoa; 

6!1~1 Arcadia Conlract 
~M1ces 

911 5 Managemem sel'iles feoc 

Executive Board Meeting 

Monday, Octoller M . 2015 7:55AM 

Page 5 

FOOTii!..LTRANSIT\.'tua 

Attachment D 
Prtnted Voided Entry 

Amount Amoont Amount s tatua 

4611,493.66 0.00 O.DJ P~:e<l 

1,502. 715.25 0.00 0.00 P~!e<l 

154,372.,05 0.00 O.DJ P~:e<l 

6,684,972..46 2.542.1m .29 O.DJ 



 

Agenda Item No. 8 

October 23, 2015 
 
 
To: Executive Board 
 
Subject: October 2015 Legislative Summary 
 
 
Recommendation 

Receive and file the October 2015 Legislative Summary. There are no 
recommended positions on bills this month.   

Analysis 

A summary of state and federal legislation and its status is attached.   

State Legislative Issues: 

In advance of his October 11 deadline for acting on bills passed this year by 
the Legislature, Governor Brown signed the last two pending bills sponsored 
by the California Transit Association (CTA). With the Governor having 
previously signed AB 1250 (Bloom), dealing with bus axle weights, all three of 
this year’s CTA-sponsored bills were ultimately passed by the Legislature and 
signed into law. 
 
The two remaining bills signed were SB 413 (Wieckowski) and SB 508 (Beall). 
SB 413 allows transit operators to issue violations to minors using an 
administrative process; aligns the definition of a noise violation under both the 
Penal and Public Utilities Codes; and authorizes transit systems to adopt an 
infraction for failing to yield priority seating to elderly and disabled 
passengers. SB 508 makes needed reforms to the Transportation 
Development Act (TDA) rules for obtaining Local Transportation Fund and 
State Transit Assistance (STA) program funds, and should ensure continued 
and efficient flow of funds to California transit agencies. 
 
Federal Legislative Issues: 

The United States Senate and House of Representatives passed and the 
President signed a Continuing Resolution (CR) to keep the federal 
government open and funded at current levels through December 11, 2015. 
Several of the individual Appropriations bills for Fiscal Year (FY) 2016 have 
been passed by the House of Representatives, however, Senate Democrats 
have called for renewed negotiations on a broad budget agreement that 
would adjust the budget caps set under the Budget Control Act (BCA), which 
mandates across-the-board sequestration cuts when federal spending 
exceeds these caps. This short-term funding bill is intended to give leaders of 



Special Executive Board Meeting – 10/23/15 
October 2015 Legislative Summary 

Page 2 
 

 Agenda Item No. 8 

the U.S. Congress and the President more time to negotiate higher budget 
caps for FY2016 and FY2017, past the next Presidential election cycle.  
 
On October 1, Treasury Secretary Jack Lew informed Congressional leaders 
that the statutory debt limit must be raised by November 5 or risk a 
government default on its obligations. Though the statutory debt limit expired 
in March, until now, Treasury was believed to have sufficient contingency 
measures in place through late November or early December. The new 
deadline for the debt limit will further complicate Congress’s effort to address 
other fiscal and statutory deadlines. President Obama insists that Congress 
send him a “clean” version of debt limit legislation, while some Republicans 
have previously expressed interest in using the debt limit as leverage to 
extract budgetary concessions from Democrats. 
 
Authorization for highway and transit programs expires October 29. The 
Senate has passed a six-year bill which contains only three years of funding. 
The House had hoped to act on a long-term bill funded by changes in the 
international tax code, such as repatriation of corporate income earned 
abroad. However, revenue negotiations between the House and Senate have 
faltered, and the House Transportation & Infrastructure (T & I) Committee has 
begun to proceed with a bill that identifies other pay-fors. A House 
Committee markup of the legislation may occur the last week of October. 
 
Due to a limited number of legislative days available until the October 29 
deadline, and given the Department of Transportation’s recent announcement 
that the Highway Trust Fund would be solvent until the summer of 2016, it is 
anticipated that Congress will pass another extension for the surface 
transportation programs while the House and Senate continue to seek 
common ground on a long-term bill.  
 
Republican House leadership changes remain in flux in the wake of Speaker 
John Boehner’s (R-OH) decision to retire and the unexpected delay of the 
vote to select his successor. House Majority Leader Kevin McCarthy (R-CA) 
stunned Washington, D.C. when he withdrew from the race on October 8. 
Reps. Jason Chaffetz (R-UT), Daniel Webster (R-FL) and Lynn Westmoreland 
(R-GA) are running for the speakership while Ways and Means Chairman and 
former vice presidential nominee Paul Ryan (R-WI) mulls over requests to do 
so as well. However, it is impossible at this point to project the outcome. 
Speaker Boehner says he will remain in Congress until a replacement is 
elected – raising the possibility he could stay on beyond his self-imposed 
October 30 retirement date. The House Republican leadership contest will  



...... ~r----.__.::;;~~-:;;;,..--
r:=xecutive Board eeting 

Special Executive Board Meeting - 10/23/15 
October 2015 Legislative Summary 

Foothill Transit 

Page 3 

significantly impact the Congressional agenda moving forward and expect a 
vigorous debate over the future direction of the party in coming weeks. 

Budget Impact 

The recommended action has no budget impact. 

Sincerely, 

J)~(ID-
David Reyno 
Director of Government Relations Executive Director 

Attachment 

Agenda Item No. 8 



 
2015 Legislation Summary 

Current as of 10/13/2015 
 

       

(Amendments and Bills with updated status or requesting action are indicated in bold) 
Bill No. Author Analysis Potential Impacts Location Outside 

Agency 
Positions 

Recommended 
Position 

AB 338 Hernandez Would authorize the Los Angeles County 
Metropolitan Transportation Authority to 
impose, by ordinance, an additional local, 
countywide, one-half-cent sales tax for up to 
30 years.  Requires Metro to adopt the 
ordinance and submit the proposal to the 
voters; and specifies that the ordinance only 
becomes operative if approved by 
two-thirds of the voters voting on the 
measure.  Requires Metro to allocate 20% of 
the revenues for bus operations and that 
these revenues must be allocated based on 
formulas in existing law.   

This bill would provide a new 
operating funding source for 
Foothill Transit. 

 

Senate Committee on 
Transportation & 
Housing 

 Support 
Position 
Adopted 
6/26/2015 

AB 857 Perea Creates the Technology Program pursuant 
to SB 1204 (Lara), Chapter 524, Statutes of 
2013, supported by Foothill Transit to fund 
the development of zero and near zero 
emission truck, bus, and off-road vehicle and 
equipment technologies to be administered 
by the Air Resources Board in conjunction 
with the California Energy Commission. The 
bill would provide that the funding for the 
program would come out of the Greenhouse 
Gas Reduction Fund (Cap & Trade Auction 
Funds), and would prioritize projects located 
in disadvantaged communities.   

This bill may provide a new 
funding source for Foothill 
Transit electric and CNG buses. 
 

Senate Committee on 
Appropriations 

 Support 
Position 
Adopted 
4/24/2015 

AB 1250 Bloom In 2012 and 2014, the California Transit 
Association (CTA) sponsored legislation 
which provided transit agencies with 
temporary relief from California’s 
decades-old bus axle weight limits.  The 
temporary provisions of the most recent 
measure, AB 1720 (Bloom, Chapter 263, 
Statutes of 2014), are now set to expire at 
the end of 2015, reinstating an unworkable 
20,500 lb./axle limit and impacting various 
stakeholders, including cities, counties, 
public transit agencies, and private sector 
bus suppliers.  The CTA continues to work 
with impacted stakeholders to craft a 
long-term solution, acceptable to all parties, 

This bill will continue to protect 
Foothill Transit from being 
subject to citations and costly 
permits until a reasonable 
solution can be determined. 
 

Signed by the 
Governor & 
Chaptered by the 
Secretary of State - 
10/4/2015 

CTA - Support Support 
Position 
Adopted 
4/24/2015 



2015 Legislation Summary 
Current as of 10/13/2015 

 
       

(Amendments and Bills with updated status or requesting action are indicated in bold) 
Bill No. Author Analysis Potential Impacts Location Outside 

Agency 
Positions 

Recommended 
Position 

that recognizes the challenges of the current 
axle weight limit. AB 1205 will serve as the 
vehicle for such a solution, if and when one 
emerges.  The majority of Foothill Transit’s 
fleet, along with those of most, if not all, 
transit agencies throughout the state 
exceeds this over quarter century old 
statute due to mandated clean air, safety, 
disability laws and advances in bus 
technology.   

AB 1217 Daly This bill restructures the composition of the 
Orange County Fire Authority (OCFA) Board 
by reducing the current, 25-member Board 
to 13 members, most of whom would be 
selected by an as-yet-to-be-created OCFA 
City Selection Committee.  The existing 
OCFA Board comprised of two members 
from the County Board of Supervisors and 
one member from each of the cities that are 
a party to the Joint Powers Authority (JPA) 
that created the OCFA would be eliminated.  
Legislation currently moving through the 
Senate could endanger the ability of local 
governments to determine for themselves 
the governance structure of joint powers 
authorities. 
 

This bill attempts to undermine 
existing law and unilaterally 
overrule a locally agreed upon 
governance structure that is 
part of the valid and voluntary 
formation agreement of a JPA, 
an entity that by definition has 
no relation to matters of 
statewide concern.  The bill is 
an attempt to intervene in a 
local matter that is best 
resolved at the local 
government level.  If this bill 
becomes law, the Foothill 
Transit JPA could be at risk of 
being altered by state 
legislation at any time with the 
local governing agencies 
having no control in the matter. 
 

Senate Committee on 
Governance & Finance 

ACC-OC – 
Opposes 

Oppose 

ABX1 7 Nazarian This bill would double the Cap and Trade 
revenues continuously appropriated to 
public transit from 15 percent to 30 percent.  
More specifically, these bills would increase 
the percentage of Cap and Trade revenues 
continuously appropriated to the Transit and 
Intercity Rail Capital Program, a competitive 
grant program administered by the 
California State Transportation Agency, from 
10 percent to 20 percent; and would 
increase the percentage of Cap and Trade 
revenues continuously appropriated to the 

This bill could provide 
additional state funding for 
Foothill Transit. 

Assembly CTA - 
Supports 

Support 
Position 
Adopted 
8/28/2015 



2015 Legislation Summary 
Current as of 10/13/2015 

 
       

(Amendments and Bills with updated status or requesting action are indicated in bold) 
Bill No. Author Analysis Potential Impacts Location Outside 

Agency 
Positions 

Recommended 
Position 

Low Carbon Transit Operations Program, 
which directs funding to transit operators 
via the existing State Transit Assistance 
(STA) program formula, from 5 percent to 10 
percent.   

ABX1 8 Chiu/Bloom This bill would increase the sales and use tax 
on diesel fuel from 1.75 percent to 5.25 
percent, beginning July 1, 2016. This tax 
increase is expected to generate 
approximately $300 million, which would be 
directed to support public transit’s capital 
maintenance and expansion needs as well as 
operations needs. The revenue generated by 
this tax increase would be allocated to local 
public transit agencies annually, via the 
existing STA program formula, subject to the 
same STA mechanisms and allocation 
procedures.   

This bill could provide 
additional state funding for 
Foothill Transit. 

Assembly CTA - 
Supports 

Support 
Position 
Adopted 
8/28/2015 

ACA 4 Frazier Existing law under the California 
Constitution requires the approval of 2/3 of 
the voters of the city, county, or special 
district voting on any new or increase of an 
existing tax.  ACA 4 would provide that the 
imposition, extension or increase of a special 
tax by a local government for the purpose of 
providing funding for local transportation 
projects requires the approval of 55% of its 
voters voting on the proposition.   

The new voter approval 
threshold could lead to more 
transportation and transit 
money and mean additional 
funding for Foothill Transit. 
 

Assembly Committee 
on Appropriations 

CTA - Support Support 
Position 
Adopted 
6/26/2015 

SB 16 Beall This bill is a comprehensive funding package 
that would dedicate $3 billion-$3.5 billion to 
transportation annually for the next five 
years and generate this new revenue by 
increasing several taxes and fees including 
the excise tax on gasoline by 10 cents in year 
one; the excise tax on diesel fuel by 12 cents 
in year one; the vehicle license fee by 35 
percent over five years; the vehicle 
registration fee by $35; create a new vehicle 
registration fee of $100 for zero-emission 
vehicles; and repay transportation loans.  SB 
16 is the first of what is likely to be multiple 
transportation funding proposals put 

This bill will assist Foothill 
Transit’s commitment to safety 
by repairing long overdue 
maintenance needs of our local 
streets and roads and state 
highway system. We urge 
Senator Beall to include 
dedicated transit funding in this 
important bill. 
 

Inactive File CTA - Support Support 
Position 
Adopted 
5/29/2015 



2015 Legislation Summary 
Current as of 10/13/2015 

 
       

(Amendments and Bills with updated status or requesting action are indicated in bold) 
Bill No. Author Analysis Potential Impacts Location Outside 

Agency 
Positions 

Recommended 
Position 

forward by the Legislature, designed to 
address California’s projected $59 billion 
backlog of deferred maintenance on the 
state highway system, and roughly $78 
billion funding shortfall for maintenance of 
local streets & roads.   

SB 391 Huff Specific sections of the penal code have 
long provided for the criminal prosecution of 
individuals who commit assault or battery 
against transit employees.  Due to flexibility 
in current law, which provides for probation 
in place of jail time, most assailants avoid 
serious consequences.  SB 391 would 
increase penalties for assaults committed 
against transit employees and to remove a 
provision in state law that allows assailants 
to escape jail time.   

This bill will assist Foothill 
Transit in keeping our 
employees safe and require 
harsh penalties for those who 
may cause them harm. 
 

Senate Committee on 
Public Safety 

CTA,  
Metro - 
Support 

Support 
Position 
Adopted 
4/24/2015 

SB 413 Wiechowski Would amend the Public Utilities Code and 
the Penal Code to allow transit agencies to 
use an administrative process to cite and 
process minors in violation of specified 
prohibited acts (e.g. fare evasion, smoking 
where prohibited, unauthorized sale of 
goods) occurring on transit properties. 
Additionally, this proposal would make it a 
violation for failing to yield seating reserved 
for elderly and disabled individuals, and 
clarify what constitutes a noise violation on a 
transit property. 

This bill would allow Foothill 
Transit to impose and enforce 
certain administrative penalties 
for passenger misconduct on or 
in a Foothill Transit facility or 
vehicle. 
 

Signed by the 
Governor & 
Chaptered by the 
Secretary of State - 
10/10/2015 

CTA - Support Support 
Position 
Adopted 
4/24/2015 

SB 508 Beall Transit operators across the state are 
required to meet specified farebox recovery 
and operating cost criteria in order to be 
eligible to receive funds from the 
Transportation Development Act (called 
Local Transportation Fund dollars) and/or 
the State Transit Assistance (STA) program, 
if those funds are to be used for operating 
purposes.  SB 508 would address the 
challenges posed by this rigid funding 
mechanism by creating more flexible 
farebox recovery and operating cost criteria, 
and by rationalizing the penalties for 

This bill would allow Foothill 
Transit to continue to receive a 
certain amount of state transit 
funding in case of an agency 
economic or low ridership 
challenge. 
 

Signed by the 
Governor & 
Chaptered by the 
Secretary of State - 
10/9/2015 

CTA - Support Support 
Position 
Adopted 
4/24/2015 



2015 Legislation Summary 
Current as of 10/13/2015 

 
       

(Amendments and Bills with updated status or requesting action are indicated in bold) 
Bill No. Author Analysis Potential Impacts Location Outside 

Agency 
Positions 

Recommended 
Position 

non-compliance. 

SB 767 DeLeon Allows the Los Angeles County Metropolitan 
Transportation Authority (Metro) to exceed 
the 2% statutory limitation on local 
transactions and use taxes by 1%.  
Authorizes Metro to impose, by ordinance, 
an additional local, countywide, 
one-half-cent sales tax for a period to be 
determined by Metro. Requires Metro to 
adopt the ordinance and submit the 
proposal to the voters.  Specifies that the 
ordinance only becomes operative if 
approved by two-thirds of the voters voting 
on the measure.  SB 767 will attempt to 
address the funding shortfall of Measure R.  
Instead of seeking to extend Measure R, the 
author of this bill is authorizing Metro to 
propose to voters another half-cent sales 
tax.  This new authorization would not 
contain the required projects of past 
measures, or the restrictions of past 
legislation, but is somewhat a "clean slate" 
from which Metro can build a new 
expenditure plan and funding prioritization.   

This bill would provide a new 
operating funding source for 
Foothill Transit. 

 

Signed by the 
Governor & 
Chaptered by the 
Secretary of State - 
10/7/2015 

Metro - 
Support 

Support 
Position 
adopted 
5/29/2015 

SBX1 7 Allen This bill would increase the sales and use tax 
on diesel fuel from 1.75 percent to 5.25 
percent, beginning July 1, 2016. This tax 
increase is expected to generate 
approximately $300 million, which would be 
directed to support public transit’s capital 
maintenance and expansion needs as well as 
operations needs. The revenue generated by 
this tax increase would be allocated to local 
public transit agencies annually, via the 
existing STA program formula, subject to the 
same STA mechanisms and allocation 
procedures.   

This bill could provide 
additional state funding for 
Foothill Transit. 

State Senate CTA - Support Support 
Position 
Adopted 
8/28/2015 



2015 Legislation Summary 
Current as of 10/13/2015 

 
       

(Amendments and Bills with updated status or requesting action are indicated in bold) 
Bill No. Author Analysis Potential Impacts Location Outside 

Agency 
Positions 

Recommended 
Position 

SBX1 8 Hill This bill would double the Cap and Trade 
revenues continuously appropriated to 
public transit from 15 percent to 30 percent.  
More specifically, these bills would increase 
the percentage of Cap and Trade revenues 
continuously appropriated to the Transit and 
Intercity Rail Capital Program, a competitive 
grant program administered by the 
California State Transportation Agency, from 
10 percent to 20 percent; and would 
increase the percentage of Cap and Trade 
revenues continuously appropriated to the 
Low Carbon Transit Operations Program, 
which directs funding to transit operators 
via the existing State Transit Assistance 
(STA) program formula, from 5 percent to 10 
percent.   

This bill could provide 
additional state funding for 
Foothill Transit. 

State Senate CTA – Support Support 
Position 
Adopted 
8/28/2015 

SCA 7 Huff Would increase funding for transportation 
infrastructure by $2.9 billion per year with an 
additional $2.4 billion in one-time funds. The 
funding would come from: 1) End the 
diversion of more $1 billion in transportation 
taxes every year. Spend this money on 
roads, highways and bridges; 2) Repay all 
outstanding transportation loans to the 
General Fund and direct that money to 
transportation improvements; 3) Make 
significant efficiency improvements at the 
State Department of Transportation; 4) 
Direct money from Cap and Trade funds that 
are related to fuel to fixing roads. 

This bill will assist Foothill 
Transit’s commitment to safety 
by repairing long overdue 
maintenance needs of our local 
streets and roads and state 
highway system. 

 

Senate Committee on 
Transportation & 
Housing 

 Support 
Position 
Adopted 
6/26/2015 

SCAX1 1 Huff SCA-7 was introduced during the 2015 
regular legislative session. As a 
constitutional amendment, it is not subject 
to house of origin constraints or other 
hearing deadlines. SCAx1-1, an updated 
version of SCA 7, was introduced when the 
Governor called the first extraordinary 
session. 
 
Both measures ask the voters to approve a 
constitutional amendment to protect 

This bill will assist Foothill 
Transit’s commitment to safety 
by repairing long overdue 
maintenance needs of our local 
streets and roads and state 
highway system. 

 

State Senate  Support 
Position 
Adopted 
8/28/2015 



2015 Legislation Summary 
Current as of 10/13/2015 

 
       

(Amendments and Bills with updated status or requesting action are indicated in bold) 
Bill No. Author Analysis Potential Impacts Location Outside 

Agency 
Positions 

Recommended 
Position 

transportation taxes by requiring them to be 
used for transportation purposes. 
Specifically, SCA 7 and SCAx1-1:  
 
Prohibit diverting any transportation taxes 
to the general fund. This will stop the 
diversion of $1 billion in weight fees annually. 
Additionally, this provision would protect 
any future increase in Vehicle Registration 
Fees or any new fee on the use of a car in 
California, including fees on Zero Emissions 
Vehicles or a new Road User Charge, from 
being diverted to the state General Fund.  

Clarify that all Highway Users Tax Account 
HUTA funds must be used for transportation 
purposes. Currently, the state is getting $100 
million annually from HUTA funds that 
should be sent to the counties.  

Clarify that any proposed increase in Vehicle 
Licensing Fees above the current rate, must 
be used for the transportation purposes. The 
California Vehicle Licensing Fee is an ad 
valorem tax (property tax on cars) and is not 
protected under Article XIX. SCA 7 and 
SCAx1-1 would also protect any increase 
above the current Vehicle Licensing Fee 
from being diverted to the General Fund.  
 
SCA-7 was amended to include protections 
on boating and waterway fees and taxes 
from fuels. SCAx1-1 does not include this 
provision and is coauthored by 35 members 
of the Senate and Assembly. 

H.R. 680 Blumenauer Our transportation infrastructure is 
increasingly outdated and inadequate.  In 
2011, the Federal Highway Administration 
(FHA) estimated that over $70.9 billion 
worth of repairs are needed merely to 
maintain safe bridges.  Inflation and 

A consistent, reliable and stable 
federal funding program would 
allow Foothill Transit and all 
U.S. transportation agencies 
and companies to budget for 
the long term. 

House Committee on 
Ways and Means  

APTA – 
Supports 

Support 
Position 
Adopted 
2/27/2015  



2015 Legislation Summary 
Current as of 10/13/2015 

 
       

(Amendments and Bills with updated status or requesting action are indicated in bold) 
Bill No. Author Analysis Potential Impacts Location Outside 

Agency 
Positions 

Recommended 
Position 

increased fuel efficiency has led to declining 
gas tax receipts and the gas tax has lost 
nearly 40% of its purchasing power since it 
was last raised in 1993.  The decline will 
continue as cars become more efficient and 
people drive less.  Vehicle miles traveled per 
capita declined last year for the ninth year in 
a row.  Because Congress has not addressed 
the Highway Trust Fund’s (HTF) insolvency, 
the fund will be exhausted this summer and 
states will begin cutting back on projects.  
To maintain current funding levels, the HTF 
will need $100 billion in addition to current 
tax receipts in the next five years.  Failure to 
act will result in a 30% reduction in federal 
transportation spending over the next 
decade.  The Update, Promote, and Develop 
America's Transportation Essentials 
(UPDATE) Act (Blumenauer (D-OR), would 
phase in a nickel a gallon tax increase over 
each of the next three years on gasoline and 
diesel that would be dedicated to public 
transportation and highway programs, index 
those taxes to inflation and examine ways to 
replace the taxes with a longer-term stable 
source of funding.   
 

 



~~~----~~~~--
Executive Board Meeting Foothill Transit 

October 23, 2015 

To: Executive Board 

Subject: Resolution Adopting Executive and Governing Board Meeting 
Schedule for 2016 

Recommendation 

Adopt Resolution No. 2015-07 Executive and Governing Board Meeting 
Schedule for 2016. 

Analysis 

The schedule of Executive and Governing Board meetings and the annual 
meeting of the Governing Board are shown on the attached m eeting schedule 
(Attachment A). Foothil l Transit's JPA requires that meetings be fixed by 
resolution (Attachment B). Upon adoption, the resolution and meeting 
schedule wi ll be f iled with the JPA member cities and county. 

In order to avoid conflicts on Good Friday, which will be on March 25, 2016, an 
Executive Board meeting has been scheduled for Apri l 1, 2016. At times it 
may be necessary to m odify the meeting schedule due to business issues that 
arise. Notification wil l be provided in a timely manner of any possible date or 
time changes and proper notifications wi ll be issued. 

Christina Lopez 
Board Secretary 

Attachments 

oran J. Barne 
Executive Director 

Agenda Item No. 9 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

2016 Executive & Governing Board Meeting Calendar 
 

January 2016 
Friday, January 15 @ 8:00 a.m. Executive Board Meeting 

 

February 2016 
Friday, February 5 - 8:00 a.m. – 4:00 p.m.  Strategic Planning Workshop 

Friday, February 26  @ 8:00 a.m. Executive Board Meeting 
 

March 2016 

Friday, March 18 @ 7:45 a.m. Governing Board Meeting 
 

April 2016 
Friday, April 1 @ 8:00 a.m. Executive Board Meeting 

Friday, April 29 @ 8:00 a.m. Executive Board Meeting 
 

May 2016 
Thursday, May 12 @ 7:45 a.m. Annual Governing Board Meeting & Executive 

Board Meeting 

Friday, May 27  @ 8:00 a.m. Executive Board Meeting 
 

June 2016 
Friday, June 24  @ 8:00 a.m. Executive Board Meeting 

 

July 2016 
Friday, July 29 @ 8:00 a.m. Executive Board Meeting 

 

August 2016 
Friday, August 26 @  8:00 a.m. Executive Board Meeting 

 
September 2016 

Friday, September 30  @ 8:00 a.m. Executive Board Meeting 
 

October 2016 
Thursday, October 13 @ 7:45 a.m. Governing Board Meeting 

Friday, October 28 @ 8:00 a.m. Executive Board Meeting 
 

November 2016 
November No Meeting in November 

 

December 2016 
Friday, December 16 @ 8:00 a.m. Executive Board Meeting 

 
 

Attachment A  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-07 

A RESOLUTION OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD OF FOOTHILL TRANSIT 
ADOPTING THE 2016 MEETING SCHEDULE 

The Executive Board of Foothill Transit does resolve as follows: 

1. Findings. The Executive Board hereby finds and declares the following: 

A. The Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement governing Foothill Transit requires 
that the dates of the regular meetings of the Governing Board and Executive Board fixed 
by resolution. 

B. It is most convenient and useful to the agency and its members to fix the 
dates of the regular meetings and of other significant meetings through the adoption of an 
annual schedule. 

2. Action. 

 A. The Executive Board adopts the 2016 Executive and Governing Board Meeting 
Schedule attached as Attachment A. 

3. Adoption. PASSED AND ADOPTED at a meeting of the Executive Board held on 
October 23, 2016, by the following vote: 

AYES:  

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
DAROLD PIEPER, GENERAL COUNSEL 
 
 
By:  

  
  
CAROL HERRERA, CHAIR 
 
ATTEST: 
CHRISTINA LOPEZ, BOARD SECRETARY 
 
 
By:  
 

 

Attachment B 



 

Agenda Item No. 10 

October 23, 2015 
 
 
To: Executive Board 
 
Subject: Proposed Procurement Policies and Procedures Manual 

Revisions 
 
 
Recommendation 

Approve and adopt the proposed Procurement Policies and Procedures 
Manual Revisions. 

Analysis 

Foothill Transit has adopted procurement policies and procedures that are 
consistent with federal regulations and the laws of the State of California.  The 
purpose of these policies and procedures is to set forth the procurement 
methods and establish standards for obtaining Goods and Services, including 
Public Works Construction Projects, and Architectural/Engineering services 
necessary for the delivery of Foothill Transit’s service.  These procedures 
include guidelines for the solicitation, award and administration of formally 
advertised contracts, as well as the consultant selection, negotiation, award 
and administration of competitively negotiated contracts.   

The Executive Board adopted the current version of the Foothill Transit 
Procurement Manual in September 2013. The Procurement Manual documents 
Foothill Transit’s procurement policies.  As federal and state guidelines 
change, the Procurement Manual must sometimes be updated to reflect these 
changes.  

Many of the proposed changes to the Foothill Transit Procedures reflect 
updates and clarifications set forth in FTA Guidance, or are spelling/grammar 
corrections and are not substantive nor do they affect existing Foothill Transit 
procedures. A redlined version of the policies and procedures manual is 
included as Exhibit A. 

The following revisions to the Procurement Manual are recommended: 

1. Procurement Method Threshold Changes 

Procurement method threshold levels have not changed in the last six 
years (since 2009). New recommended thresholds described below 
adjust Foothill Transit levels to better reflect the landscape of vendors 
at these dollar levels of procurement, as well as the federal acquisition 



Special Executive Board Meeting – 10/23/15 
Proposed Procurement Policies and Procedures Manual 

Revisions 
Page 2 

 

 Agenda Item No. 10 

threshold, which is currently at $150,000. The recommended 
procurement method level changes is included as Exhibit B. 

Goods and Services 

• Raise the small purchase threshold from $20,000 to $75,000, i.e. 
IFBs and RFPs required to be issued for procurements over $75,000.  
Foothill would retain the right to use IFB/RFP process if desired. 

Change Orders 

• Require only amendments that increase the cost of the contract (as 
opposed to changes in scope or changes in period of performance) 
are required to be taken to the Executive Director if over $10,000 or 
under $100,000. 

• Require only amendments that increase the cost of the contract (as 
opposed to changes in scope or changes in period of performance) 
are required to be taken to the Executive Board if over $100,000. 

2. Delegation of Authority 

Clarify Director of Procurement’s ability to delegate approvals or 
activities to Procurement department staff. 

3.   Update Manual to reflect new State/Local Requirements 

Update manual to include new state requirements for vendor 
registration for public works projects and other adjustments.  

4.   Update Manual to reflect current federal guidance 

Update Foothill procurement manual to reflect language consistent with 
language in FTA Third Party Circular 4220.1F (Third Party Contracting 
Requirements).  

5.   General Clarifications to Procurement Policies and Spelling/Grammar 
Corrections 

Provide general clarifications to unclear language in the manual, as well 
as correct minor spelling and grammatical errors that currently exist in 
the manual. 



~~~------~~~~-
Exec,Jti\le Boa-d Meeting Foothill Transit 

Budget Impact 

Special Executive Board Meeting - 10/23/15 
Proposed Procurement Policies and Procedures Manual 

Revisions 
Page 3 

The revisions to the Foothill Transit Procurement Policies and Procedures 
Manual will not impact the organization's budget. 

Sincerely, 

Director of Procurement 
e 

Executive Director 

Agenda Item No. 10 



 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Procurement 
Policies and Procedures 

Manual 
 

August 2013October 2015 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
  

Exhibit A



Foothill Transit Procurement Policies and Procedures 

 ii

Table of Contents 
INTRODUCTION ........................................................................................................................................... 1 

CHAPTER I - LEVELS OF APPROVAL ...................................................................................................... 2 
A.  Goods and Services ......................................................................................................................... 2 
B.  Architectural and Engineering Services ......................................................................................... 32 
C.  Public Works/Construction Projects ................................................................................................. 3 
D.  Sole Source ...................................................................................................................................... 3 
E.  Change Orders and Amendments ................................................................................................. 43 
F.  Delegations .................................................................................................................................... 43 

 
CHAPTER II - POLICIES .............................................................................................................................. 5 

A.  Revision of Procurement Procedures .............................................................................................. 5 
B.  Standards of Conduct and Conflict of Interest Policies .................................................................... 5 

1.  Conflict of Interest .................................................................................................................. 5 
2.  Gratuities, Kickbacks, and Contingent Fees .......................................................................... 6 
3.  Confidential Information ......................................................................................................... 6 
4.  Organizational Conflict of Interest .......................................................................................... 6 

C.  Purchasing Policies .......................................................................................................................... 7 
1.  Equal Employment Opportunity/Affirmative Action ................................................................ 7 
2.  Disadvantaged Business Enterprise ...................................................................................... 7 
3.  Cooperative Procurement ...................................................................................................... 9 
4.  Open Competition Required ................................................................................................... 9 
5.  Efficient and Economic Purchases ....................................................................................... 10 
6.  Public Records Act ............................................................................................................... 10 
7.  Term Limitations—Rolling Stock Procurements .................................................................. 11 
8.  Revenue Contracts ............................................................................................................... 11 
9. Escrow/Surety Deposits ....................................................................................................... 11 

D. Procurement History ...................................................................................................................... 11 
1.  Rationale for the Method of Procurement ............................................................................ 12 
Procurement Iniation Form ............................................................................................................. i-ii 
Method of Procurement Decision Matrix .......................................................................................... iii 
2.  Contract Type ....................................................................................................................... 12 
3. Contractor Selection ............................................................................................................. 12 
4.  Cost or Price Evaluation ....................................................................................................... 12  

 
CHAPTER III - PROCUREMENT PROCEDURES ..................................................................................... 13 

Subchapter A - Procurement by Micro-Purchase ............................................................................... 1413 
Subchapter B - Small Purchases ............................................................................................................ 13 
Subchapter C - Invitation for Bids (IFB) .............................................................................................. 1514 
A.  General ...................................................................................................................................... 1514 
B.  Use ............................................................................................................................................. 1514 
C.  Scope of Work and Specifications ............................................................................................. 1514 
D.  Issuance of IFB .......................................................................................................................... 1615 
E.  IFB Packet .................................................................................................................................. 1716 
F.  Control Record ........................................................................................................................... 1716 
G.  Pre-Bid Conference ........................................................................................................................ 17 
H.  Addendum to Invitation for Bids ................................................................................................. 1817 
I.  Cancellation of IFB ..................................................................................................................... 1918 
J.  Receipt of Bids ........................................................................................................................... 1918 
K.  Withdrawal of Bids ..................................................................................................................... 1918 
L.  Bid Opening ............................................................................................................................... 2019 
M.  Recording of Bids ....................................................................................................................... 2120 
N.  Tabulation of Bids ...................................................................................................................... 2120 
O.  Mistakes in Bids ......................................................................................................................... 2120 
P.  Minor Irregularities in Bids.......................................................................................................... 2221 

Exhibit A



Foothill Transit Procurement Policies and Procedures 

 iii

Q.  Multiple or Alternate Bids ........................................................................................................... 2221 
R.  Analysis of Limited Bid Response .............................................................................................. 2322 
S.  Determination of Responsiveness ............................................................................................. 2322 
T.  Responsible Bidder Evaluation .................................................................................................. 2423 
Responsibility Determination Form ..................................................................................................... 2726 
U. Rejection of All Bids ....................................................................................................................... 27 
V.  Rejection of Individual Bids ............................................................................................................ 28 
W.  Award of the Contract ................................................................................................................ 3029 
X.  Final Award ................................................................................................................................ 3029 
Y.  Project Completion ..................................................................................................................... 3130 
Subchapter D - Request for Proposals (RFP) .................................................................................... 3231 
A.  General ...................................................................................................................................... 3231 
B.  RFP Contents ............................................................................................................................. 3231 
C.  Issuance of RFP ......................................................................................................................... 3231 
D.  RFP Packet ................................................................................................................................ 3332 
E.  Control Record ........................................................................................................................... 3433 
F.  Pre-Proposal Conference .......................................................................................................... 3433 
G.  Addenda to Requests for Proposals .......................................................................................... 3534 
H.  Cancellation of RFP ................................................................................................................... 3635 
I.  Receipt of Proposals .................................................................................................................. 3635 
J.  Withdrawal of Proposals ............................................................................................................ 3635 
K.  Format of Proposal ..................................................................................................................... 3635 
L.  Evaluation of Proposals ............................................................................................................. 3736 
M.  Discussions ................................................................................................................................ 3837 
N.  Request for Best and Final Offer ............................................................................................... 3938 
O.  Debriefing of Unsuccessful Proposers ....................................................................................... 4039 
P.  Award of the Contract .................................................................................................................... 40 
Q.  Final Award ................................................................................................................................ 4140 
R.  Project Completion ..................................................................................................................... 4140 
Subchapter E - Special Procedures for Architectural/Engineering Services ...................................... 4342 
Subchapter F - Sole Source Procurements ........................................................................................ 4645 
Non-Competitive Procurement Justification Form .............................................................................. 4947 
Subchapter G - Single Bid or Proposal ............................................................................................... 5048 
Subchapter H - Emergency Procurements ......................................................................................... 5250 
Subchapter I - Unsolicited Proposals ................................................................................................. 5351 
Subchapter J - Amendments and Change Orders ............................................................................. 5453 
Subchapter K - Use of an Existing Contract ....................................................................................... 5655 
Subchapter L - Options ....................................................................................................................... 5756 
Subchapter M - Intergovernmental and Joint Procurement Agreements ........................................... 5857 
Subchapter N - Independent Cost Estimates ..................................................................................... 6058 
Independent Cost Estimate ................................................................................................................ 6159 
Subchapter O – Price or Cost Analysis .............................................................................................. 6260 
Cost Analysis Summary .......................................................................................................................... 63 

 
CHAPTER IV - PURCHASE ORDERS ...................................................................................................... 66 

A.  Purchase Order Process / Requirements .................................................................................. 6866 
B.  Types of Purchase Orders: ........................................................................................................ 6866 

1.  Contract Purchase orders (KPO) ..................................................................................... 6866 
2.  Purchase Orders (PO) ...................................................................................................... 6967 
3.  Purchase Invoice (PI) ....................................................................................................... 6967 

C.  Receipt of Goods/Service and Authorization to Pay .................................................................. 6967 
 
CHAPTER V - VENDOR PROTEST PROCEDURES ................................................................................ 68 

A.  Purpose ...................................................................................................................................... 7068 
B.  General ...................................................................................................................................... 7068 
C.  Definitions .................................................................................................................................. 7068 

Exhibit A



Foothill Transit Procurement Policies and Procedures 

 iv

D.  Grounds for Protest .................................................................................................................... 7169 
E.  Contents of Protest .................................................................................................................... 7169 
F.  Timing Requirements and Categories of Protests ..................................................................... 7270 
G.  Review of Protest by Foothill Transit ......................................................................................... 7270 
H.  Effects of Protest on Procurement Actions ................................................................................ 7371 
I.  Summary Dismissal of Protests ................................................................................................. 7472 
J.  Protest Decisions ....................................................................................................................... 7472 
K.  Judicial Appeals ......................................................................................................................... 7472 
L.  Federal Transit Administration Appeals (Only if Federal funds are used in the procurement) .. 7472 

 
CHAPTER VI - CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION ....................................................................................... 74 

A.  Contract Administration Guidelines ............................................................................................ 7674 
B.  Federal Procurement Requirements .......................................................................................... 7674 
C.  Bonding Requirements............................................................................................................... 7876 

1. Purpose ............................................................................................................................ 7876 
2.  Responsibility ................................................................................................................... 7876 
3.  Types of Bonds ................................................................................................................ 7976 

a.  Bid Guarantee ........................................................................................................ 7977 
b.  Performance ........................................................................................................... 7977 
c.  Payment.................................................................................................................. 7978 

4.  Procedures ....................................................................................................................... 8078 
5.  Forfeiting of Bonds ........................................................................................................... 8078 

D.  Insurance Requirements ............................................................................................................ 8078 
E.  Liquidated Damages .................................................................................................................. 8179 
F.  Indemnification ........................................................................................................................... 8180 
G.  Termination for Convenience ..................................................................................................... 8280 
H.  Dispute Resolution ..................................................................................................................... 8280 
I.  Project Control File ..................................................................................................................... 8280 
J.  Vendor File ................................................................................................................................. 8381 
K.  Types of Contracts and Payment Terms ................................................................................... 8482 

 

Exhibit A



Foothill Transit Procurement Policies and Procedures 
 

1 
 

INTRODUCTION 
  
Foothill Transit has major responsib ilities, which inc lude the o peration of a public  
transportation system and the pl anning, design and progra mming of transportation 
projects.  All co ntracts are awarded by Foothill Transit by its own procurement office, 
which is r esponsible for identifying the needs  of Foothill Transit and originating the 
procurement package for supplying those needs. 
  
Foothill Transit receives funding from both the Federal gover nment and the state.  
Therefore, Foothill Transit  adopts procurement policies and procedures that are 
consistent with Federal regulat ions and the laws of the St ate of California.  These 
procedures apply to all procurements irrespective  of the source of the funds.  Specific 
requirements for procurements funded by the Federal Transit  Administration are so 
identified.  These procedures apply to any revenue contract whose primary purpose is to 
either generate revenues in connection with a transit-related activity, or to create business 
opportunities utilizing a Federal Transit Administration-funded asset. 
  
The purpose of these policies and procedures is to set fo rth the procurement methods 
and establish standards for obtaining goods  and services, including construction,  
professional, and Architectura l/Engineering services necessa ry for the operation of 
Foothill Transit‘s transit service.  These procedures include guidelines for the solicitation, 
award and administration of fo rmally advertised contracts, as well as the consultant 
selection, negotiation, award and administr ation of competitively negot iated and 
Architectural/Engineering contracts Thes e procedures include guidelines for the 
solicitation, negotiation, award or selection, and administration of all contracts.. 
 
The procurement procedures are designed to: 
 

 Instill public confidence in the procurement process of Foothill Transit. 
 

 Ensure fair and equitable treatment for all vendors who seek to deal wit h 
Foothill Transit. 

 
 Ensure maximum open and free competition in the expenditure of public funds. 

 
 Provide the safeguards to mai ntain a procurement system of quality and 

integrity. 
 
The methods by whic h the foregoing are im plemented are desc ribed in detail in the 
remainder of this document and the attachments hereto.   
 
The procurement process is ongoing thr oughout the fiscal year.  During budget 
preparation, each department head should identify, to the extent possible, all goods and 
services that will need to be procured during the upcoming fiscal year (July 1 - June 30). 

Exhibit A



 

 2

CHAPTER I - LEVELS OF APPROVAL 
 
For all most procurements, with the exception of those using the informal process, there 
are two phases of the process that need to be approved: 
 

 Issuance of the solicitation document 
 
 Contract award 

 
Procurements that occur as the result of a micropurchase or  small purchase, or through 
the use of  cooperative purc hasing agreements such as the California Multiple Award 
Schedule (CMAS), or through a sole source do not utilize this process. 
 
In this chapter the levels set forth apply to both the approval of the issuance of t he 
solicitation document and the approval of the resulting contract.  

A. Goods and Services 
 
Procurements of services, supplies, or other property, with the exception of Architectural 
and Engineering services and public works/construction projects. 
 
 
 
Price Threshold Method of Procurement Required Approval Level 

Less than $5,000* Micro Purchase Department Directors  
 

$5,000-$20,000** Small Purchase Department Directors 

$20,000-$75,000 Small Purchase Executive Director 
$75,000-$100,000 RFP or IFB Executive Director 
Greater than $100,000 RFP or IFB Executive Board 

*Less than $3,000 when Federal Funds are used. 
**$3,000 - $20,000 when Federal Funds are used. 
 
Price Threshold 

Method of Procurement Required Approval Level 

Less than $5,000* 
$5,000 - $20,000** 

Micro Purchase 
Small Purchase 

Department Directors  
Department Directors 

$20,000 - $100,000 RFP or IFB Executive Director 
Greater than $100,000 RFP or IFB Executive Board 

*Less than $3,000 when Federal Funds are used. 
**$3,000 - $20,000 when Federal Funds are used. 
 

Formatte

Formatte

Formatte

Exhibit A



 

 3

Please note that Department Di rectors are not authorized to delegate their approval 
authority. 

B. Architectural and Engineering Services 
 
Procurement of professional consultants for engineering, architectural, land surveying or 
other support services, such as progr am management, construction management, 
feasibility studies, preliminary engineering, design, architectural, engineering, surveying, 
mapping, or related services as it relates to research, planning,  development, design, 
construction, alteration, or repair of r eal property.”Procurement of professiona l 
consultants for engineering, architectural, land surveying or other support services, such 
as program management, cons truction management, feasibi lity studies, preliminar y 
engineering and design which require performance by a registered or licensed architect 
or engineer. 
 
Price Threshold Method of Procurement Required Approval Level 
Less than $10,000 
$10,000 - $100,000 

RFQP  
RFQP 

Director of Facilities  
Executive Director 

Greater than $100,000 RFQP Executive Board 
 

C. Public Works/Construction Projects 
 
Procurements of labor and/or materials for construction or public works projects. 
 
For the purposes of this secti on, public works are defined in Article 3.5 of the California 
Public Contract code, which requires that  any public  works project over $6,500 be 
competitively bid.   Public works include construction of any facility or repair to any building 
but do not refer to the definition of Public Works  in California Labor Code 1720.    
 
Price Threshold Method of Procurement Required Approval Level 
Less than $6,500 Small Purchase  Director of Facilities 
$6,500 - $100,000 IFB Executive Director  
Greater than $100,000 IFB Executive Board 

 

D. Sole Source 
 
Procurement accomplished through solicitation or acceptance of a proposal from only one 
available source or solicitation of a number of sources in which competition is determined 
inadequate. 
 
Price Threshold Method of Procurement Required Approval Level 
Less than $20,000 
$20,000-$100,000  

Sole Source 
Sole Source 

Department Directors 
Executive Director  

Greater than $100,000 Sole Source Executive Board 

Formatte

Formatte

Formatte

Exhibit A



 

 4

 

E. Change Orders and Amendments 
  
Except as provided b elow, any amendmen ts and/or i ndividual change orders will be  
approved at the same price threshold as the underlying contract  (e.g., a change order of 
between $10,000 and $100,000 must be approved by the Exec utive Director; a change 
order of over $100,000 must be approved by the Executive Board.)    When the cumulative 
value of all amendments or change orders to a contract exceeds $10,000, all future 
individual amendments or change orders that increase the cost for that contract must be 
approved by the Exec utive Director.  When the cumulative value of all amendments or  
change orders to a contract exceeds $100,000, all future  individual amendments or 
change orders that increase the cost for that contract must be approved by the Executive 
Board (e.g., if there have  been four change orders for a c ontract totaling $90,000, and 
there is a fifth change order for $10,000, the fifth change or der and all future change 
orders must be approved by the Executive Board.)  For contracts with a value of over Five 
Million Dollars ($5,000,000), th e Executive Director is author ized to approve individ ual 
change orders with a value equal to five percent (5%) or less.  When the cumulative value 
of all change orders for such contracts exceeds  five percent (5%), all future individua l 
change orders for that contract must be approved by the Executive Board. 

F. Delegations 
 
Except as otherwise provided in these procedures and specifically in this Chapter 
related to levels of approval, all rights, powers, duties and authorities relating to the 
procurement of supplies, services and construction vested in the Executive Director are 
hereby delegated to the Deputy Executive Director.  Except as provided in these 
procedures, all rights, powers, duties and authorities delegated to the Deputy Executive 
Director are, in turn, delegated to the Director of Procurement. 
 
The Director of Procurement may delegate approval to the Director’s staff as necessary.  
However, approvals allowed only to the Executive Director, Deputy Executive Director 
or the Director of Procurement may not be delegated. 
 
The Executive Board is spec ifically authorized to exec ute approval authoriz ed at any 
level. 
 
The Executive Director and/or the Deputy Exec utive Director are specifically authorized 
to execute approvals delegated to the Director of Procurement. 
  

Formatte

Exhibit A



 

 5

 
CHAPTER II – POLICIES 

 
Foothill Transit is governed by a five-mem ber Executive Board.  Among ot her duties, 
Foothill Transit‘s Executive Board is responsible for establishing policies which guide the 
operation of Foothill Transit.  It is in that capacity t hat the Board adopted a set of 
procurement policies.  These polic ies serve as a base upon which pr ocurement 
procedures can be developed. 
  
Foothill Transit‘s Board has adopted related policies which serve to guide procurement 
activities.  Those policies are summarized in this Section. 

A. Revision of Procurement Procedures 
 
The Director of Procurement is responsible for updating and clarifying these procurement 
procedures on an as-needed basis.  All substantive changes to procurement policies shall 
be reviewed and approved by the Executive Board. 

B. Standards of Conduct and Conflict of Interest Policies 
 
There will be uniform and equitable application of  the Standards of C onduct of Foothill 
Transit involving all activities associated wi th the procurement of goods and services.   
This section defines responsibility to ident ify and prevent a real or apparent conflict of 
interest. 
 

1. Conflict of Interest 
 
No Executive Board member, employee of  Foothill Transit, nor any of his or her 
immediate family, partner, or organization that employs or is about to employ any 
of the foregoing may  participate in the sele ction, award, or ad ministration of a 
contract if a conflict of interest, real or apparent , would be involved No Executive 
Board Member or employee of Foothill Transit shall participate in the selection, or 
in the award or administrati on of the Contract if a conf lict of interest, real or 
apparent, would be involved. Such a conflict is determined in accordance with the 
Conflict of Interest Code adopted by the Foothill Transit Executive Board.  Such a 
conflict would arise when any of those previously listed has a financia l or other 
interest in the firm sel ected for award.   In cases where there may be a benefit, 
either direct or indirect, there is a respons ibility to report in writing such benefit to 
the Executive Board.  If anyone fails to report such benefit, he or she will be subject 
to any dis ciplinary proceeding deemed appr opriate by the Executive Board, 
including possible dismissal. 
 
Executive Board members and employee s of Foothill Transit shall be subject to 
the conflict of interest laws of the Stat e of California.  Anyone who violates  the 
standards of the law shall be subject to  the penalties, sanctions or other 
disciplinary actions provided for therein. 

Formatte

Exhibit A



 

 6

 
 
 
 

2. Gratuities, Kickbacks, and Contingent Fees 
 
No Executive Board member nor employee of Foothill Transit shall solicit, demand 
or accept from any person, contract or, potential contractor, or potential 
subcontractors, anything of a monetary value, including gifts, gratuities and favors 
except as the receipt and reporting of gifts is permitted by The Political Reform Act 
(Government Code Section 81000, et.seq.).  Anyone failing to adhere to the above 
will be subject to any disciplinary pr oceeding deemed appropriate by Foothill 
Transit, including possible dismissal. 
 
3. Confidential Information 
 
No Executive Board member nor employee of Foothill Transit shall use confidential 
information for his or her actual or antic ipated personal gain, o r the actual or 
anticipated personal gain of any other person related to them by blood, marriage,  
or by common commercial or financia l interest.  Anyone failing to adhere to the 
above will be subject to any disciplinary proceeding deemed appropriate by Foothill 
Transit, including possible dismissal. 
 
4. Organizational Conflict of Interest 
 
Each entity that enters into a contract wit h Foothill Transit is required, prior to 
entering into such contract, to i nform Foothill Transit of any real or apparent  
organizational conflict of interest.  Such organizational conflict of interest exist s 
when any of the following circumstances arise: 
 

a. Lack of Impartiality or Impaired Ob jectivity.  When the contractor is 
unable, or potentially  unable, to provide impartial and objective 
assistance or advice to Foothill Transit due to other activities, 
relationships, contracts, or circumstances. 

 
b. Unequal Access to Information.  The contractor has an unfair  

competitive advantage through obt aining access to nonpublic 
information during the performance of an earlier contract. 

 
c. Biased Ground Rules.  During the conduct of an earlier procurement 

or contract, the contractor has participated in establishinged the 
ground rules for a future procurement  by developing specifications , 
evaluation factors, or similar documents.  

Exhibit A



 

 7

C. Purchasing Policies 
 

1. Equal Employment Opportunity/Affirmative Action 
  
All procurement documents issued by Foothill Transit require all interested vendors 
to certify:  
  

a. That the vendor does not discr iminate against any employee or  
applicant for employment, because of race, religion, sex, age, creed, 
color, disability or national origin;  

 
b. That the vendor is in compli ance with all Exec utive Orders and 

Federal, State and local laws regar ding fair employment practices 
and non-discrimination in employment; and  

 
c. That the vendor agrees to demons trate positively and aggressively 

the principle of equal opportunity in employment. 
  
2. Disadvantaged Business Enterprise 
  

a. General Policy 
 

The Executive Board of Foothill Transit has determined as a matter  
of policy that whenever Federal  funds are used to support a 
procurement, disadvantaged business enterprises (DBEs), as 
defined in 49 C.F.R. Part 26, sha ll have the opportunity to compete 
fairly for contracts financed in whol e or in part with Federal funds.   
Accordingly, and as required by 49 C.F.R. Section 26.13, each prime 
contract signed by Foothill Trans it (and each subcontract the pri me 
contractor signs with a subcont ractor) must include t he following 
assurance: 

 
The contractor or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the 
basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance 
of this contract.  The contractor shall carry out applicable 
requirements of 49 C.F.R. Part 26 in the award and 
administration of U.S. DOT-assisted contracts.  Failure by the 
contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach 
of this contract, which may result in the termination of this 
contract or such other rem edy as Foothill Transit deems 
appropriate. 

 
b. Contract Goals 

 
Foothill Transit’s DBE Liaison Officer shall be responsible for 
determining whether to establis h a DBE goal for each Federally-

Exhibit A



 

 8

assisted contract.  The setting of  DBE contract goals shall be 
consistent with the provisions of 49 C.F.R. §§ 26.51(c) through (f). 

 
c. Contractor Compliance 
 

Proposers and bidders must take necessary and reasonable steps  
to ensure that DBEs have a fair opportunity to participate in the 
proposed contract and/or subcontra cts.  If a proposer or bidder 
qualifies as a certified DBE or is joint venturing with a certified DBE, 
a copy of the DBE certification( s), and a description of the dollar 
value of the proposed work that it  intends to perform with its own 
forces, together with a statement of  the percentage interest in the 
contract held by a joint ventur er DBE must be submitted with its 
proposal or bid.  If  a proposer or bidder intends to utilize DBE 
subcontractors, it must identify the subcontractors in its proposal or 
bid and set forth the percentage val ue of the work to be performed 
by the  subcontractors utilizing the “Designation of Subcontractors“ 
and “Designation of DBE Subcontractors“ forms which are included 
with each invitation for bids or request for proposals, as appropriate.   
 
In the event that Foothill Transit  has established a DBE goal for a 
contract, each proposer or bidder must, prior to contract award, 
document that it has obtained s ufficient DBE participation to meet  
the contract’s goal or document that it has made adequate good faith 
efforts to meet the goal, even though it did not succeed in obtaining 
enough DBE participation to do so.  In instances in which DBE 
subcontractors are utiliz ed to meet  a contract goal, a successfu l 
proposer will be required to submit  documentation with its init ial 
proposal as a matter of responsibility and a bidder will be required to 
submit documentation with its se aled bid as a matter of 
responsiveness.  In addition to t he information on the “Designation 
of DBE Subcontractors” form, thi s documentation must include (1) 
written documentation of the propos er’s or bidder’s commitment to 
use identified DBEs; and (2) written confirmation from the DBE that 
it is participating in the contract. 

 
d. Good Faith Efforts 

 
When a proposer or bidder indicates that it cannot meet a contract 
goal, its submitted documentation must also include evidence of  
good faith efforts undertaken by the proposer or bidder to achieve 
DBE participation suff icient to meet the goal.  For purposes of 
determining the adequacy of those e fforts Foothill Transit shall be  
guided by Appendix A to 49 C.F.R. Part 26.   

 
e. Tracking Participation 

Exhibit A



 

 9

 
Foothill Transit shall require cont ractors to submit  monthly reports 
identifying payments made to DBE firms.  

 
3. Veterans Employment.  Contractors working on a capital project fundeding 
using Federal assistance shall give a hiring preference, to the extent practicable, 
to veterans (as defined in 5 U. S. C. 2108) who have the requisite skills and abilities 
to perform the construction work requir ed under the contract.  This requirement 
shall not be understood, construed or enfor ced in any manner that would require 
an employer to give a preference to an y veteran over any equally qualified 
applicant who is a member of any racial or ethnic minority, female, an individual 
with a disability, or a former employee.  
 
4. Cooperative Procurement 

 
When circumstances warrant, Footh ill Transit may attempt to fill 
requirements through a cooperative pur chasing agreement with the State 
of California, the County of Los Angeles, or with other appropriate public or 
private cooperative procurement agencies.   

 
5. Open Competition Required 
 

All procurement transactions will be c onducted in a manner providing full 
and open competition.  Some of the sit uations considered to be restrictive 
of competition include, but are not limited to: 

a. Unreasonable requirements placed on firms in  order for them to 
qualify to do business. 

b. Unnecessary experience and excessive bonding requirements. 

c. Noncompetitive pricing practices between firms or between affiliated 
companies. 

d. Noncompetitive award to any person or firm on retainer contracts. 

e. The specification of only a brand name product without listing its 
salient characteristics and not allowing an equal pr oduct to be 
offered. 

f. Exclusionary or discriminatory specifications. 

g. Any arbitrary action in the procurement process. 

For each procurement, the Director of Procurement will prepare a memorandum 
indicating that the level of experienc e and bonding required for each contract is 
appropriate for the contract in question, and justifying the experience and bonding 
requirements for the contract. The Direc tor of Procurement will ensure that 

Exhibit A



 

 10

memorandum is included in the pr ocurement file.  In addition, Tt he Director of  
Procurement will monitor each procurement and document all of the steps taken 
during the procurement to ensure that t here are no arbitrary actions taken during 
the procurement process,  and that each solic itation document includes all 
requirements expected of bidders or offerors.   
 
6. Efficient and Economic Purchases 
 
The Director of Procurement will review all proposed procurements to ensure that 
that there are no purchases of unnecessary or duplicative items; and to determine 
whether it is necessary and/or appropriate to consider consolidating or breaking 
out procurements to obtain more ec onomical purchases. The Director of 
Procurement will, in consultatio n with the Director of Finance, examine major 
procurements to determine if it  is in Foothill Transit’s best interest to enter into a 
capital lease rather than to make a purchase.  

 
7. Public Records Act 
 
Ownership of Records – All Proposals or Bids received in response to Requests 
for Proposals become the exclusive property of Foothill Transit, except 
questionnaires and/ or financial statements submitted as part of a proposal, in 
accordance with California Public Utilities Code § 99154.  Such questionnaires 
and financial statements shall be returned to Proposers not selected for contract 
award by Foothill Transit within thirty (30) days after approval of award to the 
successful proposer by Foothill Transit’s Executive Board.  
 
Marking of Documents  -- Proposers and Bidders shall clearly designate and 
mark information deemed confidential, proprietary, or trade secret consistent with 
applicable California law.  Proposals or Bids that indiscriminately identify all or 
most of the Proposal as exempt from disclosure without justification will not be 
sufficient and shall not bind Foothill Transit in any way whatsoever. 

 
Public Records  --  At such time as a contract is awarded by Foothill Transit, all 
Proposals or Bids submitted in response to this RFP shall become a matter of 
public record and shall be regarded as public records, with the exception of those 
elements of each Proposal which are: (i) trade secrets as that term is defined in 
California Government Code § 6254.7(d) and which are so marked as trade 
secret, confidential, or proprietary; and (ii) any questionnaires and/or financial 
statements required and deemed to not be public records and not open to public 
inspection pursuant to California Public Utilities Code § 99154.  Foothill Transit 
will not disclose information marked proprietary, confidential or trade secret 
unless required to do so by law or legal process; provided, however, Foothill 
Transit may disclose such information to its legal and financial advisors as it 
deems necessary or appropriate. Foothill Transit shall not in any way be liable or 
responsible for the disclosure of any such records or portions thereof, including, 

Formatte

Formatte

Formatte

Formatte

Formatte

Formatte

Formatte

Formatte

Formatte

Formatte

Formatte

Formatte

Formatte

Exhibit A



 

 11

without limitation, those so marked as confidential,  proprietary, or trade secret, if 
disclosure is deemed required by law or by an order of a court.  
All proposals received in response to Requests for Proposals (RFP) become the 
exclusive property of Foothill Transit.  At  such time as a contract is awarded by 
Foothill Transit, all proposals submitted in response to RFPs shall become a matter 
of public record and shall be regarded as public records, with the exception of  
those elements of each Proposal which are trade secrets as that term is defined in 
California Government Code 6254.7 and  which ar e so marked as “TRADE 
SECRET,” “CONFIDENTIAL” or “PROPRIETARY.”  Foothill Transit shall not in any 
way be liable or responsible for the discl osure of any such records or portions 
thereof, including, without lim itation, those so marked if disclosure is deemed 
required by law or by an order  of a court.  Proposals t hat indiscriminately identify 
all or most of the Proposal as exempt from disclosure without justification may be 
found technically unacceptable.   
 
All bids received in response to Invitati on for Bids (IFB s) become the exclus ive 
property of Foothill Transit.  At such time as Foothill Transit publishes its Executive 
Board Agenda containing a recommended acti on concerning a contract award or  
at such time as Foothill Transit notifies a successful bidder if Board approval is not 
required, all bids submitted in response to  IFBs shall become a matter of public  
record and shall be regarded as public re cords, with the exception of those 
elements of each bid which ar e trade secrets as that term is defined in California 
Government Code 6254.7 and which are so marked as “ TRADE SECRET,” 
“CONFIDENTIAL” or “PROPRIETARY.”  Foothill Transit shall not in any way be 
liable or responsible for the disclosure of  any such records or portions thereof, 
including, without limitation, those so mark ed if disclosure is deemed required by 
law or by an order of a court.  Bids that indiscriminately identify all or most of the 
Bid as exempt from disclosure without justification may be found technically  
unacceptable. 
 
All bids will be posted on the Foothill Transit website at  the same time th at all 
bidders are notified of Foothill Transit’s proposed award of a contract to the lowest 
responsive and responsible bidder. 
  
8. Term Limitations—Rolling Stock Procurements 
 
The Director of Procurement will ens ure that the term of rolling stock 
procurements, including the exercise of options, funded with Federal funds will not 
exceed five (5) years. 
 
9. Revenue Contracts 
 
With the exception of leas e agreements for certain portions  of its Administrative 
Headquarters Facility, Foothill Transit does not enter into any revenue producing  
contracts.  Contracts with local municipa lities, wherein, Foothill Transit is 

Exhibit A



 

 12

reimbursed for goods and/or services provided are not considered revenue 
contracts. 
 
10. Escrow/Surety Deposits 
 
When it becomes necessary for Foothill Transit to place funds in excess of 
$500,000 into an escrow account or other fo rm of performance security for the 
purchase of land, buildings and other major assets, Foothill Transit will require the 
agency holding and or requesting these funds to guarantee in terest earning at a 
minimum rate equal to 80% of the current LA IF rate. In the event this rate canno t 
be guaranteed Foothill Transit will: 1) guarantee payment within four working days 
from the day the funds are requested. In the event Foothill Transit fails to fulfill this 
guarantee, Foothill Transit will compensate all related parties to the transaction for 
actual costs incurred because payment was received after the four working days; 
2) Secure a certificate of deposit (CD) in  Foothill Transit’s name in the amount of 
the required escrow/security deposit and surrender the CD to the agency requiring 
the deposit; or 3) Select an escrow agent that will guarantee Foothill Trans it an 
interest earning rate that is acceptabl e based on the terms and conditions at the 
time of the purchase. It will be at Foothill Transit’s option to select option 1, 2, or 
3. 

 
D. Procurement History 
 
An accurate written account of each procurement will be maintained by the Procurement 
Department, and the Director of Procurement will ensure that it is included in the official 
procurement file.  The Project Manager will complete a Procurement Initiation Form (see 
page i) for each procurement action, incl uding new procurements and all contrac t 
amendments, to initiate the procurement process.  A record of  procurement actions, i.e. 
Procurement History, will be initiated for all Invitation for Bids, Request for Proposals and 
Request for Qualifications, and Sole Source procurements.   Each Procurement history 
documentation will be updated as a procurem ent progresses and will be retained as a 
historical record of the procurement.  Procurement history includes, but is not limited to: 
 
 
 

 1. Rationale for the Method of Procurement 

The type of procurement to be used for a given project will be determined at the 
outset of the project through consulta tion between the Project Manager and the 
Director of Procurement.  A wr itten justification for the procurement type selected 
will be developed including a completed “Method of Procurement Matrix” (see page 
iii) set forth below.  
 
2. Contract Type 

 

Exhibit A



 

 13

The rationale for selecting the type of contract, fixed price or cost reimbursement, 
will be dev eloped by the Pr oject Manager, Director of  Procurement and le gal 
counsel, and will be recorded by the Director of Procurement. 

 

3. Contractor Selection 
 

Reasons for contractor selection or reje ction will be fully doc umented, including, 
but not limited to, evaluation criteria, re sponsiveness to the requirements of the 
solicitation, responsibility, or cost.  The Director of Procurement will fully document 
the selection process.  

 

4. Cost or Price Evaluation 

The cost of potential c ontracts will be evaluated and documented by the Project  
Manager, and compared to the Independent Cost Estimate required under Chapter 
III, Subchapter N.  The Direc tor of Procurement will e nsure that a cost or price 
analysis as required under Chapter III, Subchapter O is completed.  The Director 
of Procurement will ensure that appropriate document ation is include d in the 
procurement file. 
 

  

Exhibit A



 

 14

CHAPTER III – PROCUREMENT PROCEDURES 
 

 
Subchapter A - Procurement by Micro-Purchases 

 
A micro purchase is a procurement for goods or services (excluding public works projects) 
that total $5,000 or less, ($3,000 or less when Federal Funds are used).  Purchases below 
$5,000, ($3,000 or less when Federal Funds are us ed) shall may be made without 
obtaining competitive quotations if it is determined by the D epartment Director that the 
price is fai r and reasonable.  The splitting of procurement s to avoid competition is 
prohibited, and the Director of Procurement will review all micro purchases to ensure that 
prohibited splitting of procur ements has not taken plac e.  The Department Director will 
document how this determination was derived on the Purchase Order, if a Purchase 
Order is required.  Micro- purchases must be distribut ed equitably among qualified 
suppliers.  
 

 

Subchapter B - Small Purchases 
 
For procurements between $5,000 and $20,000, ($3,000 to $20,000 when Federal Funds 
are used) (public works constr uction projects valued at $6, 500 or less can be procured 
through the small purchase pr ocess), written quotations from three (3) vendors are 
required.  Oral quotes will be accepted wit h written confirmation required.  The  
responsibility for soliciting quotations rests with the Department Director.  Appropriat e 
documentation, including a list of the vendor s contacted, the quotes received, and a 
statement by the Department  Director that a determinat ion has been made by the 
Department Director that the price is fa ir and reasonable shall be included with the 
Purchase Order. If the lowest  bidder is not chosen, t he documentation will inclu de 
justification for the selection of other than t he lowest bidder.   Foothill Trans it may not 
divide or reduce the size of a procurement to avoid additional procurement requirements 
applicable to larger acquisitions. 
  
  

Formatte

Exhibit A



 

 15

Subchapter C - Invitation for Bids (IFB) 
 

A. General   
 

The Invitation for Bids (IFB) competitive procurement process is used for public  
works/construction projects, and, if appropriate, purchases of goods and services 
whose cumulative value will exceed $20,000.  The IFB process is coordinated by 
the Director of Procurement. 

 
B. Use 
 

The IFB method of procurement is employed when all of the following apply: 

1. A clear and accurate description of  the technical requirements for the 
material, product, or service to be proc ured is available in a manner that 
provides for full and open competition. 

2. Two or more responsible sup pliers are willing a nd able to compete 
effectively for the contract. 

3. The procurement lends itself to a firm, fixed-price contract.  A firm fixed price 
contract is usually awarded in writ ing to the lowest responsive and 
responsible bidder, but a fixed pr ice incentive contract or inclusion of an 
economic price adjustment provision can be appropriate.  When specified 
in the bidding documents, factors such as transportation costs and life cycle 
costs affect the determination of the lowest bid; payment discounts are used 
to determine the low bid only when prio r experience indicates that such 
discounts are typically taken. 

4. Selection of the successful bidder can be made on the basis of price and 
those price-related factors listed in the solicitation including, but not limited 
to, transportation costs, life cycle costs, and discounts expected to be taken. 

5. Discussions with one or more bidder s after bids have been submitted are 
expected to be unnecessary because awa rd of the contract will be made 
based on price and price-related factors alone. 

C. Scope of Work and Specifications 
 

The Project Manager shall provide the Director of Procurement with the scope of 
work and specifications for each solicitation.  The following general rules apply to 
scopes of work and specifications: 

1. A common basis for bidding must be provided.  Specifications and scopes 
of work should set out the minimum essential characteristics and standards 
of the items or services to be procur ed.  Whenever possible, the expected 

Exhibit A



 

 16

quality of services to be provided or the performance characteristics of the 
item should be specified. 

2. Specifications and scopes of work s hould not call for features or quality 
levels which are not necessary to meet the bid requirements. 

3. All optional items should be identi fied by the Project Manager, and the 
solicitation documents should set forth the expected needs and the manner 
in which the related bid prices will be considered. 

4. In order to foster free and open competition, specifications may not require 
a “brand name“ product without allowing an “or equal“ product to be offered.  
When it is  impractical or uneconomic al to write a clear and accurate 
description of the technical requirements of the goods or services required, 
a “brand name or equal” description may be used to define the performance 
or other salient characteristics of the goods or services sought.  The specific 
features or salient characteristi cs of the named brand which must be met 
by offerors of “an equal” bid must be clearly stated.  

5. Because standard specifications and requirements allow for more efficient 
operations and result in lower pric es, they should be used wherever  
suitable.  Maximum use should be m ade of industry, Federal, State and 
local government specifications and requirements.     

D. Issuance of IFB 
 

 For any project that is estimated to cost over $100,000, the Executive Board must 
approve the issuance of an Invitation for Bi ds (IFB).  The Project Manager shall 
prepare the Board Report seeking authorization to issue the IFB.  All IFBs will be 
prepared by the Procurement Department, will be advertised on Foothill Transit’s 
web-site, and, must be published in a newspaper of general circulation, including, 
but not limited to trade publicatio ns, in sufficient time prio r to the date set for bid 
closing.  The notice must include the following minimum information: 

1. A general description of the services or goods to be purchased. 

2. Where to receive an IFB. 

3. The location, day and time of the Pre-Bid Conference (If one is scheduled). 

4. The location, last day and hour bids will be accepted (deadline). 

5. Bid Acceptance Period. 

6. Whether Federal funds are being used for the procurement. 
 

Exhibit A



 

 17

E. IFB Packet 
 

The Director of Procurement or designee wil l coordinate the release of the IFB 
packet.  The IFB packet will include the following: 

1. Instructions To Bidders – General in structions concerning the bid format, 
pre-contractual expenses, contract conditions, pre-bid conferences, and 
other information including language stating that because bids can at times 
be ambiguous, Foothill Transit reserves  the right to request addition al 
information before making an award and al so reserves the right to seek 
clarification from any bi dder about any statement in  its bid that Foothil l 
Transit finds ambiguous. 

2. Submittal Documents – Required forms  to be complete by the bi dder and 
submitted with the bid. 

3. Exhibits - These can be documents which display key facts, specifications, 
maps, report formats, and other important information to clearly define the 
goods or services needed in order for the bidders to properly respond to the 
IFB. 

4. General Terms and Conditions. 

5. Special Terms and Conditions – Pr ovisions unique to each IFB, if 
applicable, will be included (e.g., special terms of the resulting contract; any 
modifications to general terms and c onditions; milestones; and special 
payments procedures). 

F. Control Record 

1. A control record will be maintained by the Procurement Department as IFB 
packets are distributed to prospective bidders.  The control record profiles 
the following information: 

a. Date and time IFB packets are distributed. 

b. Names and addresses of bidders receiving bid inv itations and 
attending pre-bid conferences. 

2. The control record has two primary purposes: 

a. Serves as a mailing list for the issuance of addenda. 

b. Provides a record for verificati on in cases of vendor protests and 
other issues. 

G. Pre-Bid Conference 
 

Exhibit A



 

 18

A pre-bid conference may be used as a means of briefing prospective bidders and 
explaining specifications and requirements to them as early as possible after the 
invitation has been issued and before the bids are opened.  The pre-bid conference 
will not be used as a substitute for amendi ng a defective or ambiguous invitation.  
Unless otherwise specified in the IFB documents, attendance by potential bidders 
is not mandatory.  Minutes of the conference and the list of attendees will be issued 
to prospective bidders. 
 
The pre-bid conference shall be chair ed by the Director of Procurement or  
designee, and shall follow the format below: 

1. Discussion on basic requirements such  as instructions to the bidders, 
funding, contract type, and specific points that should be addressed in each 
proposal. 

2. Discussion on the participation r equirements for disadvantaged business  
enterprises (DBE), if applicable. 

3. Discussion on the scope of work and have the Project Manager available to 
answer technical questions. 

4. Provide project schedule. 

H. Addendum to Invitation for Bids 
 

If after issuance of an IFB, but before the time set for opening of bids, it becomes 
necessary to make changes in quantities, specifications, opening dates, etc., or to 
correct or clarify a defective or ambiguous IFB, such changes sha ll be 
accomplished by the issuance, in writing,  of an addendum to the IFB.  Be fore 
issuing an addendum to an IFB, the period of time remaining until the time set for 
bid submittal and the need for extending this time must be considered.  Where only 
a short time remains, consideration should be given to notifying prospective 
bidders of an extension of time by email, facsimile or telephone.  Such notification 
should be confirmed in the addendum.  T he addendum shall be sent to each 
prospective bidder to whom the IFB was furnished or to any prospective bid der 
who attended any site visit and/or pre-bid conference and shall provide: 

1. Addendum number and date. 

2. Number, date and the title of the IFB concerned. 

3. Clearly stated changes made in the IFB and the extension of the opening 
date, if applicable. 

4. Instructions to bidders for ackn owledging receipt of the addendum and 
information concerning the effect of failure to acknowledge and return the 
addendum. 

Exhibit A



 

 19

I. Cancellation of IFB 
 
Invitations for bids shall not be canceled unless cancellation is clearly in Foothill 
Transit’s interest (i.e., where there is no longer a requirement for the material or 
service, or where amendments to the invitation would be of such magnitude that a 
new invitation is desirable).  When an invitation is canceled, bids which have been 
received shall be returned unopened to the bidders and a notice of cancellation 
shall be sent to all prospective bidders to whom invitations for bids were issued. 
  
The notice of cancellation shall identify the invitation for bids; briefly explain the 
reason the invitation is being canceled; and, where appropriate, assur e 
prospective bidders that they w ill be gi ven an opportunity to bid on an y re-
solicitation of bids or any further requirements for the ty pe of material or service 
involved. 
 
If the invitation for bids is canceled before the time for bid openings, this fact shall 
be recorded in the control file, with a statement of the number of entities invited to 
bid and the number of bids received. 

J. Receipt of Bids 
  
Bids shall be submitted so as to be received at the location designated in the 
invitation for bids not later than the exact time set for the receipt of bids.  The only 
acceptable evidence to establish the time of receipt at Foothill Transit’s offices is 
the time/date stamp of Foothill Tr ansit, which shall be placed on the bid wra pper 
immediately upon receipt.  The Foothill Transit staff person receiving the bid shall 
sign the exterior of the bid package to verify the date and time received and person 
receiving the bid. The timelines s of bids is the sole responsibility of the bidder.  
Bids received after this specified date and time shall be considered late and shall 
not be considered for evaluation.  Late Bids shall be returned to the sender 
unopened. 

K. Withdrawal of Bids 
  
Any bidder may withdraw their bid, either personally or by written request, received 
by Foothill Transit, at any ti me prior to the time fixed for the receipt of the bids. 
Negligence on the part of Bidders in pr eparing their bid confers no right of 
withdrawal of their bid after such bid has been opened. No bid may be withdrawn 
for the time period specifically set forth in each invitation for bids. 

 
  

Exhibit A



 

 20

L. Bid Opening 
  
Upon receiving the bids, it is the Director of Procurement or designee’s  
responsibility to record their receipt and keep them unopened and secure, except  
as stated below. 
 
Prior to bid opening, information concerni ng the identity and number of bids  
received shall be made available only to Foothill Transit representatives who have 
a proper need for such information, as determined by the Director of Procurement. 
 
Unidentified bids may be opened solely for the purpose of identification and then 
only by the Director of Procurement.  If  a sealed bid is opened by mistake or for 
purposes of identification, the Director of Procurement shall immediately write on 
the envelope an explanation of the openi ng, the date and time opened, the 
invitation for bid num ber, and their signat ure.  Bids opened by  mistake or for 
identification purposes shall be reseal ed in the envelope and no information 
contained therein shall be disclosed prior to the public bid opening. 
  
The Director of Procurement  or designee shall decide when the time set for bid 
opening has arrived and shall so declare to those present. 
 
All bids received prior to the time set for receipt shall then be publicly opened and 
when practical, read aloud by the Directo r of Procurement or  designee to the 
persons present.  The bids received shall be re corded.  If it is impractical to read  
the entire bid, as where many items are involved, the total amount of the bid shall 
be read. 
 
A second Foothill Transit representative shall be pres ent to witness the opening 
and reading of the bids and, along with t he Director of Procurement or designee, 
shall sign the recording document to verify its accuracy. 
 
The original of each bid shall be care fully safeguarded, particularly until the 
abstract of bids has been made and its accuracy verified. 
 
The original bid form shall not be a llowed to pass out of the hands of the 
Department.  The original bids may not be removed from the Procurement 
Department office except for official review and evaluation by Foothill Transit legal 
counsel.  A copy of each bid must be maintained in Foothill Transit’s procurement 
files in lieu of such originals for the interim period. 
 
All bids will be open to public  review in  accordance with th e provisions of 
Paragraph C. 6 of Chapter I, and will be po sted on the Foothill Transit webs ite at 
the same time that all bidders are notified of Foothill Transit’s proposed award of 
a contract to the lowest responsive and responsible bidder.  All bids, inc luding 
attachments and envelopes, shall be retained for the official files. 
  

Exhibit A



 

 21

M. Recording of Bids 
  

The invitation for bid number, bid opening date and time, general description of the 
procurement item, names of bidders, prices bid, and any other information required 
for bid evaluation, shall be entered on the o fficial Foothill Transit record and shall 
be available for public  inspection.  When the items are too numerous to warrant 
the recording of all bids completely, an entry shall be made of the invitation 
number, opening date and time, general description of the procurement items, and 
the total price bid where definite quantities are involved. 
 
The official record shall be com pleted as soon as practical after bids have been 
opened and read aloud. The Di rector of Procurement shall be responsible for 
maintaining files of these records and abstracts and will post the tabulation of bids 
on the Foothill Trans it website within 48 hoursa reasonable time period  after bid 
opening. 
 
The file of the invitation for bids shall show the distribution that was made and the 
date thereof.  The names and addresses of  prospective bidders  requesting the 
invitation for bids who were not included on the original solic itation list shall be 
added and made a part of the record. 

N. Tabulation of Bids 
  

Bids shall be evaluated on the basis of responsiveness and responsibility indicated 
in the Invitation for Bids. Award shall be made to the bidder submitting the lowest  
bid, unless Foothill Transit determines t hat the bid is not responsive and/or the 
bidder is found to be not responsible. 

O. Mistakes in Bids 

1. General.  Technicalities or minor irregularities in bids are waived if the 
Director of Procurement determines that it shall be in Foothill Transit’s best 
interest.  The Direct or of Procurem ent shall either  give a bidder an 
opportunity to cure any deficiency resu lting from a tech nicality or minor 
irregularity in its bid,  or waive the deficiency if it is to Foothill Transit’s 
advantage to do so. 

2. Mathematical Errors.  Errors in extension of unit prices or in mathematical 
calculations shall be corrected by Foothill Transit prior to award.  In all cases 
of errors in mathematical computation, the unit prices shall not be changed. 

3. Mistakes Discovered Before Opening .  A bidder can correct mistakes  
discovered before the time and date set for bid opening by withdrawing the 
original bid and submitting a new bid prior to the time and date set forth for 
bid opening. 

Exhibit A



 

 22

4. Confirmation of Bid.  If the Director of Procurement knows or has reason to 
conclude that a mistake has been made,  the bidder shall be requested to 
confirm the bid.  Situations in whic h confirmation will be requested include 
obvious, apparent errors on the face of the bid, or a bid unreasonably lower 
than the other bids submitted.  If the bidder alleges mistake, the bid will be 
corrected or withdrawn if any of the following conditions are met: 

a. If the mistake and the intended correction are clearly evident on the 
face of the bid document, the bid shall be corrected to the intended 
correct bid and must not be withdrawn.   Examples of mistakes that 
may be clearly evident on the fa ce of the bid document are 
typographical errors, errors in ext ending unit prices, transpositio n 
errors, and arithmetical errors. 
 

b. A bidder will be permitted to withdraw a low  bid if: 

i. A mistake is clearly evident on the face of the bid document 
but the intended correct bid is not similarly evident; or 

ii. The bidder submits proof of evidential value, which clearly and 
convincingly demonstrates that a mistake was made. 

c. Determination Required. When a bi d is corrected or withdrawn, or 
correction or withdrawal is denied, the Director of Procurement shall 
prepare a determination showing t hat the relief was  granted or 
denied. 

P. Minor Irregularities in Bids 

1. A minor irregularity is one which is merely a matter of form and not of  
substance or pertains to some i mmaterial or inconsequential defect or 
variation in a bid from the exact require ment of the solicitation.  If such a 
situation exists, the correction of the irregularity or waiver of the requirement 
will be made if it would not be prejudicial to other bidders. 

2. A defect or variation in a bid is  considered immaterial and inconsequential 
when its significance as to price, quantity, quality or delivery is trivial. 

3. The Director of Procurement shall ei ther give the bidder an opportunity to 
cure any deficiency resulting from minor  informality or irregularity in a bid, 
or waive the deficiency, whichever is to the advantage of Foothill Transit.  

Q. Multiple or Alternate Bids 
 

Unless multiple or alternate bids are requested in  the solicitation, these bids will 
not be accepted.  However, if a bidder cl early indicates a base bid, it shall be 
considered for award as though it were the only bid submitted by the bidder.  These 

Exhibit A



 

 23

provisions shall be set forth in the solicitation and, if multiple or alternate bids are 
allowed, it shall specify their treatments. 

 

R. Analysis of Limited Bid Response 
  

If less than three bids have been receiv ed, the Director of Procurement may 
examine the reasons for the small number of bids received.  The purpose of this 
examination is to ascertain whether the small number of responses is attributable 
to an absence of any of the prerequisites of  formal advertising.  A price or cost 
analysis may be performed to establish the reasonableness of the bid price before 
an award is made. 

S. Determination of Responsiveness 
 

1. Any bid which fails to conform to the essential requirements of the invitation 
for bids, such as specifications, delivery schedule, warranty, or the required 
bid documents, shall be rejected as non-responsive. 

 
2. A bid shall be rejected when the bidder imposes conditions,  which that 

modify requirements of the invitation fo r bids.  Bids may be rejected in 
cases, including but not limited to those in which the bidder: 

a. Attempts to protect itself agains t future changes in c onditions such 
as increased costs, if a total pr ice to Foothill Tran sit cannot be  
determined for bid evaluation. 

b. Fails to state a price and in lieu thereof states that price shall be 
“price in effect at time of delivery.” 

c. States a price but qua lifies such price as be ing subject to “price in 
effect at time of delivery.” 

d. Where not authorized by the invitation for bid, conditions or qualifies 
the bid by stipulating that the bid is to be considered only if, prior to 
date of award, bidder received (or does not receive) award under a 
separate procurement. 

e. Limits rights of Foothill Transit under any contract clause. 

f. Fails to comply with all of the requirements of the IFB. 

g. Fails to furnish a bid bond in accordance with the requirement of the 
invitation for bids. 

3. The originals of all rejected bids, and any  written findings with respect to such 
rejections, shall be preserved in the file relating to the procurement. 

Exhibit A



 

 24

 
4. After submitting a bid, if a bidder transfers all of his assets or the part of his assets 

related to the bid during the period between the bid opening and the award, Foothill 
Transit may accept or reject the bid at its sole discretion. 

T. Responsible Bidder Evaluation 
  

1. Before awarding the contract, Foothill Transit shall determine that a 
prospective contractor is responsible  and that prices are reasonable.   
Bidders may be asked to provide any information required to determine the 
responsibility of the bidder.  A res ponsible bidder is one who m eets the 
standards set forth below: 

  

a. Has adequate financial resour ces, or the ability to obtain such 
resources as required during performance of the contract. 

b. Has a satisfactory record of integrity and business ethics. 

c. Is neither debarred nor suspended from State or Federal programs. 

d. Is able to comply with the r equired or proposed deliv ery or 
performance schedule, taking into consideration all existing business 
commitments. 

e. Is in compliance with applic able licensing and tax laws and 
regulations. 

f. Has a satisfactory record of performance.  The contractor must have 
sufficient key personnel with ade quate experience, a parent firm (if 
appropriate) with adequate resour ces and experienc e, and key 
subcontractors with adequate experi ence and past performance.   
The contractor must have sufficient  past experience in carrying out  
similar work with particular attention to management  approach, 
staffing, timeliness, technical success, budgetary controls, and other 
specialized considerations as described in Fo othill Transit’s 
solicitation.  Contractors who are, or have been seriously deficient in 
current or recent contract pe rformance, when the number of 
contracts and the extent of defic iency of each are considered is  
presumed to be non-responsible.   Documented past unsatisfactory 
performance will ordinarily be suffici ent to justify a finding of non-
responsibility. 

g. Is otherwise qualifie d and eligible to rec eive an award under 
applicable laws and regulations.  In addition, the contractor’s integrity 
and compliance with public policy will be examined.  

Exhibit A



 

 25

h. Has the necessary organization, experience, operational controls, 
and technical skills, or the ability to obtain them. 

i. Has the necessary production, construction, and technical 
resources, equipment and facilities, or the ability to obtain them. 

i.j. Is Registered with appropriate entities so that contractor is eligible to 
receive public funds.  This includes, but is not limited to, public works 
contractor registration with the California D epartment of Industrial 
Relations. 

2. Evaluation of the resp onsibility of prospective c ontractors may be made  
based upon the following sources: 

  
a. A list of debarred, suspended or inel igible firms or indiv iduals.  The 

Federal System for Award M anagement, or other system as 
determined by the Federal g overnment, will be examined to 
determine if a prospective cont ractor has been debarred or 
suspended. 

 
b. From the prospective contractor‘s bids an d proposals, replies to 

questionnaires, financial data suc h as balance sheets, profits and 
loss statements, cash forecasts,  and financial hist ories of the 
contractor and affiliated concer ns; current and past production  
records, list of tools, equipment, and facilities, written statements or 
commitments concerning financ ial assistance and s ubcontracting 
arrangements. 

 
c. Publications, including credit ra tings, trade and financial journals, 

and business directories and registers may also be used. 
 
d. References such as suppliers, subcontractors, customers of the 

prospective contractor, banks and financial institutions, commercial 
credit agencies, other governmen t agencies, purchasing and trade 
associations, and better business bureaus and chamber of 
commerce. 

 
e. Documented past performance on contracts with Foothill Transit. 

 
  f. Appropriate websites containing information concerning the   
   responsibility of prospective contractors. 
 
  g. If appropriate, it will be determined, through utilization of the   
   California State Licensing Board website, whether a prospective  
   contractor possesses required licenses. 
 

Exhibit A



 

 26

  h. If appropriate, prospective contractors will be required to provide  
   financial information to determine if the contractor has financial  
   resources adequate to perform the contract, or the ability to obtain  
   them. 
 
  i. The past performance of prospective contractors will be checked by 
   contacting references using a list of standard questions, and   
   responses will be documented. 
 
  j. In certain cases, such as bus procurements, site visits will be  
   conducted to validate the manufacturing capabilities of the   
   prospective contractor. 
 

3.  The Director of Procurement in c onsultation with the Project Manager will 
be responsible for preparing the responsibility findings and will ensure that 
documentation of the findings is included in the procurement file. 

 
4. The Director of Procurement will ens ure that no contract is recommended  

for award nor execut ed until the c ontractor has been determined to be 
responsible. 

5.  The Director of Proc urement will ens ure that t he form set forth below is 
utilized and completed by the Proj ect Managers for each procurement 
action undertaken by Foothill Transit.  The Director of Procurement will also 
ensure that the completed form is included in the procurement file. 

  

Exhibit A



 

 27

 

 Responsibility Determination Form 
 

Bid/RFP No:   _______________________________   

Supplier:   _______________________________   

Date:   _______________________________   

For each of the areas described below, check that the appropriate research has been 
accomplished and provide a short description of the research and the results. 

  Acceptable  Comment 

1. Appropriate financial, 
equipment, facility, and 
personnel 

 Yes     No  ___________________________
___________________________
___________________________
___________________________
 

2. Ability to meet the delivery 
schedule 

 Yes     No  ___________________________
___________________________
___________________________
___________________________
 

3. Satisfactory period of 
performance 

 Yes     No  ___________________________
___________________________
___________________________
___________________________
 

4. Satisfactory record of integrity, 
not on declined or suspended 
listings 

 Yes     No  ___________________________
___________________________
___________________________
___________________________
 

5. Receipt of all necessary data 
from supplier 

 Yes     No  ___________________________
___________________________
___________________________
___________________________
 

 

Exhibit A



 

 28

  
U. Rejection of All Bids 

1. Any time prior to the bid opening date and time, Foothill Transit may cancel 
or postpone the bid opening, or cancel the IFB in its entirety.  

2. Preservation of the integrity of the competitive bid system dictates that after 
bids have been opened, award must be made to that responsible bidder  
who submitted the lowest responsive bid, unless there is compelling reason 
to reject all bids and cancel the invitation. 

3. Every effort shall be made to antici pate changes in a requirement prior to 
the date of bid opening and to notify all prospective bidders of any resulting 
modification or cancellation, thereby permitting bidders to change their bids 
and preventing unnecessary exposure of bid prices. 

4. As a general rule, after opening, an invitation for bids should not be 
canceled and re-advertised due solely  to increased requirements for the 
items being procured.  Award should be made on the invitation for bids and 
the additional quantity should be treated as a new procurement. 

5. Invitations for bids may be canceled after opening but pr ior to award, and 
all bids rejected, where it is consistent with Federal and State procurement 
regulations.  A written determination mu st be included in the invitation for  
bid file stating that cance llation is in the best interest  of Foothill Transit for 
reasons such as the following: 

a. Inadequate, ambiguous, or otherwise defic ient specifications were 
cited in the invitation for bids. 

b. The supplies or services are no longer required. 

c. The invitation for bids did not prov ide for consideration of all factors 
of cost to Foothill Transit. 

d. Bids received indicat e that th e needs of Foothill Transit can be 
satisfied by a less expensive item differing from that on which bids 
were received. 

e. All otherwise acceptable bids received are at unreasonable prices. 

f. The bids were not independently arrived at in open competition, were 
collusive, or were submitted in bad faith.  Such situation must be 
substantiated and reported to Foothill Transit’s legal counsel. 

g. The bids received did not prov ide competition which was adequate 
to ensure reasonable prices.  A pr ice or cost analysis may be used 
to establish the reasonableness of prices. 

Exhibit A



 

 29

6. When it is determined  to reject all bids, Foothill Transit  shall notify each 
bidder that all bids have been rejected and state the reason for such action. 

V. Rejection of Individual Bids 
 

1. Any bid which fails to conform to the essential requirements of the invitation 
for bids, such as specifications, delivery schedule, warranty, or the required 
bid documents, shall be rejected as non-responsive. 

 
2. A bid shall be rejected where the bidder imposes conditions which modify 

requirements of the invitation for bids.  For example, bids may be rejected 
in which the bidder: 

 
a. Attempts to protect himself against future changes in conditions such 

as increased costs, if a total pr ice to Foothill Tran sit cannot be  
determined for bid evaluation. 

 
b. Fails to state a price and in lieu thereof states that price shall be 

“price in effect at time of delivery.” 
 
c. States a price but qua lifies such price as be ing subject to “price in 

effect at time of delivery.” 
 
d. Where not authorized by the invitation for bid, conditions or qualifies 

the bid by stipulating that the bid is to be considered only if, prior to 
date of award, bidder received (or does not receive) award under a 
separate procurement. 

 
e. Limits rights of Foothill Transit under any contract clause. 
 
f. Fails to comply with all of the requirements of the IFB. 

 
g. Bids received from any person or firm debarred or ineligible shall be 

rejected if the period of debarment or ineligibility has not expired. 
 

h. Low bids r eceived from firms determined to be not responsible 
pursuant to Federal or  State procurement r egulations shall be 
rejected in accordance with the procedures set forth in this Chapter. 

 
i. A bid may be rejected if a bid guarantee is required and a bidder fails 

to furnish it in accordance with the requirement of the invitation for 
bids. 

 
3.  The originals of all rejected bids, and any written findings with r espect to 

such rejections, shall be preserved in the file relating to the procurement. 
 

Formatte

Exhibit A



 

 30

4.  After submitting a bid, if a bidder transfers all of his assets or that part of his 
assets related to the bid during the period between the bid opening and the 
award, the transferee may not  take over the bid, t hus Foothill Transit may 
reject the bid. 

W. Award of the Contract 
 

Unless all bids are rejected, award shall be by written notice, within the time for 
acceptance specified in the bid or ext ension thereof, to t he responsible and 
responsive bidder whose bid, conforming to  all the material terms and conditions  
of the IFB, is the lowest in price. 
 
When award is made to other than the lo west bidder, the lowest bidder will b e 
notified in writing by Foothill Trans it of any evidence reflecting upon the 
responsibility of the bidder and affording the bidder the opportunity to rebut such 
evidence and present evidence of qualifications to perform the contract. 
 
Notice of award shall be made by over-night  delivery, email, or  facsimile to the 
successful bidder.  In additio n, Foothill Transit will notif y all unsuccessful bidders 
of its intent to award a contract to the successful bidder at the same time it notifies 
the successful bidder if Boar d approval is not required, and at the same time as  
the publication of the Board agenda if Board approval is required.  Notification to 
unsuccessful bidders will be made by over-night delivery, email, or facsimile.  Bid 
bonds will be returned to unsuccessful bidder s in a reasonable period of time,but 
in no event shall that security be held by the district beyond 60 days from the time 
the award is made, “, except with the consent of the affected bidder.Bid bonds will 
be returned to unsuccessful bidders withi n three (3) business days after contract 
award. 

X. Final Award 
  

If Executive Board approval is required fo r the selection of the contractor, the 
Project Manager shall prepare the board report, in consultation with the Director of 
Procurement, that identifies all bidders respondin g to the IFB, and describes the 
procurement and bid evaluation processes.  The board report should describe the 
services or goods being procured. 
 
The contract will may be drafted reviewed by legal counsel who will ensure that 
the contract will not include any terms or conditions to be negotiated in the future.  
The Director of Procurement will ensure th at any contract addressing such terms 
and/or conditions will not be executed. The Director of Procurement will en sure 
that the contract is executed at the approval level required in these procedures. 
 
Two original signed copies of each contra ct will be e xecuted by Foothill Transit  
and the contractor.  The Procurement Department will maintain one original of the 
contract for the procurement  file and distribute one origin al to the contractor.  

Formatte

Formatte

Formatte

Exhibit A



 

 31

Copies will be distributed to legal counsel, the procur ement file, and the project 
manager.   

Y. Project Completion 
 

All original documentation re lated to each procurement such as the IFB, Bid,  
control record, board report, background dat a, evaluation criteria and s cores, 
meeting reports/notes, as well as the logs documenting bid opening dates and bid 
receipt dates will be submitted to the Director of Procurement for storage when the 
file becomes inactive. For audit purposes, complete files will be maintained  for a 
minimum of four years after the proj ect is closed out  and completed unles s a 
different time period is mandated by a funding entity. 

Exhibit A



 

 32

Subchapter D - Request for Proposals (RFP) 
 

A. General 
 

The Request for Proposals (RFP) process is  used in the procurement of services 
(see Section E, subsection c, item iii fo r the procurement of architectural and 
engineering services) or when conditions are not appropriate for the use of an IFB.  
The latter is generally the case when t he goods or services to be acquired are 
described in a performance or functional specification; or if described in detailed 
technical specifications, other circumstances such as the need for discussions or 
the importance of basing contract awar d on factors other t han price alone are 
present.  RFPs are generally  used for the purchase of services such as l ease 
agreements, maintenance and service contracts, rental contracts and professional 
service contracts. The RFP process is coordinated by the Director of Procurement. 

B. RFP Contents 
 

The RFP process is a competitive negotia ted procurement process that requires 
evaluation of offeror’s proposed cost s and understanding of the contract  
performance requirements in accordance with established evaluation criteria.  The 
competitive negotiated procurement process does not require award to the lowest 
offeror.  An RFP generally includes: 
 
1. Project background. 
2. Purpose of the engagement. 
3. General firm qualifications desired. 
4. Scope of work. 
5. Project schedule. 
6. Proposal requirements. 
7. Criteria for selection. 
8. Payment terms. 

C. Issuance of RFP  
 

For any project that is estimated to cost over $100,000, the Executive Board must 
approve the issuance of a Request for Pr oposals (RFP).  The P roject Manager 
shall prepare the Board Report seeking appro val of the issuance of the RFP.  All 
RFPs will be prepared by the Procurement Department, will be advertised o n 
Foothill Transit’s web-site, and, mu st be published in a newspaper of general 
circulation, including, but not limited to trade publications, in sufficient time prior to 
the date set for receipt of proposals.  The Director of Procurement will ensure that 
the RFP is made available to an adequate number of qua lified sources to ensure 
fair and open competition. The notice must include the followin g minimum 
information: 
 

Exhibit A



 

 33

1. A general description of the services or goods to be purchased. 
2. Where to receive an RFP. 
3. The location, day and time of the Pre-Proposal Conference (If one is held). 
4. The location, last day and hour proposals will be accepted (deadline). 
5. Whether Federal funds are being used for the procurement. 

D. RFP Packet 
 

The Director of Procurement or designee will coordinate the release of the RFP 
packet.  The RFP packet will include the following: 

1. Instructions To Proposers  - General instructions concerning the proposal 
format, pre-contractual expens es, contract conditions, pre-proposal 
conferences, and other information, incl uding, but not l imited to language 
stating that because offers can at ti mes be ambiguous, Foothill Transit 
reserves the right to request additional information before making an award 
and also reserves the right to seek clarification from any proposer about any 
statement in its offer that Foothill Transit finds ambiguous. 

2. Attachments - Required forms to be completed by the proposer and 
submitted with the proposal. 

3. Exhibits - These can be documents which display key facts, specifications, 
maps, report formats, and other important information to clearly define the 
goods or services needed in order for the proposers to properly respond to 
the RFP. 

4. Scope of Work - Each RFP will c ontain a statement or scope of work 
prepared by the Project Manager whic h provides a clear and accurate 
description of the techni cal requirements for the materials, products, or 
services being produced.  A statement or scope of work should only state 
the actual minimum needs of Foothill Transit, and be developed in a manner 
designed to promote full and open com petition.  At a minimum, the 
statement or scope of work should address the following areas: 

a. The specific objectives of the proposed work. 

b. A detailed description of the work to be performed outl ining various 
tasks or p hases of work, and defin ing the limits of  the proposed 
project. 

c. A requirement for periodic reporting or progress on the project if the 
procurement involves consultant or professional services. 

d. A proposed delivery schedule. 

e. A proposed contract period. 

Exhibit A



 

 34

E. Control Record 
 

1. A control record will be maintained by the Procurement Department as RFP 
packets are distributed to prospective bidders.  The control record profiles 
the following information: 

a. Date and time RFP packets are distributed. 

b. Names and addresses of vendors receiving the RFP and attending 
the pre-proposal conference. 

2. The control record has two primary purposes: 

a. Serves as a mailing list for the issuance of addenda. 

b. Provides a record for verificati on in cases of vendor protests and 
other issues. 

F. Pre-Proposal Conference 
 

1. A pre-proposal conference may be used as a means of briefing prospective 
proposers and explaining complicated s pecifications and requirements to 
them as early as possible after the RFP has been issued and before the 
proposals are received.  The pre-proposal conference will not be used as a 
substitute for amending a defecti ve or ambiguous RFP.  Unless otherwise 
stated in RFP documents,  attendance by prospective proposers is not 
mandatory.  Minutes of the conference an d the list of attendees will be  
issued to all prospective proposers. 

 
2. The pre-proposal conference sha ll be chaired by the Director of 

Procurement , and shall follow the format below: 

a. Discuss basic requirements such as  instructions to the proposers, 
funding, contract type, evaluation cr iteria, and specific  points that 
should be addressed in each proposal. 

b. Discuss the participation require ments for disadvantaged busine ss 
enterprises (DBE), if applicable. 

c. Discuss the scope of work and hav e the Project Manager available 
to answer technical questions. 

d. Conclude by announcing when and where the proposals are due and 
by restating the r equested proposal length and maximum pages in 
scope of work. 

Exhibit A



 

 35

G. Addenda to Requests for Proposals 
  

1. If after issuance of requests for proposals, but before the time set for receipt 
of proposals, it becomes necessary  to make changes in quantities, 
specifications, delivery schedules, opening dates, etc. or to correct or clarify 
a defective or ambiguous RFP s uch changes shall be accomplis hed by 
issuance, in writing, of an amendment  to the RFP.  Before issuing an 
amendment to an RFP, the period of time  remaining until the time set for 
proposal submittal and the need for extending this time must be considered.  
Where only a short time remains, consideration should be given to notifying 
prospective proposers of an extension of time by email, facsimile or 
telephone.  Such notification should be confirmed in the amendment.  The 
amendment shall be sent to each pros pective proposer to whom the RFP 
was furnished or who attended any site visit and/or pre-proposal 
conference.    

 
2. Any information given to a prospective proposer concerning an RFP shall 

be furnished promptly to all other prospective proposers as an amendment 
to the RFP if such information is necess ary to proposers in submitting 
proposals on the request or if the lack of such information would be 
prejudicial to uninformed proposers.   No award shall be made on the 
request unless such amendment has been issued in sufficient time to permit 
all prospective proposers to consider suc h information in submitting or 
modifying their proposals. 

 
3. The RFP will indicat e that Foot hill Transit is not bound by any oral 

representations, clarifications, or changes made in the written specification 
by Foothill Transit’s employees,  unless such clarification or change is  
provided to potential proposers in written addendum form from Foothill 
Transit. 

  
4. Each addendum issued to a request for proposals shall: 

 
a. Be serially numbered and dated. 
 
b. Include the number, date and a de scription of the original RFP 

concerned. 
 
c. Clearly state the changes made in the RFP and the extension of the 

due date, if any. 
 
d. Include instructions to proposers for acknowledging r eceipt of the 

addendum and information concerning the effect of failure to 
acknowledge or return the amendment. 

 

Exhibit A



 

 36

H. Cancellation of RFP 
 

RFPs shall not be canceled un less cancellation is clearly in Fo othill Transit’s 
interest (i.e., where there is no longer a requirement for the service, or where 
amendments to the RFP would be of such magnitude that a new RFP is desirable).  
When an RFP is canceled, proposals which have been received shall be returned 
unopened to the proposers and a notice of cancellation shall be sent to all 
prospective proposers to whom requests for proposals were issued. 
  
The notice of cancellation shall identify the RFP number; briefly explain the reason 
the RFP is being canceled; and, where appropriate, assure prospective proposers 
that they will be given an opportunity to propose on any re-solicitation or any further 
requirements for the type of service involved. 

I. Receipt of Proposals 
  

Proposals shall be submitted so as to be received at the location designated in the 
RFP not later than the exact time set fo r the receipt of proposals.  The only 
acceptable evidence to establish the time of receipt at Foothill Transit’s offices is 
the time/date stamp of F oothill Transit which sha ll be placed on the proposal 
wrapper immediately upon receipt.  The Foothill Transit staff person receiving the 
proposal shall sign the exterior of the proposal package to verify the date and time 
received and person receiving the proposal. The timeliness of proposals is the sole 
responsibility of the proposer.    

J. Withdrawal of Proposals 
  

Any proposer may withdraw their proposal, either personally or by written request, 
received by Foothill Transit at any time prior to the time fixed for the receipt of the 
proposals. Negligence on the part of proposers in preparing their proposal confers 
no right of withdrawal of their proposal after such proposal has been opened. No 
proposal may be withdrawn for a period of 60 days following the proposal deadline. 

K. Format of Proposal 
 

The response to each RFP must be made in accordance with the requirements set 
forth in the RFP, both fo r mandatory content and for sequence.  Noncompliance 
on the inclusion of conditions, limitations  or misrepresentations may be cause for 
rejection of a proposal. 

 

Exhibit A



 

 37

L. Evaluation of Proposals 
 

1. Each RFP will contain  the Evaluation Criteria that will be used by Foothill 
Transit in evaluating proposal s.  These criteria are set forth in the RFP in 
order of their relative importance, with the most important being listed first.  
To reflect this, each c riterion will either be scored using an equal score 
range (equal weig hing) or each criteri on will be assig ned a weig ht.  If a 
weight is assigned, each score will be multiplied by the weight to produce a 
final criterion score.  Price is always included as an evaluation criterion, with 
the exception of architectural and engi neering services.  Price will be 
evaluated by giving the lowest-price  proposal the full number of points 
assigned to the price criteria and com puting the number of points for the 
other proposals in accordance with their relationship to the lowest price--the 
lowest price is divided by the price of the proposer whose price is being 
evaluated, and then the quotient resulting from the foregoing calculation is 
multiplied by the number of points assigned to the price factor to determine 
the price score of the propos er whose price is being evaluat ed. This 
calculation is done for each proposal being evaluated.  The price scores are 
then added to the scores for other factors to determine the highest over-all 
score. The RFP will clearly indicate how price will b e evaluated.  Only  
criteria set forth in the RFP may be used to evaluate the proposal.   

 
2. If the RFP sets forth “Minimum Requi rements Criteria”, a “pass/fail” 

evaluation will be made of  the proposal to determine complianc e with the 
“Minimum Requirements Crit eria.”  Failure in any  one of the “pass/fail“  
criteria may be caus e for disqualifyi ng the entire proposal from further 
review.  H owever, Foothill Transit’s evaluation may, in Foothill Transit’s 
discretion, be augmented by verbal or  written requests to proposers for 
clarification, or additional informati on as necessary to determine if the 
“Minimum Requirements Cr iteria” have been met.  The determination to 
disqualify a proposal shall be solely at the discretion of Foothill Transit 

 
3. Proposals which “pass” the “pass /fail” test are evaluated using the 

procedures set forth in this section: 
 

a. An evaluation committee for each RFP will be recommended by the 
Director of Procurement in consultation with the Project Manager and 
appointed by the Executive Director.  In appointing individuals to a 
Committee, the Exec utive Director will consider the nature of the  
procurement, and the appropriate ex pertise of the indiv iduals 
appointed to the Committee. 

 
b. A date and time for an evaluation meeting will be set. 
 
c. Members of the Evaluation Co mmittee shall b e familiar with th e 

content of the RFP.  Any questions on the RF P, or documentation 

Exhibit A



 

 38

furnished by an offeror should be addressed to the Director of 
Procurement prior to initiation of evaluations. 

 
d. The Evaluation Committee shall fi rst perform a technical evaluation 

of each offeror’s proposal using the evaluation score sheets provided 
by the Director of Procurement. 

 
4. Upon compilation of the Evaluation Committee’s initial scores, the Director 

of Procurement shall review the scores and make a determination as to 
which offerors are in the competitiv e range for purposes of conducting 
discussions with the proposers. 

 
5. The competitive range shall be determined on the basis of cost or price and 

other factors that are stated in the solicitation and shall include all proposals 
that have a reasonable chance of being selected for award.  If discussions 
are conducted with one offeror, discussi ons must be conducted with all 
offerors within the competitive range. 
  

6. Discussion after receipt of initial proposals is not requi red in the following 
cases: 

a. Procurement is for supplies for which prices or rates are fixed by law or  
regulation; 

b. Time for delivery will not permit discussions; or 

c. The procurement is for a product and, due to the existence of adequate 
competition or accurate prior cost  experience, it can be clearly  
demonstrated that acceptance of an initial pr oposal would result in a fair  
and reasonable price. 

M. Discussions 
 

1. The Evaluation Com mittee shall conduct oral dis cussions with all 
responsible offerors who submit proposals within the competitive range, as 
determined in subsection L.  During the discussion phase of the source 
selection process, all communication is coordinated through the Director of 
Procurement. 

 
2. The discussion process is governed by the following general guidelines.  

 
a. Notify all proposers regarding their status and arrange a meeting with 

the offerors who have been determined to be within the competitive 
range.  
 

b. Verbally at the meeting and in  written form advise offerors of 
deficiencies in their proposals so that the offerors  are given an 

Exhibit A



 

 39

opportunity to satisfy Foothill Transit’s requirements.  
 

c. Attempt to resolve any uncerta inties concerning the technic al 
proposals and other terms and c onditions of the propos al. 
 

d. Resolve any suspected mistakes by calling them to the offeror’ s 
attention as specifically as possible without disclos ing information 
concerning other offeror’s propos als or the evaluation proces s. 
 

e. Provide the offeror a reasonable o pportunity to submit any cost or 
price, technical or other revisions to its proposal that may result from 
the discussion. 

 
3. During the discussion the Evaluation Committee should not engage in: 

a. Technical leveling, defined as helping an offeror bring its proposal up 
to the level of other proposals through successive rounds of 
discussion, such as pointing out weaknesses resulting from the 
offeror’s lack of diligence, competence, or inventiveness in preparing 
the proposal. 

b. Technical transfusion, defined as disclosure of technical information 
pertaining to a proposal that result s in improvement of a competing 
proposal. 

c. Auction techniques, such as: 

i. Indicating to an offero r the cost or price th at it must meet to 
obtain further consideration. 

ii. Advising an offeror of its price standing relative to another 
offeror; however, it is permissible to inform an offeror that its 
cost or price is considered by the Evaluation Committee to be 
too high or unrealistic. 

iii. Otherwise furnishing information about other offeror’s prices. 

N. Request for Best and Final Offer 
 

1. Upon completion of discussions, Foothill Transit may make a sel ection for 
contract award without requesting Best and Final Offers or may issue to all 
proposers within the competitive r ange a request for a final supplement  
denominated the “Best and Final Offer“ (BAFO).  Oral requests for best and 
final offers shall be confirmed in writ ing.  Best and Final Offers must be 
submitted in accordance with writt en procedures received from Foothill 
Transit.   

 

Exhibit A



 

 40

2. Such requests shall advise offerors: 
 

a. That negotiations are being concluded. 
 
b. That offerors are being asked for their “best and final” offer , not 

merely to confirm or reconfirm prior offers. 
 
c. That any revision or modification of proposals must be submitted by 

the date specified. 
 

3. Following the review of the BAFOs by the Evaluation Committee, the 
Director of Procurement shall consolidate the cost and technical evaluations 
and all sc ore sheets along with their comments and recommendations.  
After reviewing the evaluations  and recommendation made by the 
Evaluation Committee, the Exec utive Director shall make a determination 
of the recommendation for contract award. 

O. Debriefing of Unsuccessful Proposers 
 

1. When a contract is to be awarded on some basis other than price alone, 
unsuccessful proposers shall be debr iefed upon their written request 
submitted to the Director of P rocurement within a reasonable time.  
Debriefings shall be provided at the earliest time after the Director of 
Procurement makes a final determinat ion recommending the award of the 
contract. The debriefing shall be conducted by the Director of Procurement 
and may be either oral or written as the Director of Procurement determines 
appropriate.  

 
2. The debriefing shall: 

a. Be limited to discussion of the unsuccessful proposer’s proposal and 
must not include specific disc ussion of a competing propos er’s 
proposal. 

b. Be factual and consis tent with the evaluation of the unsuccessful 
proposer’s proposal; and 

c. Provide information on areas in which the unsuccessful proposer ’s 
technical proposal was deemed weak or deficient. 

P. Award of the Contract 
 

After evaluation of proposals in accordance with the criteria set forth in the RFP, 
the contract shall be awarded to the offeror of the proposal most advantageous to 
Foothill Transit, price and other factors considered. 
 

Exhibit A



 

 41

Notice of award shall be made by over-night  delivery, email, or  facsimile to the 
successful proposer.  In addition, Foothill  Transit will notify all unsuccessful 
proposers of its intent to award a contract to the successful proposer at the same 
time it notifies the successful proposer if Board approval is not required, and at the 
same time as the publication of the Boar d agenda if Board appro val is required.  
Notification to unsuccessful proposers will be made by over-night delivery, email, 
or facsimile.  If the Exec utive Board does not accept  the Exe cutive Director’s 
recommendation as to the successful propos er, the Executive Board may:  (1) 
choose another proposer using the same criteria set forth in the RFP; or (2) direct 
re-solicitation of proposals. 

Q. Final Award 
 

If Executive Board approval is required fo r selection of the successful proposer, 
the Project Manager, in consultation with the Director of Procurement,  shall 
prepare the board report that identifies all indiv iduals or firms responding to the 
RFP, describes the procurement and eval uation processes, and sets forth the 
evaluation scores for each proposer.  The board report should describe the 
services or goods being procured. 

 
The contract will be drafted by legal couns el who will ensure that the contract will 
not include any terms or conditions to be negotiated in the future.  The Director of 
Procurement will ensure that any contract addressing such terms and/or conditions 
will not be executed. The Director of Procurement will ensur e that the contract is 
executed at the approval level required in these procedures. 
 
Two original signed copies of each cont ract will be e xecuted by Foothill Transit  
and the contractor.  The Procurement Department will maintain one original of the 
contract for the procurement  file and distribute one origin al to the contractor.  
Copies will be distributed to legal counsel, the procur ement file, and the project 
manager.   

R. Project Completion 
 

All original documentation relat ed to each procurement such as the RFP,  
successful proposal, BAFO, control re cord, board report , background data, 
evaluation criteria and scores, and meeting reports/notes will be submitted to the 
Director of Procurement for storage when t he file becomes inactive.  For audit 
purposes, complete files will be maintained for a minimum of four years after the 
project is closed out and completed unless a different time period is mandated by 
a funding entity. 
 
Negotiated procurement records or file s should provide at least the following 
pertinent information:  justification for the use of negotiati on in lieu of competitive 
bidding; contractor select ion; justification for cont ract type; determination and 
findings; record of negotiations; and cost or price analysis. 

Exhibit A



 

 42

  

Exhibit A



 

 43

Subchapter E - Special Procedures for Request for Qualifications (RFQ) - 
Architectural/Engineering Services 

 
A. Special procedures will be us ed for competitive negotiation procedures for 

qualifications-based procurement of architectura l and engineering (“A/E” 
hereafter) services and related services such as program management,  
construction management, feasib ility studies, preliminar y engineering, design , 
surveying, mapping, or related services.  An RFQP is used in the solicitation of A/E 
and related services. 

 
B. Following this method, each proposer’s qualifications are evaluated and the most 

qualified proposer is selected subject to negotiation of fair and reasonable 
compensation.  Under this method, Foothill Transit may not consider price as an 
evaluation factor in determining the most qualified proposer.  Negotiation is 
conducted with only the most qualified proposer.  This method, where price cannot 
be used as an evaluation factor and negotiations are conducted with only the most 
qualified proposer, can only be used in proc urement of the above services.  This  
method of procurement cannot be used to obtain other types of services even 
though firms that provide the above types of services are also potential sources to 
perform other services. 

 
C. Refer to the RFP procedures above for all pre-evaluat ion activities, as well as 

debriefing final award and project completion .  The steps to be used for proposal 
evaluation and contract negotiation for A/E and related services solic itations are 
as follows: 

 
1. An evaluation committee will be recommended by the Dir ector of 

Procurement in consultation with the Project Manager and appointed by the 
Executive Director to review eligible firms and all responses to RFP. 

 
2. Team evaluates the firms based on: 
 

a. Professional qualifications for performance of the required services; 
b. Specialized experience and technical competence in the type work 

required; 
c. Capacity to accomplish the work in the required time; and, 
d. Past performance in terms of cost control,  quality of work and 

compliance with performance schedules. 
 

3. Evaluation team holds discuss ions with the most highly qualified firms 
(“short list”). 

 
4. Evaluation team prepares a select ion report for the Executiv e Director 

recommending, in order of preference, those firms that are considered t o 
be the most highly qualified to perfo rm the required services.  The report 
should include a description of the discussions and evaluations by the team 

Formatte

Exhibit A



 

 44

to allow the Executive Director to  review the bas is upon which the 
recommendations were made.  The Exec utive Director shall not add firms 
to the selection report. If recommended firms are deemed to be unqualified 
or the report is inadequat e, the Executiv e Director shall document the 
reasons therefore and return the r eport to the evaluation team for 
appropriate revision. 

 
5. The final selection shall be made by the Executive Director from a list of the 

most highly qualified firms prepared by the evaluation team.  The Executive 
Director will list those firms in order of preference for negotiating a contract. 

 
6. After the fi nal selection has taken place,  Foothill Transit may release 

information identifying only the A/E firm with which an attempt will be made 
to negotiate a contract. If negotiati ons are terminated without awarding a 
contract to the highest rated firm, F oothill Transit may release information  
that negotiations will take place with the next highest rated firm. 

 
7. The final selection authorizes negotiations to begin with the most qualified 

firm, which will be requested to submit  a proposal that  includes fees and 
cost estimates. 

 
8. The negotiation of compensation to t he contractor should repres ent a fair 

and equitable pay ment for the servic es performed. At this stage,  
negotiations must take place not only on the amount of compensation, but 
also the method of payment. 

 
9. In determining the amount of co mpensation and the me thod of payment, 

consideration shall be given to: 
 

a. Scope and complexity of designs, surveys and other work and the 
skills necessary for these services. 

b. Quality and quantity of data provided to the A/E by Foothill Transit. 
c. Location of, and conditions u nder which, the services will be  

performed. 
d. Date services to begin and time allowed for performance. 

 
10. Costs should be negotiated taking into consideration: 
 

a. Direct Labor. 
b. Overhead. 
c. General and administrative expenses. 
d. Materials. 
e. Other direct costs. 
f. Profit, which is further influenced by: 

Exhibit A



 

 45

i. Degree of A/E‘s risk. 
ii. Level of effort. 
iii. Level of talent or expertise the A/E must furnish. 
iv. Amount of subcontracting. 
v. Amount of top level A/E management involved. 
vi. Subcontracts. 
vii. Contractor’s investment. 

 
11. When the contract is negotia ted and signed, the negotiations ar e 

documented and placed in the file. 
 
12. The contract shall be monitored to ensure that expenditures and payments 

therefore are commensurate with performance and that both have met all 
the terms of the contract. 

 
13. The contractor is responsible for the professional quality, technical accuracy 

and coordination of all services under the contract.  The contractor may be 
liable to Foothill Transit for costs resu lting from errors or deficiencies in  
design furnished under the terms of the A/E contract. 

  

Exhibit A



 

 46

Subchapter F - Sole Source Procurements 
 
A. Sole source procurement is a purchase accomplis hed through solicitation or 
acceptance of a proposal from only one s ource; or, if after solicitation of a number of 
sources competition is  determined inadequate. A sole source procurement above the 
micropurchase threshold must be documented as  to the reasons why only one supplier 
is acceptable. Purchases under $3,000 are considered micropurchases and are exempt 
from the requirement to obtain competitive quotes or process a sole source justification.  
A sole source purchase must be documented as to the reasons why only one supplier is 
acceptable.  The Director of Procurem ent will ensure that the form set forth below is  
utilized by the Project Manager in evaluating a potential sole source procurement and in 
making a recommendation that a sole source procurement be utilized by Foothill Transit.  
The Project Manager must fully document the grounds for the sole source procurement, 
and the Director of P rocurement will ensur e that the justific ation is provided to the  
Executive Director or Exec utive Board fo r approval as appropriate. The Director of 
Procurement will also ensure that that the completed form is included in the procurement 
file.  
 
B. The following areas must be considered in sole source determinations: 
 

1. A contract amendment or  change order that is not  within the scope of the 
original contract is considered a sole-source procurement. 

 
2. Sole source procurement may be used only when the award of a contract 

is infeasible under small purchase procedures, sealed bids, or competitive 
proposals and at least one of the following circumstances applies: 

 
a. Single Source 
 

The item or services sought is av ailable only from a si ngle source 
and one of the following condition described below is present: 

i. Unique Capability or Availability.  The offeror demonstrates a 
unique or innovative concept or  capability not available from 
another source.  Unique or innovative concept means a new, 
novel, or changed c oncept, approach, or method that is the 
product of original thinking, the details of which are kept  
confidential or are patented or copyrighted, and is available to 
Foothill Transit only from one so urce and has not in the past 
been available to Foothill Transit from another source. 

ii. Patents or Restricted Data  Rights.  Patent or datea rights 
restrictions preclude competition. 

iii. Substantial Duplication Costs.  In the case of a follow-on 
contract for the continued development or production of highly 
specialized equipment and major components thereof, when 

Formatte

Exhibit A



 

 47

it is likely that aw ard to another contract or would result in 
substantial duplication of costs that are not expected to be 
recovered through competition. 

iv. Unacceptable Delay.  In the case of a follow-on contract for 
the continued development or  production of a highly  
specialized equipment and major components thereof, when 
it is likely that aw ard to another contract or would result in 
unacceptable delays in fulfilling Foothill Transit’s needs. 

b. Unusual and Compelling Urgency.  Foothill Trans it may limit the  
number of sources from which it solic its bids or proposals when it 
has such an unusual and urgent need fo r the property or services 
that it would be seriously injured unless it were permitted to limit the 
solicitation.  Foothill Transit may limit the solicitation when the public 
exigency or emergency will not pe rmit a delay r esulting from 
competitive solicitation for the property or services.   

 
c. FTA Approval.  The Federal Tr ansit Administration authorizes 

noncompetitive negotiations. 
 
d. Inadequate Competition.  A fter solicitation of a number of sources, 

competition is determined inadequat e.  If upon completion of a 
competitive procurement only one proposal is received, the Director 
of Procurement will review the specif ications and determine if they  
were unduly restrictive or by cont acting sources that chose not to 
submit a bid or proposal.  If it is determined that the competition was 
inadequate, the procurement can proceed as a sole source.  

 
 

C. A cost ana lysis must be perform ed for each sole source procurement  if price  
reasonableness cannot be determined via a price analysis.  The purpose of the analysis 
is to provide sufficient informati on to support the conclusion that th e price is fair and 
reasonable.  The analysis will be prepared by the Project Manager in consultation with 
the Director of Procurement.  The Director of  Procurement will ensure that no contracts 
will be executed until a fully detailed and documented analysis is completed, and made a 
part of the appropriate procurement file.  The Director of Procurement will ensure that the 
template set forth in Subchapter O of this Chapter  relating to cost analysis is utilized and 
completed by the Project Manager for each sole procur ement action undertaken by  
Foothill Transit.  The Directo r of Procurement will also  ensure that that the complete d 
template is included in the procurement file.  
 
D. 
 1.  Advertising 

All print, digital, audio and video advertising agreements will be treated as sole 
source procurements not requiring a justification form.  Advertising requires 
geographically and demographically targeted exposure to reach Foothill Transit’s 

Formatte

Formatte

Exhibit A



 

 48

ridership, potential riders and interested parties.  Potential advertising outlets 
typically touch upon just one geographic region,  i.e. local newspapers, or one 
demographic, i.e. language based advertising, and as such, are uniquely capable 
of reaching Foothill Transit’s desired audience for every individual advertising 
agreement.” 

 
 
   

Exhibit A



 

 49

Non‐Competitive Procurement Justification Form  

 
Procurement by noncompetitive proposals may be used only when the award of a contract is 
infeasible under small purchase procedures, sealed bids, or competitive proposals and at least 
one of the following circumstances applies: 
 
Check one: 
 
_____ The item is available only from a single source (sole source justification is attached).  
 
_____ The public exigency or emergency for the requirement will not permit a delay resulting 
from competitive solicitation (documented emergency condition is attached).  
 
_____ FTA authorizes noncompetitive negotiations (letter of authorization is attached).  
 
_____ After solicitation of a number of sources, competition is determined inadequate (record 
of source contacts is attached).  
 
_____ The item is an associated capital maintenance item as defined in 49 U.S.C. §5307(a)(1) 
that is procured directly from the original manufacturer or supplier of the time to be replaced 
(price certification attached). 
 
Comments: 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
______ Independent Estimate and Price/Cost Analysis are attached. 
 
_____________________________    __________________________ 
Director of Procurement      Project Manager         
_____________________________    __________________________ 
Date            Date         
 
 

 
 

   

Exhibit A



 

 50

Subchapter G - Single Bid or Proposal  
 
A single bid situation exists when only one bid has been received at the time and date set 
for bid opening; or only one resp onsive bid is received at the time and date set for bid 
opening (as a result of having only one res ponsive bidder and all other bidders being 
determined to be non-responsiv e).  A single proposal situation exists when only one 
proposal has been received at the time and date se t for submission of proposals, or it is 
determined after review of pr oposals received that only one proposal meets the criteria 
set forth in the request for proposals.  
 
When only one bid or proposal is received in response to a solicitation that was issued to 
multiple sources, it must first be determi ned if there was adequate competition.  The 
receipt of only one bid or proposal does  not, in itself, mean t hat competition was  
inadequate. At a minimum, to determi ne if there was  adequate competition, 
bidders/proposers who received solic itations, but did not bid/propose, will be  contacted 
by the Director of Procurement and questioned to determine why they did not respond to 
the solicitation.  Potential bidders/proposers will be s pecifically queried as  to whether 
there were any elements in the procurement which may have restricted competition.  The 
Director of Procurement will ens ure that documentation reflecting the above process is 
included in the procurement file.  Upon completion of the above process, the Director of 
Procurement will dete rmine whether there were any elements in the procurement that 
may have restricted competition and will determine whether the procurement documents 
should be modified and the solicitation re-advertised or whether the procurement can go 
forward as originally advertised.  If this is the case then the procurement is treated as a 
sole source, and it must be processed in accordance with the requirements for a sole 
source procurement set out in these Procedures. 
 
Alternatively, the original solic itation can be cancelled,  the requirements in the original 
solicitation can be changed to allow for more bi ds or proposals, and a new invitation for 
bids or request for proposals issued.   
 
If the reasons given by the non-responders ar e unrelated to the sp ecification and/or 
solicitation terms, it will be presumed that competition was adequate and the award of the 
contract can be carried out as the result of a competitive procurement.  
 
If the competition is deemed to be adequate, a price analysi s must be performed to 
determine the reasonableness of the bid or proposal price.  The Project Manager, in 
consultation with the Director of Procurem ent will prepare the pri ce analysis. If, on the 
basis of a price analysis, it can be documented that the price is fair and reasonable, and 
if the bid is responsiv e and, as appropriate, the bidder or proposer is responsible, the 
contract may be awar ded.  If it cannot be de termined that the bid or proposal price is 
reasonable, on the basis of a price analysis ; the bidder or proposer will be r equested to  
provide a detaile d breakdown of  costs and profit, Foothill  Transit will pe rform a cost 
analysis. 
 

Exhibit A



 

 51

If competition is deemed to be inadequate, and it  is determined appropriate to process 
the award as a sole source, a cost analysis must be performed unless the reasonableness 
of the price can be established based on a bidder or proposer’s catalogue or market price.    

Exhibit A



 

 52

Subchapter H - Emergency Procurements 
 
Emergency procurements (defi ned as purc hases immediately necessary for the 
preservation of life or property, or to prevent an immediate termination of a critical Foothill 
Transit function or activity) will be handled i mmediately and expedited as required.  The 
Director of Procurement has the authority to approve the purchase of all goods and 
services in emergency conditions. If the Director of Procurement  is unavailable to 
authorize an emergency procur ement, the Exec utive Director and/or the Deputy 
Executive Director may provide the necessary  authorization.  Upon completion of the 
emergency procurement, the Director of Pr ocurement will document the actions take n 
and execute a proper requisition. 

Exhibit A



 

 53

Subchapter I - Unsolicited Proposals 

A. An Unsolicited Proposal is a proposal that is: 

1. Innovative and unique;. 

2. Independently originated and developed by the offeror;. 

3. Prepared without Foothill Transit’s supervision, endorsement, direction, or 
direct involvement;. 

4. Sufficiently detailed that its benefits in support of Foothill Transit’s mission 
and responsibilities are apparent;. 

5. Not an advance proposal for property or services that Foothill Transit 
could acquire through competitive methods; and. 

6. Not an offer responding to a published expression of need or request for 
proposals previously published by Foothill Transit. 

B. Receipt of an unsolicited proposal does not, by itself, justify contract award without 
providing for full and open com petition.  Unless the unso licited proposal offers a 
proprietary concept that is ess ential to contract performance, competition is 
required.  To satisfy the requirement for full and open competition, the following 
actions must be taken before Foothill Trans it enters into a contract resulting from 
an unsolicited proposal: 

1. Publicize receipt of the unsolicited proposal. 

2. Publicize an adequate description of the property or services offered without 
improperly disclosing proprietary information or disclosing the originality of 
thought or innovativeness of the property or services sought. 

3. Publicize Foothill Transit’s interest  in acquiring the property or service s 
described in the proposal. 

4. Provide an adequate opportunity for interested parties to comment or 
submit competing proposals. 

5. Publicize Foothill Transit’s inte ntion to award a contract based on the 
unsolicited proposal or another proposal submitted in response to the 
publication. 

C. If it is impossible to describe the property or servic es offered without revealing 
proprietary information or disclosing the originality of thought or innovativeness of 
the property or services sought, Foothill Transit may make a sole source award to 
the offeror.  A sole source award may not be based solely on the unique capability 
of the offeror to provide the specific property or services proposed. 

Exhibit A



 

 54

Subchapter J - Amendments and Change Orders 
 

A. An amendment is any change to a contract that alters the terms and conditions of 
the original contract; or provides for a change in the scope or requirements of the 
original contract beyond what is specifica lly allowed by the origin al contract.  
Amendments are formal changes  that must  be approved at the same signature 
authority level as the original contract.  A contract may not be amended to include 
a larger scope, greater quantities, or options beyond Foothill Transit’s reasonably 
anticipated needs. 

 
B. Foothill Transit shall have the right, based on a clause contained in each contract 

to issue a change order to correct errors , omissions, or discrepancies; to cover  
acceptable overruns; to expand or reduce t he scope of the contract; or to direct 
other changes in contract execution to meet unforeseen field, regulatory or market 
conditions. All change orders must be within the scope of the original contract and 
approved by Foothill Transit in advance of work being conducted by the contractor 
in accordance with the value of the change order or the calculat ed value of the 
time extension.  In addition, Foothill Tr ansit shall have the unilateral right, based 
on a clause contained in each contract, to issue an immediate change order  and 
negotiate cost and price for time and materi als after the issuance of the change 
order.  Change orders must be approved at the same signature authority level as 
the original contract   A change order is not permitted if the change causes a major 
deviation from the origin al purpose of the work or  the intended method of 
achievement, or causes a revision of contra ct work, so extensiv e, significant or 
cumulative that, in effect, the contractor is required to perform very different work 
from that described in the original cont ract.  Such a change would be considered 
a “cardinal change” to the contract. 

 
C. All amendments shall be submitted to the Director of Procurement complete with 

explanations and back up information and, when applicable, a detailed breakdown 
of charges for review and/or recommendation of approval. 

 
D. Verification of Amen dments: The Director of Pr ocurement will verify all 

amendments under the following procedures: 
 

1. The Project Manager and the Directo r of Procurement will re view the 
proposed contract amendment and determine whether it is within the scope 
of work for the project of the origin al contract.  If the work un der the 
amendment is within the scope of work of  the original contract, the Project 
Manager in consultation with the Director of Procurement will perform a cost 
analysis to determine if the pric e is fair and reasonable before 
recommending approval of the amendment. 

 
2. If the amendment includes work that is not within th e scope of work of the 

original contract, the amendment will be treated as a sole-source 

Exhibit A



 

 55

procurement, and evaluated accordingly. Supporting documentation will be 
added to the procurement files. 

3. The Director of Procurement and t he Project Manager wil l ensure that the 
methods of calculating the amount of the amendment are in conformance 
with the terms of the contract. 

4. The issuance of change orders fo r each individual contract shall be 
monitored by the Director of Procurement. 

  

Exhibit A



 

 56

Subchapter K - Use of an Existing Contract 
 
A. An “existing contract” means a contract that, when formed, was intended to be 

limited to the original parties theret o, and does not include State or l ocal 
government purchasing schedules or purchasing contracts.  The use of “tag-ons” 
(the addition of work, supplies, equipment or  services) by Foothill Transit that is 
beyond the scope of the original contract is prohibited. 

 
B. Within the conditions set forth below, Foothill Transit is permitted to use existing 

contract rights held by another. 
 

1. Foothill Transit may use contract options held by another with the following 
limitations: 

a. Foothill Transit must ensure t hat the terms and conditions of  the 
option it seeks to exercise are subs tantially similar to the terms and 
conditions of the option as stated in the original contract at the time 
it was awarded. 

b. Foothill Transit may not exercise an option unless it has determined 
that the option price is  better than prices available in the market, or 
that when it intends  to exercise  the option, the option is more 
advantageous. 

C. Assignment of Contract Rights.   

1. Foothill Transit is required to limit its procurements to the amount of property 
and services required to meet its reasonably expected needs without adding 
excess capacity simply for the purpose of assigning contract rights to others 
at a later date.  Foothill Trans it must be able to justif y the quantities it  
procures. 

2. Foothill Transit may assign its contract rights to others if the original contract 
contains an assignability provision that permits the assignment of all or a 
portion of the specified del iverables under the terms originally advertised, 
competed, evaluated, and awarded, or contains other appropriate 
assignment provisions. 

 

Exhibit A



 

 57

Subchapter L - Options 
 
In awarding a contract that will include options, Foothill Transit will evaluate bids or offers 
for any option quantities or period contained in a solicitation if it intends to exercise those 
options after the contract is aw arded.  W hen an option is exercis ed, the Director of 
Procurement will ensure that the exercise of the option is in accordance with the terms of 
the original contract, and that  a cost or pri ce analysis is conduct ed as appr opriate to 
determine if the option price is better than prices available in the market at the time that 
the option is to be exercised, or that the option price is more advantageous to Foothill 
Transit at the time that the option is exercised. 
 
Option quantities, periods, and terms identified in a bid or proposal will be ev aluated by 
the Project Manager or t he Foothill Transit evaluation team  at the time that the bid or 
proposal is evaluated and prior to the award of the base contract. 
 
A record of the above actions will be documented in the procurement records. 
 

Exhibit A



 

 58

Subchapter M - Intergovernmental and Joint Procurement Agreements 
  
Foothill Transit is authorized to use the cooperative purchasing agreements such as 
California Multiple Award Schedules (CMAS), Western States Contracting Alliance 
(WSCA), NJPA (National Joint Powers Alliance), and other cooperative purchasing 
methods.  These offers goods and services to California State and Local Government 
agencies at prices which are fair, reasonable, and competitive.  Under these methods, 
Foothill Transit is responsible for its own contracting program and purchasing decisions.  
 
Under cooperative purchasing methods, the contractor offers to provide products or 
services at a price equal to or lower than the Federal GSA multiple award schedule. For 
CMAS, the State of California adds standard contract terms and conditions which result 
in a CMAS contract. It is the option of the contractor whether or not to allow a local 
government such as Foothill Transit to use their CMAS contract.  This is not a 
competitive bid process, and Foothill Transit may use any criteria to assess the offers 
and select the awarded contractor 
 
Cooperative agreements that utilize a catalog approach where multiple 
vendors/resellers offer the same product at a maximum price point will require that three 
or more quotes are obtained prior to award.  Cooperative agreements that have publicly 
and openly competed procurements where one vendor has been selected as the sole 
awardee will not require multiple quotes.  A cost or price analysis is still required for 
cooperative procurements.” 
Foothill Transit can u tilize available State and local intergovernmental agreements, or 
private cooperative procurement  agencies (non-Federally funded projects only) for the 
procurement or use of common goods and serv ices.  When obtaining goods or services 
in this manner when Federal funds are utilized, the Director of Procurement shall ensure 
that all Federal requir ements, required clauses, and certifications are properly followed 
and included in either the master intergover nmental contract or in Foothill Transit‘s  
purchase document. 
  
Foothill Transit is authorized to use the California Multiple Award Schedules  (CMAS), 
which offers goods and services to Californi a State and Local Government agencies at 
prices which are fair, reasonabl e, and competitive.  Under CMAS, Foothill Transit is  
responsible for its own contracting progr am and purchasing decisions. Under this 
process, the contractor offers to provide products or services at a price equal to or lower 
than the Federal GSA multiple  award schedule. The State of  California adds standard 
contract terms and condi tions which result in a CMAS cont ract. It is the option of the 
contractor whether or not to allow a local government such as Foothill Transit to use their 
CMAS contract.  This is not a competitive bi d process, and Foothill Transit may use any 
criteria to assess the offers and select the awarded contractor.   
 
Foothill Transit can jointly procure goods and services with other entities.  When obtaining 
goods or services in  this manner when F ederal funds are utiliz ed, the Director of 
Procurement shall ensure that Federal requirements, required clauses, and certifications 

Formatte

Formatte

Exhibit A



 

 59

are properly followed and inc luded in the resu lting joint solicitation and contract 
documents. 
  

Exhibit A



 

 60

Subchapter N - Independent Cost Estimates 
 

An Independent Cost Estimate is required for federally funded procurements over 
$33,000.  

A. Construction Projects 

Construction cost estimates will be developed either directly by the A&E firm responsible 
for design development of the project or by a subcontractor of the firm.  The estimates 
received will be dated and made part of the procurement documentation.  The Director of 
Procurement will ensure that the estimates ar e prepared prior to the issuance of an 
invitation for bids.  

 
1. The estimates will be made part of the procurement documentation and will 
be utilized and compared to the actual  bids received to determine the  
reasonableness of the bids. 
 
2. Following the receipt of bids, the Procurement Director, in consultation with 
the Project Manager and t he A&E firm, will determine the reason for any bid  
prices that exceed the estimates, docum ent the reason, and ensure that the 
documentation is included in the appropriate procurement file. 

 

B. Non-Construction Projects 

1. Cost estimates for non-constructi on projects will be  developed by the 
Project Manager as part of the developm ent of solicitation documents.  The 
estimates will be made par t of the procurement documentation and will be 
utilized and compared to the actual bi ds or price proposals received to  
determine the reasonableness of the bids or  price proposals.  At a minimum,  
the documentation will identif y the source of information used to develop the 
estimate, the date that the esti mate was made, and identify the indiv idual 
preparing the estimate.  The Director of Procurement will e nsure that the  
estimates are prepared prior to the issuance of solicitation documents. 
 
2. Following the receipt of bids or pr oposals, the Procurem ent Director, in 
consultation with the Project Manager , will determine the reason for any bid 
price or price proposals that exceed the estimates, document the reason, and 
ensure that the documentation is included in the appropriate procurement file. 

 
C. Use of Form 
 
 The Director of Procurement will ensure that the form set forth below is utilized and 
completed by the Project Manager for each procurement action undertaken by Foothill 
Transit.  The Director of Procurement will also  ensure that that t he completed form is 
included in the procurement file. 
 

Exhibit A



 

 61

Independent Cost Estimate 
 

Contract Type:                                                   Date of Estimate: 
 
Description of Goods / Service: 
 
Method of Obtaining the Estimate:   
I have obtained the following estimate from…. 

o Published Price List / Past pricing (date)____________ 

o Engineering or technical estimate  

o Independent Third Party estimate  

o Other (specify)_____________________________________________ 
 
Cost Estimate Details: 

Through the method stated above it has been determined that the total cost of the  

goods/services is expected to be: $_________________.  Details are shown below. 

    Cost of Standard Items       

  

Product 

Cost ($/ea)  Cost ($/ea) 
Notes / Data 

Source 

      US 
Dollars  
  

A 
Delivered  No Freight       

                   

                   

                     

                      

                      

                        

     Cost of  Services, Repairs, or Non‐Standard Items          

  Item / Task:     

      Other Direct  Labor   Labor  Allocated  SG&A  Profit    

   Materials   Costs  (rate, hours)  Class  overhead        Total 

B 
                    

                    

                    

                       

                  
 

Signature of Preparer:  
 The preceding cost estimate was obtained or prepared by: 

 
 ____________________________________________________________ 

[For complex items or tasks, attach detailed spreadsheet(s) explaining rationale.] 
  
 
  

Exhibit A



 

 62

Subchapter O – Price or Cost Analysis 
 

A. In the event a single bid is received, a price or cost analysis shall be used to 
determine the reasonableness of the bid pric e.  The purpose of the analysis is  to 
provide sufficient information to support the conclusion that the price is fair and 
reasonable. The appropriate analysis will be prepared by the Project Manager, in 
consultation with the Director of Procur ement.  The Director of Procurement wil l 
ensure that no contracts will be exec uted until a fully detaile d and documented  
analysis is completed, and made a part of the appropriate procurement file. 
 

B. The Project Manager, in consultation with the Director of Procurement may 
conduct a price analysis in evaluating a bid pr ice.  If a valid price analys is cannot 
be completed, a cost analysis of the bid price may be conducted. 
 

C. Price analysis is the process of exam ining and evaluating a prospective price 
without evaluation of the s eparate cost elements or proposed profit of the 
prospective supplier. 
 

D. Cost analysis is the review and analys is of a contractor‘s cost or pricing data and 
of the factors applied in projection from the data to the estimated costs, in order to 
form an opinion on the degree to which the contractor‘s proposed costs represent 
what performance of the contract should cost, assuming reasonable economy and 
efficiency.  A price cost analysis must be performed prior to the award or contract 
of a Sole Source Procurement.under Subchapter E of Chapter III. 
 

E. As compared to price analysis, cost analys is involves a more detaile d review of 
the offeror‘s proposal and is use d where Foothill Transit has less assurance of a 
fair and reasonable price. 
 

F. Price analysis may be accomplished through one or more of the following activities: 
  
1. The comparison of prior quotations and contract prices with current quotations 

for the same or similar end items (to pr ovide a suitable basis for comparison,  
appropriate allowances must be made fo r differences in such factors as 
specifications, quantities ordered, time for delivery, etc.). 

 
2. The use of “yardsticks” (such as do llars per pound, per horsepower, o r other 

units) to point up apparent gross inconsistencies which should be subjected to 
greater pricing inquiry. 

 
3. The comparison of prices set fort h in published price lists issued on a 

competitive basis, published market pr ices of commodities, and similar 
indicators, to Foothill Transit with discount or rebate arrangements. 

 
4. The comparison and analysis of proposed prices with Independent Cost 

Estimates. 

Exhibit A



 

 63

 
5. The comparison of prices paid by other  users (government or commercial) of 

the same or similar items to the proposed prices. 
  

G. Cost analysis may be accomplished through the following: 
 
1. Verify contractor‘s cost data. 
 
2. Evaluate specific elements of costs and project these data to determine the 

effect on prices of such factors as: 
  

a. The necessity for certain costs; 
b. The reasonableness of amounts estimated for the necessary costs; 
c. Allowances for contingencies; and 
d. The basis used for allocations of particular overhead costs to the 

proposed contract. 
 

3. When the necessary data is available,  compare the contractor‘s estimated 
cost with: 

 
a. Actual costs previously incurred by the contractor; 
b. The contractor‘s last prior cost  estimate for the  same or simi lar 

estimates; 
c. Current cost estimates from other possible sources; and 
d. Prior estimates or historical costs of other contractors 

manufacturing the same or similar items. 
 

4. Forecasting future trends in costs from historical experience: 
 

a. In periods of either rising or  declining co sts, an adequate cost 
analysis must include some evaluation of the trends. 

 
b. In cases involving recently dev eloped, complex equipment, even in 

periods of relative price stability,  trend analysis of basic labor an d 
materials costs should be undertaken. 

 
H. In performing a cost analys is, there are three questions that should be ask ed in 

the examination of costs, particularly those in the overhead area:   
 

1. Is the cost allowable in accordance  with g uidelines in Section 15 of the 
Federal Acquisition Regulations (FAR)?  

2. Is the cost allocable to the particular project?; and  
3. Is the cost reasonable? 
 

I. If only one bid or proposal is received, the sole bidder or proposer must cooperate 
with Foothill Transit as necessary in order  for its bid or proposal to be considered 

Exhibit A



 

 64

for award.  A new solicitation may be i ssued if the si ngle bid or proposal pric e 
appears unreasonable or if no determination is made as to the reasonableness of 
the single bid or proposal price. 

 
 
J. The Director of Procurement will ensure that the form set forth below is utilized and 

completed by the Project Manager for ea ch cost analys is.  The Direct or of 
Procurement will also ensur e that the completed fo rm is included in  the 
procurement file. 

  

Exhibit A



 

 65

COST ANALYSIS SUMMARY  (For New Contracts Including Letter Contracts) 
(See Instructions below) 

SOLICITATION # 

           
PREPARER'S NAME, DEPARTMENT, TITLE, PHONE 

           

SUPPLIES AND/OR SERVICES TO BE FURNISHED 

           

DIVISION(S) AND LOCATION(S) WHERE WORK IS TO BE PERFORMED 

           
 

APPROVAL SIGNATURE 

           

DETAIL DESCRIPTION OF COST ELEMENTS
 
1.  DIRECT MATERIAL 

   

Vendor A 
Proposal  

Vendor B 
Proposal 

Independent 
Estimate   

 
Analysis 

A.  PURCHASED PARTS                                                 

B.  SUBCONTRACTED ITEMS                                                 

C.  OTHER ‐  (1)  RAW MATERIAL                                                 

   (2)  STANDARD COMMERCIAL ITEMS                                                 

TOTAL DIRECT MATERIAL         

2.  MATERIAL OVERHEAD  
(RATE  % x $ BASE *) 

                                               

 
3.  DIRECT LABOR 

ESTIMATED 

HOURS 
RATE/ 
HOUR 

Vendor 
A ($) 

Vendor 
B ($) 

Independent 
Estimate  

Variance

                                                   

                                                   

                                                   

                                                   

                                                   

                                                   

                                                   

  TOTAL DIRECT LABOR                                                             

 

4.  LABOR OVERHEAD 
  

 
 

Vendor 

A $) 

Vendor 

B $) 

Independent 

Estimate  
Variance

OH Rate                                                             
X BASE (labor total above)                                                            

TOTAL LABOR OVERHEAD                                       
 
5.  OTHER DIRECT COSTS 

Vendor A 
($) 

Vendor B 
($) 

Independent 
Estimate 

Variance 

A.  SPECIAL TOOLING/EQUIPMENT                                                 
TOTAL SPECIAL TOOLING/EQUIPMENT                                                 

B.  TRAVEL                                                 
(1)  TRANSPORTATION                                                    
(2)  PER DIEM OR SUBSISTENCE                                           

TOTAL TRAVEL                                                 

Exhibit A



 

 66

DETAIL DESCRIPTION OF COST ELEMENTS (continued)  Vendor A 
($) 

Vendor  

B ($) 
Independent 
Estimate 

Variance

C.  INDIVIDUAL CONSULTANT SERVICES                                       

TOTAL INDIVIDUAL CONSULTANT SERVICES 

           
                      

D.  OTHER                                                    

TOTAL OTHER                                           

E. SUBTOTAL DIRECT COST AND OVERHEAD                                    

6.  GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE (G&A)                                                     RATE  %          

 X $  BASE (Use 5.E above)                                                    

7.  ROYALTIES (if any)                                                 

8.SUBTOTAL ESTIMATED COST                                                 

9.  CONTRACT FACILITIES CAPITAL AND COST OF MONEY                                                 

10. SUBTOTAL ESTIMATED COST                                                 

11.  FEE OR PROFIT                                                 

12.TOTAL ESTIMATED COST AND FEE OR PROFIT                                                 

13. Discounts                                                 

14. Option Costs (specify)                                                 

15. ADJUSTED COST                                                 

ANALYSIS GUIDELINES 

1.  DIRECT MATERIAL 

    A.  Analyze Purchased Parts:  Provide a consolidated price analysis  of material quantities included in the various tasks, 
orders, or contract line items being proposed and the basis for pricing (vendor quotes, invoice prices, etc.).   

    B.  Subcontracted Items:  Analyze the total cost of subcontract effort and supporting written quotations from the 
prospective subcontractors 

    C.  Other: 

      (1)  Raw Material: Review any materials in a form or state that requires further processing.  Analyze priced quantities 
of items required for the proposal.  Consider alternatives and total cost impact. 

      (2)  Standard Commercial Items:  Analyze proposed items that the offeror will provide, in whole or in part, and review 
the basis for pricing. Consider whether these could be provided at lower cost from another source. 

  2.  MATERIAL OVERHEAD 

Verify that this cost is not computed as part of labor overhead (item 4) or General and Administrative (G&A) (Item 6). 

  3.  DIRECT LABOR 

Analyze the hourly rate and the total hours for each individual (if known) and discipline of direct labor proposed.  Determine 
whether actual rates or escalated rates are used .  If escalation is included, analyze the degree (percent) and rationale used. 
Compare percentage of total that labor represents for each bid. 

  4.  LABOR OVERHEAD 

Analyze comparative rates and ensure these costs are not computed as part of G&A. Determine if Government Audited rates 
are available, 

  5.  OTHER DIRECT COSTS 

Exhibit A



 

 67

    A.  Special Tooling/Equipment.  Analyze price and necessity of specific equipment and unit prices.   

    B.  Travel.  Analyze each trip proposed and the persons (or disciplines) designated to make each trip.  Compare and 
check costs. 

    C.  Individual Consultant Services.  Analyze the proposed contemplated consulting.  Compare to independent estimate 
of the amount of services estimated to be required and match the consultants' quoted daily or hourly rate to known 
benchmarks. 

    D.  Other Costs.  Review all other direct charge costs not otherwise included in the categories described above (e.g., 
services of specialized trades, computer services, preservation, packaging and packing, leasing of equipment and provide bases 
for pricing. Scan for duplication or omissions.  

  6.  GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE 

See notes on labor overhead above and check whether the base has been approved by a Government audit agency for use in 
proposals. 

  7.  ROYALTIES 

If more than $250, analyze the following information for each separate royalty or license fee; name and address of licenser; 
date of license agreement; patent numbers, patent application serial numbers, or other basis on which the royalty is payable; 
brief description (including any part of model numbers or each contract item or component on which the royalty is payable); 
percentage or dollar rate of royalty per unit; unit price of contract item; number of units; and total dollar amount of royalties,  

  8.  SUBTOTAL ESTIMATED COST 

Compare the total of all direct and indirect costs excluding Cost of Money and Fee or Profit. Note reasons for differences. 

  9.  CONTRACT FACILITIES CAPITAL AND COST OF MONEY 

Analyze the offerors' supporting calculations and compare to known standards.  

  10.  SUBTOTAL ESTIMATED COST 

This is the total of all proposed costs excluding Fee or Profit.  Determine the competitive range. Question outliers. 

  11.  FEE OR PROFIT 

Review the total of all proposed Fees or Profit. Remember that the FTA prohibits cost plus percentage of cost contracting, and 
caps fixed fees under CPFF type contracts  at 10% and profits under fixed price contracts and time and material profit markups 
at 15%..  

  12.  TOTAL ESTIMATED COST AND FEE OR PROFIT 

Analyze the range of  total estimated costs including Fee or Profit, and explain variance to independent estimate. Identify areas 
for negotiation or areas to be challenged.  Explain your conclusions regarding fair and reasonable pricing.    

  13. DISCOUNTS 

Review basis for Discounts and range between offers. 

 

ATTACH NARRATIVE COST ANALYSIS MEMO ADDRESSING ITEMS AS INSTRUCTED ABOVE.  

 

Exhibit A



 

 68

CHAPTER IV - PURCHASE ORDERS 

A. Purchase Order Process / Requirements 

1. Purchase Orders can be issued for t he purchase of good and or services.  
The issuance of a purchase order requires the approval of the Department 
Director and or Project Manager responsible for the particular budget.  The 
Finance system will n ot allow th e issuance of a Purchase Order when  
sufficient budget funding is not available.  Three types of Purchase Orders 
are available: 1) Contract Purchase Orders (KPO); Purchase Orders (PO); 
and Purchase Invoices (PI). 

2. A KPO,; PO or PI is required for all purchases.  A properly completed 
Purchase Order includes: a description of the item to be procured, the 
quantity, unit cost, total costs and when applicable attachments including: 
invoice, contract, vendor quotati ons, and when and where service will be  
performed; and when and where the items will be delivered. 

3. The account name(s) and number(s) must be provided to determine which 
account will be expensed when the Purchase Order is processed for  
payment. 

4. Purchase Orders are handled by orally notifying the vendor of the approved 
Purchase Order number.  Written confi rmation shall be sent to the vendor, 
if appropriate. 

5. Vendors shall be instructed to include their Purchase Order number on all 
correspondence, including packaging, invoices, credit memos, etc. 

B. Types of Purchase Orders: 

1. Contract Purchase orders (KPO) 

This type of purchase or der is used when  the purchase of goods and/or 
services is directly tied to an exec uted contract.  The Contract Purchase 
Order number is the same as the executed contact number preceded with 
“KPO” and the amount will the amount of the total contract value which will 
be encumbered and no longer available for future expenditures.  This will 
be the maximum potential liability fo r all payments under the executed 
contract. Progress payments can be accomplished using the KPO number; 
however payments cannot exceed the total value of the KPO.  In the event 
a contract amendment is executed which either increases or decreases the 
initial contract amount, the KPO can be modified to reflect the amendment.  
The modification would be similar to the preparation of the original KPO  
using the contract number preceded by KPO, entering an account number 
and amount of the amendment, a positive amount for a contract increase 
and negative amount for a contract reduction. 

Exhibit A



 

 69

2. Purchase Orders (PO) 

A Purchase Order is used when the good and/or services have not been 
received and the vendor requires an authorization to sell and invoice Foothill 
Transit for goods and/or services. The PO number will be assigne d by the 
finance system and the amount should be sufficient to encumber funds to 
complete the purchase.  Normally the goods and/or services are delivered 
and one payment is exec uted for full payment.  However, POs may be 
issued for items that are to be delivered over a period of time with payments 
executed as the goods and/or services are delivered.  Using the PO for 
staggered deliveries and payments is akin  to a “Blanket Purchase Order”. 
The total amount of the PO will be encumbered, removing the funding from 
future expenditures. 

3. Purchase Invoice (PI) 

Purchase Invoices are to be used when an invoice for goods and/or services 
has been received from the vendor.  The PI number will be assigned by the 
finance system.  The issuance of  the PI will initiate payment for the goods 
and/or services. The PI amount cannot exceed available funding. 

C. Receipt of Goods/Service and Authorization to Pay 

1. The Department Director, his or her designee or the designate d Project 
Manager is responsible for the receipt of the physical merchandise order 
when goods are being purchased.  Upon receipt, the packing slip s hall be 
compared to the goods received.  If correct, the packing slip shall be signed 
and dated and processed for payment. 

2. The Department Director, his or her designee or the designate d Project 
Manager is responsible for the supervisi on of services to be performed for 
Foothill Transit.  Upon completion of the services, invoic e(s) shall be  
compared to the services received.  If correct, invoice shall be signed and 
dated and processed for payment. 

 
 

 

Exhibit A



 

 70

CHAPTER V - VENDOR PROTEST PROCEDURES 
 
A. Purpose 
 
The purpose of these procedures is to set forth the procedures  to be utilized by Foothill 
Transit in considering and determining a ll bid protests or objections regardin g 
solicitations, proposed award of a contract, or award of a contract whether before or after 
award. 
 
B. General 
 
In order for a bid protest to be considered b y Foothill Transit, it must be submitted by an 
interested party (as defined below in accordance with the procedures set forth herein.  A 
protest which is submitted by a party which is  not an interested party or which is not in 
accordance with the procedures  shall not be considered by Foot hill Transit, and will be 
returned to the submitting party  without any further action by  Foothill Transit.  In all 
instances where Foothill Transit receives a protest involving a potential contract that will 
be funded with Federal Transit Administration funds, Foothill Transit will notify the Federal 
Transit Administration of t he protest, provide information concerning the nature of the 
protest, and keep the Federal T ransit Administration informed about the status of the 
protest.  
 
C. Definitions 
 
For purposes of these Bid Protest Procedures: 
 

1. The term “Bid” includes any bid or offer submitted by a bidder in response 
to an Invitation for Bid (IFB), and a proposal submitted by an offeror in 
response to a Request for Proposals (RFP). 

 
2. The term “contract” means that document to be ent ered into between 

Foothill Transit and the successful bidder and offeror. 
 
3. The term “days” refers to normal business days of Foot hill Transit staff 

offices. 
 
4. The term “interested party” means any person: who is an actual or  

prospective proposer, bidder, or offero r in the procurement involved; and 
whose direct economic interest woul d be affected by the award of the 
contract or by failure to award a contract.  A subcontractor does not qualify 
as an “interested party” because it does not have a direct economic interest 
in the results of the procurement. 

 

Exhibit A



 

 71

5. The term “solicitation” means an Invitation for Bids (IFB), Request for 
Proposals (RFP), or other form of document used to procure equipment or 
services. 

 
D. Grounds for Protest 
 
Any interested party may file a bid protest with Foothill Transit on the grounds that: 
 

1. Foothill Transit has failed to comply with applicable Federal or State Law; 
 
2. Foothill Transit has failed to comply with its procurement procedures; 
 
3. Foothill Transit has failed to comply  with the terms of the solicitation in 

question, including the failure to adhere to the evaluation criteria set forth in 
the solicitation, if applicable; 

 
4. Foothill Transit has issued restrictive or discriminatory specifications; or 
 
5. Award is made to other than the lowest responsive and responsible bidder 

on formally advertised (IFB) procurements. 
 

E. Contents of Protest 
 

1. A bid protest must be filed in writing and must include: 
 

a. The name and address of the protestor. 
 
b. The name and number of the procurement solicitation. 
 
c. A detailed statement of the grounds  for the protest, including all 

relevant facts and a citation to the Federal or State law, the provision 
of Foothill Transit proc urement procedures, or specific term of the 
solicitation alleged to have been violated. 

 
d. Any relevant supporting documentation the protesting party desires 

Foothill Transit to consider in making its decision. 
 
e. The desired relief, action, or ruling sought by the protestor. 
 

2. Protests must be filed with: 
 

 Director of Procurement 
 Foothill Transit  
 100 South Vincent Avenue, Suite 200 
 West Covina, California 91790 

 

Exhibit A



 

 72

3. All protests must be received at t he Foothill Transit address listed above 
during normal office hours of 8:00 a.m.  to 5:00 p.m., Pa cific Standard or 
Daylight Time. 

 
4. If any of the informati on required by this section is omitted or incomplete, 

Foothill Transit will notify the protes tor, in writing, within one day of the 
receipt of the protest, and the protestor will be given one day to provide the 
omitted or incomplet e information in order for the protest to be further 
considered.  Note that this provision onl y applies in the case of a failure t o 
state any grounds for a protest and does not apply to stating inadequate 
grounds for a protest or the failure to submit documentation. 

F. Timing Requirements and Categories of Protests 
 
Foothill Transit will consider the following categories of bid protests within the time period 
set forth in each category: 
 

1. Any bid protest alleging impropriet ies in a solicita tion process or in  
solicitation documents must be filed no later than five calendar days prior to 
the scheduled bid opening or deadline fo r submittal or proposals, as 
appropriate, in order to be considered by Foothill Transit.  Any protest based 
on such grounds not filed within this period will not be considered by Foothill 
Transit.  This category of protests in cludes, but is not limited to, al legation 
of restrictive or exclusionary specifications or conditions. 

 
2. Any bid protests regarding the evaluat ion of bids or proposals by  Foothill 

Transit, or improprieties inv olving the approval or award or proposed 
approval or award of a c ontract must be filed wit h Foothill Transit no later 
than five c alendar days after the protes tor’s receipt of Foothill Transit’s 
written notice of its decision or intended decision to award a contract.  Any 
protest filed after such date which raises issues regarding the evaluation of 
bids or proposals, or the contract approval or award will not be considered 
by Foothill Transit.  Foothill Transit  will notif y all unsuccessful bidders or 
proposers of its intent to award a c ontract to the successful bidder or 
proposer by email at the same time it notifies the successful bidder or 
proposer if Board approval is not r equired, and at the same time as the 
publication of the Board agenda if Board approval is required.   

 
G. Review of Protest by Foothill Transit 
 

1. Foothill Transit will not ify the protestor within 3 days of timely receipt of a 
bid protest that the protest is being considered. 

 
2. In the notification, Foothill Transit will inform the protestor of any additional 

information required for evaluation of the protest by Foothill Transit, and set 
a time deadline for submittal of such information.  If Foothill Transit requests 

Exhibit A



 

 73

additional information, and it is not submitted by the stated deadline, Foothill 
Transit may either review the protest on the information before it, or decline 
to take further action on the protest. 

 
3. In its sole discretion, Foothill Transit may give not ice of any bid protest to 

other bidders or proposers for the proc urement involved in the protest, as 
appropriate, and permit such bidders or offerors to submit comments to 
Foothill Transit relative to the merits of the bid prot est.  Foothill Transit will 
set a time deadline for the submittal of such comments, which will be no 
less than 5 days after Foothill Transit provides notification of the protest. 

 
4. In its sole discretion, Foothill Transit may schedule an informal conference 

on the merits of a bid protest. All interested parties will be in vited to 
participate in the conference.  A ny information provided at the conference 
will only be considered by Foothill Transit in deciding the bid protest if it is 
submitted to Foothill Transit in writing within 3 days after the conference. 

 
H. Effects of Protest on Procurement Actions 
 

1. Upon receipt of a timely protest regar ding either the solicitation process of 
the solicitation documents in the case of sealed bids, Foothill Transit will 
postpone the opening of bids until resolution of the protest.  The filing of the 
protest will not, however, change the dat e on which bids are due, unless 
Foothill Transit determines, and so notif ies all bidders, that such a date 
change is necessary and appropriate to carry out the goals of the 
procurement and assure fair treatment for all bidders. 

 
2. Upon receipt of a timely protest regarding evaluation of bid or proposals, or 

the approval or award of a contract, Foothill Transit will suspend contract 
approval or other pending action, or issue a stop work order if appropriate, 
until the resolution of the protest.  In  this event, the successful bidder or 
proposer may not recover costs as a change order. 

 
3. Notwithstanding the pendency of a bid protest, Foothill Transit reserves the 

right to proceed with any appropriate st ep or action in the procurement 
process or in the implementation of the contract in the following cases: 

 
a. Where the item to be procured is urgently required; 
 
b. Where Foothill Tran sit determines, in writing, that the protest is  

vexatious or frivolous; 
 
c. Where delivery or performanc e will be unduly del ayed, or other 

undue harm to Foothill Transit will occur, by failure to make the award 
promptly; or 

 

Exhibit A



 

 74

d. Where Foothill Tran sit determines that proceeding with the  
procurement is otherwise in the public interest. 

 
I. Summary Dismissal of Protests 
 
Foothill Transit reserves the right to summarily dismiss all or any portion for a bid protest 
that raises legal or factual arguments or allegations that have been considered and 
adjudicated by Foothill Transit in a previous  bid protest by any interested party in the 
same solicitation or procurement action. 
 
J. Protest Decisions 
 

1. After review of a bid protest by appropriate Foothill Transit staff and/or legal 
counsel, a recommendation shall be made to the Foothill Transit Executive 
Director concerning the appropriate disposition of such protest. 

 
2. The recommendation shall be made on the basis of the information provided 

by the protestor and other parties, t he results of any conferences, and 
Foothill Transit’s own investigation and analysis. 

 
3. The decision of the Foothill Transit Executive Director shall be in writing and 

shall be the final binding agency ac tion.  Except in exceptional 
circumstances, the decision of the Foothill Transit Executive Director will be 
issued within 30 days  after the date all relevant information is submitted 
according to the dealings set forth in these procedures. 

 
4. If the protest is upheld, Foothill Transit will take appropriate action to correct 

the procurement process and protect the rights of the protestor, including 
resolicitation, revised evaluation of bids or propos als or Foothill Transit’s  
determination, or termination of the contract. 

 
5. If the protest is denied, Foothill Transit will lift any suspension imposed and 

proceed with the appropriate state of  the procurement process or the 
contract. 

 
K. Judicial Appeals 
 
A protestor adversely affected by a bid protest dec ision may appeal such decision to an 
appropriate court of the State of California. 
 
L. Federal Transit Administration Appeals (Only if Federal funds are used in the 

procurement) 
 

1. A protestor adversely  affected by a bid protest decision of the Foothill 
Transit Executive Dir ector may submit  a protest to the Federal Transit  
Administration (FTA) i n accordance wit h the provisions of FTA Circular 

Exhibit A



 

 75

4220.1F, as currently in effect as of the date of Foothill Transit’s decisio n 
on the bid protest.  A protestor must exhaust its administrative remedies by 
pursuing Foothill Transit’s protes t procedures to completion before 
appealing Foothill Transit’s decision to FTA. 

 
2. Under the provision of the FTA Circu lar, FTA will on ly review protests 

regarding the alleg ed failure of Footh ill Transit to have written protest 
procedures, the alleged failure of Foothill Transit to have complied with its 
protest procedures; or Foothill Tr ansit’s alleged failure to review a protest 
when presented the opportunity  to do so .  FTA will not consider every 
appeal filed by a protestor merely because a Federal law or regulation may 
be involved.  Instead, FTA will exercise discretionary jurisdiction over those 
appeals involving issues im portant to FTA’s overall public transportation 
program.  FTA will refer violation of F ederal law for which it does not have 
primary jurisdiction to the Federal authority having proper jurisdiction.  

 
3. In accordance with the FTA Circular, such protest must be filed with FTA’s 

Regional Office no later than five (5) working days after the date when the 
protestor has received actual or constructive notice of Foothill Transit’s final 
decision or within five (5) working da ys of the date when the protester has 
identified other grounds for appeal to FTA (i.e., Foothill Transit’s failure to 
have or failure to comply with its protest procedures or failure to review the 
protest.) 

 

Exhibit A



 

 76

CHAPTER VI - CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION 
 

A. Contract Administration Guidelines 
 

1. A Notice to Proceed  will be iss ued as necessary as determined by the 
Director of Procurement in consulta tion with legal counsel and the Project 
Manager.  

 
2. A letter of agreement shall be sufficient for projects with a specific scope of 

work and with a value of $10,000 or less. 
 
3. A full contr act agreement will b e entered into and e xecuted for all other  

projects. 
 
4. All agreements will be assigned a contract number, which must be referred 

to on the Purchase Order and the contractor’s invoices. 
 
5. Once the Notice to Proceed or agreement is signed, the Project Manager 

will originate the Purchase Order. 
 
6. The Project Manager will approve all invoices before payment is issued. 
 
7. The Executive Director will sign all contracts unless unavailable in which  

case contracts will be signed in accordance with the adopted Procurement 
Policies and Procedures. 

 
8. A copy of the procur ement document must be in cluded with the contract 

files, including an explanation of the process used in procuring the goods or 
services. 

 
9. The Project Manager is responsible for ensuring that each contractor 

provides the goods and services specified in the contract in accordance with 
the terms and conditions of the contract including, but not limited to, product 
and/or construction specifications.   

 
B. Federal Procurement Requirements 

Since Foothill Transit receives FTA c apital assistance, Federal procurement  
requirements apply to all Federally-funded c apital procurements. Some of these 
requirements are unique and pertain only  to Federally-funded procurements.  
Listed below are those specific contract terms and/or regulatory or administrative 
requirements that only apply when Feder al funds a re being u tilized for the 
procurement.  Note that t he requirements of the Ameri cans with Disabilities Act, 
the equal opportunity provisions of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, and 
the FTA’s Drug and Alcohol Testing Requirements (49 CFR Parts 655) apply to all 
procurements (if applicable) even if Federal funds are not utilized.  

Exhibit A



 

 77

 
1. State or local geographic preferences, except those expressly mandated or 

encouraged by Federal statute, are prohibited. 
 
2. For procurements over $100,000, the Buy America requirements set forth 

in 49 CFR part 661 apply. 
 
3. Any procurement involving equipment, materials, or commodities suitable 

for transport by ocean vessel shall contain the clauses required by 49 CFR 
Part 381: Cargo preference - U.S. Flag Vessels. 

 
4. In the procurement of rollin g stock, the requirements of  49 CFR Part 663  

concerning Pre-Award and post-Delivery Audits apply. 
 
5. In the procurement of buses, t he requirements of 49 CFR Part 665 

concerning Bus Testing apply. 
 
6. For public works/construction projec ts, the requirements of 49 C FR Part 

41(specifically Part 41.117: Seismic safety) apply. 
 
7. For public works/construction projects  or activities exceeding $2,000, the 

requirements of the Davis-Bac on Act (40 U.S.C. 276a - 276a(7)) and 
implementing Department of Labor regulations apply.  
 

8. For public works/construction projects in excess of $2000, the provision of  
the Copeland Anti-Kickback Act ( 40 U.S.C. 276c) and implementing 
Department of Labor regulations apply. 

 
9. For public works/construction projec ts, the requirements of the Contract  

Work Hours and S afety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 327-222) and 
implementing Department of Labor regulations apply. 

 
10. For any contract of over $100,000, the third party contractor will be required 

to complete and submit certification forms, and, if appropriate, lobbying 
disclosure forms concerning compliance with 31 U.S.C. 1352. 

 
11. Each third party contractor must acknowledge that if it makes a false, 

fictitious, or fraudulent claim, statemen t, submission, or certification, the 
Federal government reserves the ri ght to impose pena lties under the 
Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986. 

 
12. Each third party contractor is required to acknowledge the mandator y 

standards and policies related to every efficiency that are contained in the 
State Energy Conser vation Plan issued in compliance with the Energ y 
Policy and Conservation Act (42 U.S.C. 6321, et. seq.). 

 

Exhibit A



 

 78

13. For public works/construction projec ts, each third party contractor must 
agree to comply with any Federal environmental and resource conservation 
requirements that apply to the construction activities under the terms of the 
Contract.  The contractor is required to report any vi olation of standards,  
orders or regulation issued under the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401 et. seq.) 
or the Federal Water Pollution Cont rol Act (33 U.S.C. 1251 et. seq.) 
resulting from any activity of the contractor in connection with the 
performance of the contract to FTA  and t o the appropriate U.S. EPA 
regional office.  The cont ract is responsible for the disposal of hazardou s 
materials, in accordance with applicable Federal, State and loca l law and 
guidelines 

14. Federal, State and local law and guidelines. 
 
15.14. Each third party contractor for contracts over $25,000 must certify that they 

will not enter into contracts for over $25,000 with suspended or debarred 
contractors (Executive Order 12549; 49 CFR part 29). 

 
16.15. Each third party contractor must comply with Civil Rights requirements  

concerning nondiscrimination and equal employment opportunity (29 
U.S.C. 623; 42 U.S.C.  2000, 6102, 12112; 12132; 49 U.S.C. 5332; 29 
C.F.R. Part 1630; 41 C.F.R. Parts 60 et. Seq.). 

 
17.16. Each third party contractor must comply with appropriate Patent and Rights 

in Data requirements (37 C.F.R. Part 401 and 49 C.F.R. Part 18). 
 
18.17. Each third party co ntractor must comply with the Department of 

Transportation Disadvantage Business Enterprise (D BE) regulations (49 
C.F.R. Part 26). 

 
19.18. Fly America.  Each third party contractor must comply with 49 U.S.C. 40118 

in accordance with the General Service Administration’s regulations at 41 
CFR Part 301-10. 

 
C. Bonding Requirements 

 
1. Purpose 

 
To ensure uniform and equitable applicat ion of bonding requirements in 
compliance with State and Federal regulations, and protect the interests of 
Foothill Transit. 
 

2. Responsibility 
 
It shall be t he responsibility of the Dir ector of Procurement to ensure that 
these guidelines are followed and applied impartially. 
 

Exhibit A



 

 79

3. Types of Bonds 
 

a. Bid Guarantee: This shall consist of a firm commitment, such as a bid 
bond, certified or cashier’s check, or other negotiable instrument 
accompanying a bid as assurance the bidder will, upon acceptance of 
the bid by Foothill Transit, execute such contractual documents as may 
be required within the time specified. Foothill Transit will require bid 
bonds for all public works/construction projects in excess of $6,500, for 
any equipment or services contract of a critical nature to the operations 
of Foothill Transit, or for any equipment contract in which the 
equipment if specifically manufactured for Foothill Transit. Public 
works/construction projects require a bid bond of ten (10) percent of 
the amount bid.  Equipment purchases and service projects requiring a 
bid bond will have a bond requirement of up to five (5) percent of the 
amount bid.  Foothill Transit will require proposal bonds for any 
equipment or services contract of a critical nature to the operations of 
Foothill Transit. Service projects requiring a proposal bond will have a 
bond requirement of up to five (5) percent of the amount bid.  Failure of 
bidders to comply with these requirements will result in a determination 
by the Director of Procurement that the bid is non-responsive. 

 
b. Performance:  This is a bond executed in connection with a contract to 

secure fulfillment of all the Contractor’s obligations under such 
contract.  Performance bonds shall be written by a corporate surety 
registered in the County of Los Angeles in the State of California.  
Foothill Transit will require performance bonds for all public 
works/construction projects in excess of $6,500, for any equipment or 
services contract of a critical nature to the operations of Foothill 
Transit, or for any equipment contract in which the equipment if 
specifically manufactured for Foothill Transit. Public works/construction 
projects require a performance bond of 100 percent of the amount of 
the contract.  Equipment purchases requiring a bond will have a bond 
requirement of up to twenty (20) percent of the amount of the contract.  
Service projects requiring a bond will have a bond requirement of up to 
100 percent of the amount of the contract.   

 
c. Payment:  This is a bond execut ed in connection with a Contract to 

assure payment as required by law of all persons supplyin g labor and 
material in the exec ution of the wo rk provided for  in the contract.  
Payment bonds shall be written by a co rporate surety registered in the 
County of Los Angeles in the State of California.  Foothill Trans it will 
require a bond for public works/construction contract over $25,000.  The 
required payment bond will be 100 percent of the amount of the contract. 

 

Exhibit A



 

 80

4. Procedures 
 

Bid guarantees and performance bonds  are required by the State of 
California for all public works/constr uction projects in excess of $6,500.  
Payment bonds are required by the St ate of Calif ornia for all public 
works/construction projects in excess of $25,000. 
 
Bid guarantees and/or performance bonds are not required un less the 
procurement involves equipment or serv ices of a cri tical nature to the 
operations of the agency and/or is specifically manufactured for the agency 
thereby making procurem ent from another source  difficult or time 
consuming.  Payment bonds are not required under these circumstances. 
 
Required bonding levels are: 

 
 Type of Bond 
Type of Project Bid Performance Payment 
Public Works/Construction  
(as applicable) 

10% 100% 100% 

Materials and Equipment up to 10% up to 20% Not Required 
Services  
(except for personal or 
professional) 

up to 5% up to 100% Not Required 

 
5. Forfeiting of Bonds 
 

All contracts that contain bonding r equirements shall c ontain a clause 
allowing termination on default of the c ontractor and providing that in such 
cases the surety company shall bear the responsibility for the completion of 
the contract, or if no surety com pany has provided a performance bond,  
Foothill Transit will claim the alte rnate to the performance and payment  
bond and use such funds for the completion of the contract. 

D. Insurance Requirements 
 

1. Insurance requirements vary depending on the project type.  They may 
include provisions for personal inju ry, environmental liability and other  
areas.  The insuranc e requirements fo r each project are established by 
Foothill Transit. 

 
2. In assessing risk, Foothill Transit  will consider the following project 

information: 

a. Scope of work. 

b. Contract amount. 

Exhibit A



 

 81

c. Whether the project requires th e contractor to operate on Foothill 
Transit property. 

d. The ultimate use of the good or service provided by the contractor. 

e. Previous experience associated with similar or related projects. 

3. Once the insurance requirements are defined, they must be included in the 
procurement document. 

 
4. The Director of Procurement w ill request that insurance certificates be  

provided within ten (10) business days afte r contract execution.  A copy of  
the insurance certificate is to be kept in the project file. 

 
5. The Director of Procurement shall not allow any contract to continue without 

proper insurance in effect after notif ication of the lapse of requisite 
insurance. 

 
E. Liquidated Damages 

 
1. The Project Manager will dete rmine whether the use of a liquidated  

damages provision is appropriate for each specific procurement.  The 
amount of liquidated damages must be reasonable, shall be set at a specific 
rate for each day of overrun in contract time for a public works/construction 
contract or for delivery of goods, or fo r each instance of an incident giving 
rise to imposition of liquidated damages in a service contract, and the rate 
must be specified in the contract.  If liquidated damages are assessed in a 
Federally-funded contract, the Project Manager in consultation with the 
Finance Manager will ensure that, as  appropriate, the liquidated damages  
recovered are credited to the pr oject unless the Feder al Transit 
Administration permits otherwise.  

 
2. A liquidated damages clause may be used if it is determined that: 

a. The time of delivery of goods or services to Foothill Transit is critical, 
and Foothill Transit can expect to suffer damage if the deliv ery is 
delinquent. 

b. The extent or amount of such damage would be difficult or impossible 
to determine. 

F. Indemnification 
 

All contracts shall provide that the contractor indemnify and save harmless Foothill 
Transit, its members, Exec utive Board Members, officers, agents, management 
consulting staffemployees, and other consultants or contractors as appropriate 
from any injuries and or damages receiv ed by any person during any operations  

Exhibit A



 

 82

connected with the C ontract, by use of any improper materi als, or by any act or 
omission of the Contractor or his subcontractor, agents, servants or employees.   
 

G. Termination for Convenience 
 

All contracts shall contain a provision a llowing for the termination of the contract 
for convenience by Foothill Transit and prescribe methods in which the contractor 
may calculate cost of work already per formed, and termination s ettlement costs. 
All contracts supported by  
Federal grants that exceed $10,000 are to include provisions that allow Foot hill 
Transit to terminate the contract, and that stipulate the manner by which 
termination will be made and the basis for settlement. 
 

H. Dispute Resolution 
 

All contracts shall contain provisions providing that any dispute between the 
contractor and Foothill Transit relating to  the implementation or  administration of 
the contract in question be res olved in accordance with a dispute resolution 
process set out in the contract. 
 

I. Project Control File 
 

The project control file s hall be maintained during the procurement process, 
throughout the term of the contract and fo r three years following completion of all 
work. 
 
The control file consists of the following sections: 
 
1. Vendor list. 
2. Rationale for type of procurement used. 
3. List of all vendors responding to the procurement. 
4. All documentation relating to the selection process, including, but not limited 

to:  evaluation score sheets, bids, rationale for selection and/or rejection of 
respondents, and the source selection plan. 

5. Notice to proceed (if applicable). 
6. Final contract. 
7. Executive Board report, if required. 
8. All correspondence. 
9. Proof of insurance. 
10. Bond documents. 
11. Notice of Solicitation. 
12. Legal advertisement. 
13. Original procurement document and all addenda. 
14. Original responses to the procurement. 
15. DBE information. 
16. Returned mail. 

Exhibit A



 

 83

 
J. Vendor File 

 
1. The Vendor File consists of a lis ting of businesses, organizations, and 

enterprises that could provide quality goods and services specific to Foothill 
Transit. 

 
2. A vendor may be declared “not responsible” and removed from the Vendor 

File if the vendor: 

a. Repeatedly misses deadlines in deliveries of goods and services. 

b. Provides unsatisfactory goods and services. 

3. Before declaring a vendor to be “ not responsible,” the Director of 
Procurement will make every effort to  give the vendor an opportunity to 
correct the problem.  The following steps must be followed: 

a. Notify vendor of possible disqualification from vendor list 

b. If no response to the first notice is received, issue a second notice 

c. If no response to the second notice is received, the third notice will 
be issued informing the vendor t hat it has been deemed “not  
responsible” and removed from t he Vendor file effecti ve ten days 
from the date of the third notice. 

4. A file will b e kept of all activity and communications with the vendor.  All 
actions must be fully documented and the file will be retained for a period 
no less than two years. 

 
5. In order for a vendor to be reinstated into Foothill Transit’s Vendor File, the 

vendor must file a request with the Dir ector of Procurement in writing 
declaring to be a “responsible vendor.” 

 
6. The reinstatement letter must include the following: 

a. Reason vendor failed to respond to procurement requests. 

b. Reason vendor provided slow or unsatisfactory deliveries. 

c. Steps vendor has taken to eliminate slow or unsatisfactory deliveries. 

d. Statement why vendor should be  reconsidered as a responsible 
vendor. 

e. Promise to maintain their responsible vendor status. 

Exhibit A



 

 84

K. Types of Contracts and Payment Terms 
 
1. Except as provided in this section, any type of contract  which will promote 

the best interest of Foothill Trans it may be used.  A type of  contract other 
than firm, fixed-price may be used only when a determination is made by 
the Director of Procurement that such contract is likely to be less costly than 
the firm, fixed-price contract  or that it is impracti cal to obtain the supplies, 
services or construction required by  the firm, fixed-price contracting 
method. 

 
2. A firm, fixed-price contract establis hes a price that is not subject to any 

adjustment on the basis of the contract or’s cost experience in p erforming 
the contract. 

 
3. A cost-reimbursement contract is one in which the contractor i s paid its 

reasonable, allocable and allowable co sts of performance regardless of 
whether the work is completed. 

 
4. A time and material contract can be used only: 

a. After a determination by the Direc tor of Procurement that no other 
type of contract is suitable; and 

b. If the contract specifies a ceiling price that the contractor shall not 
exceed except at its own risk. 

5. Cost plus percentage of cost contracts are prohibited. 
 

6. Advance payments utiliz ing Federal Transit Administration funds are  
prohibited unless prior wr itten concurrence is obtained from the Federal 
Transit Administration. 

 
7. Progress payments will only be made on the basis of costs incurred or, in 

the case of construction contracts or certain major acquisition contracts, on 
the basis of percent of completion or  major milestones completed or major 
components procured.  In such cases, legal counsel will ensure that the 
contract provides that Foothill Tr ansit obtain adequat e security includ ing 
taking title to major components , letters of credit or equi valent means to 
protect Foothill Transit’s interests. 

Exhibit A



 
 

Exhibit B 

 

Recommended Procurement Method Level Changes 

 
Goods and Services 

 
Current 

Threshold 
Proposed 
Threshold 

Method of Procurement 

Less than $5,000* No change Micro Purchase 

$5,000 - $20,000**, *** $5,000 - $75,000 Small Purchase 

Greater than $20,000 Greater than $75,000 RFP or IFB 

*Less than $3,000 when Federal Funds are used 

** $3,000 to $75,000 when Federal Funds are used 
*** Agency reserves the right to use the IFB/RFP Process if desired 

 



 

Agenda Item No. 11 

 
 
October 23, 2015 
 
 
To: Executive Board 
 
Subject: Request to Issue Invitation for Bids (IFB) No. 16-023 – Arcadia 

Vault Canopy 
 
 
Recommendation 

Authorize the Executive Director to Issue IFB No. 16-023 for construction 
activities related to the Arcadia Vault Canopy Installation project. 

Analysis 

Foothill Transit buses are equipped with an on-board farebox for customer 
cash collection. Currently, cash fares contained in the on-board farebox are 
deposited into a secured vault at the conclusion of the day’s service along 
with refueling and bus washing activities. For increased security, visibility, and 
monitoring of the farebox vaulting activities, a modification of the farebox 
vaulting process is recommended. The new farebox vaulting policy requires 
that every bus returning from service vault all farebox contents as buses enter 
the facility. This is similar to the farebox vaulting process currently in place at 
the Pomona Operations & Maintenance Facility. In addition, this new 
procedure improves data collection of daily cash fares generated by each bus. 

To implement this new procedure at the Arcadia Operations & Maintenance 
Facility, new farebox vaulting equipment will be installed just north of the 
dispatch area near the main bus entrance gate. The Arcadia Vault Canopy 
project scope of work includes a new canopy shelter to match the 
architectural style of the facility, including any civil and electrical work for the 
new farebox vaulting station. The canopy will be equipped with overhead LED 
lighting and employee seating. Additionally, conduit provisions for data and 
power for farebox vaulting equipment will be installed from canopy shelter to 
Foothill Transit’s data room in the administrative building at Arcadia. The new 
farebox probing and vaulting equipment will be installed by Cubic 
Transportation Systems under an existing contract. 

  

 



~~~------~~~~-
xecutive B ard Meeting Foothill Tra nsit 

Budget Impact 

Special Executive Board Meeting - 10/23/15 
Request to Issue Invitation for Bids (I FB) 16-023 - Arcadia 

Vault Canopy 
Page 2 

Funding is included in Foothill Transit's approved Fiscal Year 2015-2016 
budget for Fare System Equipment - Phase II. 

Construction Project Manager Executive Director 

Agenda Item No. 11 



 

Agenda Item No. 12 

 
October 23, 2015 
 
To: Executive Board 
 
Subject: Contract Award – Art Component at the Azusa Intermodal 

Transportation Center 
 
 
Recommendation 

Authorize the Executive Director to execute a contract with Artist Jose 
Antonio Aguirre for an estimated contract amount of $170,000 to include 
fabrication and installation of an art element for the Azusa Intermodal 
Transportation Center.   

Analysis 

Metro commissions artists to create engaging and thought-provoking works 
of art to form part of various transit-related projects. Each Gold Line station 
artist or artist team works with the underlying City and builders to integrate 
their uniquely selected materials, color palette and artwork into each station.  
Commissioned to create a permanent art installation at the Metro Gold Line 
Azusa Downtown Station, public artist Jose Antonio Aguirre’s station artwork 
is inspired by the unique tribal history of the region. 
 
On October 12, 2015 the Azusa City Council received a presentation from the 
Azusa Gold Line Station artist Jose Antonio Aguirre on design alternatives for 
the exterior of the Azusa Intermodal Transportation Center.  A final 
presentation to the City Council will be made on October 26, 2015 to obtain 
approval and direction on the proposed art designs.  In anticipation of the 
approval by the City Council, the recommendation is to execute a contract 
with the Artist Jose Antonio Aguirre for an estimated contract amount of 
$170,000.  Work by the Artist shall include fabrication and installation of a 
mosaic mural to be incorporated on the south wall of the facility, include an 
Azusa monument sign. 
  
In order to create a tie-in between the Gold Line Azusa Downtown Station 
and the Azusa Intermodal Parking Facility, meandering river sidewalk pavers 
are being proposed.  The sidewalk pavers can be installed by Foothill Transit’s 
general contractor while the color selection will be made by the artist to 
replicate the “meandering river” as installed on the Azusa Downtown Station.  
The concrete pavers will also require additional design by the architectural 
consultant, Choate Parking Consultants to replace the current sidewalk design 
with the concrete pavers.  The estimated total for the additional art  



~~~------~~~~-
Executivo oard Meefng Foothill Transit 

Special Executive Board Meeting - 10/23/15 
Contract Award -Art component at the Azusa lntermodal 

Transportation Center 
Page 2 

component is approximately $250,000. The new artwork will be a shared 
cost between the City of Azusa and Foothill Transit. This cost will be included 
in the overall Project expense. Should the additional art work exceed the 
funding obligations as described in the Memorandum of Understanding, 
Amendment No. 4, the City will be responsible for securing additional funds 
for completion of the art work. 

MAP-21 associated transit improvements, under 49 U.S.C. 5302, stipulates that 
art can be integrated into facility design, landscaping, and historic 
preservation, and funded as a capital expense associated with transit 
improvements. The incidental costs of incorporating art into fac ilit ies an.d 
including an artist on a design team continue to be eligible expenses. 

Budget Impact 

Foothill Transit's current Business Plan includes funding for Azusa Park & Ride 
Project. 

Sincerely, 

~ 
Director of Faci lities Executive Director 

Agenda Item No. 12 



 

Agenda Item No. 13 

 
October 23, 2015 
 
 
To: Executive Board 
 
Subject: Fiscal Year 2014-2015 Comprehensive Annual Financial Audit 

Report Results 
 
 
This item has been rescheduled and will be presented at the December 11, 
2015 Executive Board Meeting. 



 

Agenda Item No. 14 

 
October 23, 2015 
 
 
To: Executive Board 
 
Subject: California Transit Association’s 50th Annual Fall Conference  
 & Expo Update, November 18-20, Pasadena 
 
 
Recommendation 

Receive and file the California Transit Association’s 50th Annual Fall 
Conference & Expo Update. 

Analysis 

Foothill Transit and Pasadena Transit will be co-hosting the California Transit 
Association’s 50th Annual Fall Conference and Expo. The California Transit 
Association has been representing transit agencies in our state for 50 years 
and the annual conference will be the cumulation of the anniversary 
celebration.  

The conference will be held November 18-20 at the Pasadena Convention 
Center. The conference schedule overview is provided as Attachment A. 
During the conference there will be plenary session and concurrent sessions 
on topics such as  zero emission bus technology challenges, stretching 
marketing dollars, how to manage data, and updates on Cap and Trade. As a 
co-host of this conference Foothill Transit will display information about our 
service and projects at a table near the registration booth. This provides an 
excellent opportunity to showcase our service and our agency. 

Each year on Thursday evening during the conference there is an evening 
reception, and this year that reception will be held at the Rose Bowl with 
tours of the stadium and access onto the field. The conference also provides 
two technical tours scheduled for the host agencies to give a tour and show 
their latest projects or technology. Foothill Transit’s technical tour will be of 
our Ecoliner. Staff will be explaining the charging process of our electric buses 
as well as providing a ride around town to top off the tour. A second technical 
tour will be hosted by Pasadena Transit. Pasadena staff will guide attendees 
to their facility and provide an overview of their Data Management 
Technology. Both tours are within walking distance of the Pasadena 
Convention Center. 



Foothill Transit 
Special Executive Board Meeting - 10/23/15 

California Transit Associat ion's 50th Annual Fall Conference 
& Expo Update, November 18-20, Pasadena 

Page 2 

The Program & Conference Committee has been holding bi-weekly meetings 
for conference planning. Various subgroups have been meeting on the off 
weeks to discuss their areas of responsibilities - ranging from the concurrent 
sessions to Thursday's reception to the Expo. Foothill Transit staff including 
David Reyno, Linda Apodaca, and Katie Gagnon have been participating in 
the conference planning subgroups to ensure this conference is a success and 
a great representation of Foothill Transit. 

Sincerely, 

on 
Special Projects Manager 

Agenda Item No. 14 



 CELEBRATING  
THE PAST,
 FORGING 
THE FUTURE

REGISTER TODAY

Connecting us for

California Transit Association’s 50th Annual Fall Conference & Expo
Pasadena Convention Center  November 18-20, 2015

presented by

Attachment A



California Transit Association’s  
50th Annual Fall Conference & Expo

PRELIMINARY AGENDA 
TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 17

3:30 pm – 4:30 pm Registration Desk Open

4:00 pm – 8:00 pm  Executive Committee Meeting 

WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 18

7:45 am – 5:30 pm  Registration Desk Open 

8:00 am – 10:00 am  Maintenance Committee Meeting  

8:30 am – 10:00 am   Operations Committee Meeting 

10:30 am – 12:00 pm  Welcome & Opening General Session 
 Forging Transit’s Future:  
 Defining the Vision

12:00 pm – 1:30 pm  50th Anniversary Lunch & Games

1:45 pm – 3:15 pm  Concurrent Sessions I 

3:30 pm – 5:30 pm  Tech Tours

5:30 pm – 7:00 pm  Welcome Reception & Expo

THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 19

7:30 am – 5:00 pm  Registration Desk Open

7:45 am – 9:00 am  Small Operators Award Breakfast 

8:00 am – 9:00 am  Breakfast & Expo

9:15 am – 10:30 am  Keynote Session  
 Featuring Tony Seba

10:45 am – 12:15 pm  Concurrent Sessions II

12:15 pm – 2:45 pm  Expo, Lunch & Prize Drawings 

3:00 pm – 4:30 pm  Concurrent Sessions III 

5:00 pm – 7:30 pm  Reception at the Rose Bowl  

FRIDAY, NOVEMBER 20

8:00 am – 12:00 pm  Registration Desk Open

8:00 am – 9:00 am  Breakfast Buffet

9:00 am – 10:30 am  Concurrent Sessions IV  

10:45 am – 12:15 pm Closing General Session  
 Featuring Gabe Klein

12:15 pm  Conference Adjourns

Connecting us for

presented by

Attachment A



3

2015 AGENCY HOSTS
This year we have two agency hosts support-
ing the conference: Foothill Transit and the 
City of Pasadena.

Foothill Transit provides community-oriented,  
environmentally friendly bus service through-
out Southern California’s San Gabriel and 
Pomona Valleys, including express bus routes 
to Pasadena and Downtown Los Angeles. The 
City of Pasadena offers its own local services, 
Pasadena Dial-A-Ride and the Pasadena Area 
Rapid Transit System (ARTS).

CELEBRATING THE PAST, 
FORGING THE FUTURE

The world of public transit is evolving. Innovations inspired by advances in  
technology are making pubic transit systems smarter and better connected 
for operator and rider, and work more sustainably and cost-effectively.  

Ridership continues to climb and non-traditional mobility-as-a-service offerings  
are gaining critical mass. This is a pivotal time in our history. The offerings from 
fixed-route, bus rapid transit, paratransit, light rail, trolley, and commuter rail have 
never been as extensive and interconnected. 

Don’t miss this opportunity to join in the dialog around public transit today  
and share ways to take advantage of the innovations, and pilot programs being 
implemented by transit agencies around the state. 

WHO SHOULD ATTEND?
The conference is designed for transit organizations of all sizes and for transit industry 
professionals at all levels, including CEOs, general managers, board members,  
maintenance professionals, financial and operations managers, information  
technology administrators, marketing managers, human resources managers,  
legislative affairs managers, transit business members, and transit activists. 

Attachment A



4

KEYNOTE AND GENERAL SESSIONS

Forging Transit’s Future: Defining the Vision
Wednesday, November 18 | 10:30am – 12:00pm

Opening General Session facilitator, Greg 
Lindsay, a journalist, futurist, and established 
authority on globalization and innovation  
leads a provocative panel discussion dur-
ing Forging Transit’s Future to explore the 
profound effect on public transit’s future of 
emerging social, political, technological, and 

cultural trends. Panelists from the private sector, academia, 
and our most innovative public transit systems suggest how  
transit must evolve to enhance the communities where we  
live and work. Panelists include Scott Bogren, Community 
Transportation Association of America, Tim Papandreou,  
San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency, Seleta  
Reynolds, Los Angeles Department of Transportation, and 
Susan Shaheen, UC Berkeley Transportation Sustainability 
Research Center.

Is Our Urban Transportation Infrastructure  
Obsolete?
Thursday, November 19 | 9:15am – 10:30am

Keynote speaker Tony Seba is an entrepreneur, 
educator, author, and business architect. He 
offers insights on the mega-trends that are  
reshaping public and private transportation 
and how planners can stay one step ahead  
in rethinking and redrawing the transportation 
landscape in a clean, sustainable, and budget- 
conscious way.  

Best Change Management Practices for  
Taking Action
Friday, November 20 | 10:45am - 12:15pm

Closing keynote speaker Gabe Klein has 
demonstrated in his work (from Zipcar to food 
trucks, to running a state and city Department 
of Transportation) how to innovate successfully, 
regardless of the sector or the budget size, 
to create great spaces and places. In his new 
book Start-Up City, Gabe gives the formula  

for making big change fast – that sticks – even in a future 
of exponential technological change. The principles Gabe 
shares can be applied whether you are in a small town, a  
mid-sized region or a large city.  

ACTIVITIES
Jim Ditch Golf Tournament and Awards Lunch 
Tuesday, November 17 | 8:00 am – 2:00 pm
This annual golf outing, in its sixth year, benefits the James 
A. Ditch Education Fund to promote and support careers in 
public transportation. To learn more, visit: www.scrttc.com 
and click on Ditch Fund.

SPECIAL EVENTS & ACTIVITIES

2015 TECH TOURS
Wednesday, November 18 | 3:30 pm – 5:30 pm* 

Ecoliner Electric Bus Tech Tour
Climb aboard Foothill Transit’s Ecoliners – California’s largest 
fast-charge, all electric, zero-emissions bus fleet – and hear 
about the agency’s future plans to expand their electric bus 
program. Enjoy the ride and chat with Foothill Transit’s  
vehicle technology crew and observe the in-route fast  
charging process.

Transformative Data Management Tour
Get a first-hand look at the City of Pasadena’s recent roll  
out of technology on its fixed-route service that has created  
a system that has fully integrated data and learn how the  
management of this data has enabled the transformation  
of its operations and strategic planning.  

* These tours take place concurrently. 

EVENTS
The Expo
Take advantage of the multiple opportunities to meet, greet, 
and enjoy good food, all while viewing what’s new in products 
and services for the transit industry. 

Wednesday, November 18 
Welcome Reception & Expo: 5:30 pm – 7:00 pm

Thursday, November 19
Breakfast & Expo: 8:00 am – 9:00 am  
Expo, Lunch & Prize Drawings: 12:15 pm – 2:45 pm

Small Operators Award Breakfast
Thursday, November 19 | 7:45 am – 9:00 am
All transit operators are invited to participate in this informa-
tive program. This year, Leslie Rogers, the FTA’s soon-to-retire 
Region IX Administrator, and Scott Bogren, the Community 
Transportation Association of America’s Communications 
Director, will update the audience on the efforts in Congress 
to pass the “DRIVE” multi-year transportation reauthorization 
bill and other federal issues.

At the end of the session, help us celebrate as Joe Meer,  
the Small Operators Committee Chair, presents the Transit 
Professional and Transit Agency of the Year Awards, as well  
as the Transit Innovation and Distinguished Service Awards.

Note: This event requires a separate registration fee to attend.

Reception at the Rose Bowl
Thursday, November 19 | 5:00 pm – 7:30 pm
Join us for quality networking time and celebrate the California 
Transit Association’s 50th Anniversary at the legendary Rose 
Bowl. You’ll also experience a rare opportunity to step onto 
the famous field, test your passing skills, and capture the  
moment in a special photo op. Take a behind-the-scenes tour 
of the locker rooms and press box, and enjoy incredible views 
of the San Gabriel Mountains, all while savoring innovative 
cuisine by Wolfgang Puck Catering.    

Attachment A



   DAY, T IME BRE AKOUT ONE BRE AKOUT T WO BRE AKOUT THREE BRE AKOUT FOUR BRE AKOUT FIVE                       

  FISCAL, PLANNING, MAINTENANCE MANAGEMENT & MARKETING OPERATIONS  
   POLICY & COMPLIANCE  LEADERSHIP

 WEDNESDAY,  

 NOV. 18
 1:45 pm – Regulations vs. Going Electric: Forging Transit’s Future: Stretching Intelligent
 3:15 pm Expectations: Surviving Is It for You? Implementing the Vision Marketing Dollars Transportation Systems: 
  the New Triennial  Part 1  How to Manage and 
  Review and Rulemaking    Leverage the Data
 3:30 pm –   Forging Transit’s Future:  We Collect 
 4:30 pm   Implementing the Vision  
    Part 2

 THURSDAY, 

 NOV. 19
 10:45 am – Integrating Data Zero Emission How the Best Making Transit How to Improve
 12:15 pm Into the Public Bus Technology Transit Leaders  Cool for Everyone and Enhance
  Planning and Challenges Make Great Decisions   the Contract Process
  Policymaking Process   

 3:00 pm – Cap and Trade On Board Video Paratransit in the How to Build Understanding
 4:30 pm One Year Later: Lessons Is Changing Fast: 21st Century a Transit  and Leveraging 
  Learned and What Are You Ready?  Community Transportation 
  Lies Ahead    Network Companies
  

 FRIDAY, 

 NOV. 20
 9:00 am – Microtransit Trends: Disc Brakes: Setting a Place  A+ Student Ridership Averting a Second
 10:30 am Fad or Future? They Are Here, for Transit at the  Programs Disaster: Latest Trends
   and They Work! Local Funding Table  in Disaster Financial
      Oversight

TRACKS AND SESSIONS AT-A-GLANCE

5

Attachment A



 

Agenda Item No. 15 

 
October 23, 2015 
 
 
To: Executive Board 
 
Subject: West Covina Bus Stop Enhancement Project 
 
 
Recommendation 

Authorize the Executive Director to develop designs for transit stop shelters 
adjacent to Foothill Transit’s Administrative office and execute an agreement 
with the City of West Covina in an amount not to exceed $200,000 to 
construct, own, and maintain these shelters.  

Analysis 

Currently, the bus stop shelters for the two stops closest to the Foothill 
Transit Administrative offices are well worn and unremarkable in design. 
These stops are used by customers traveling to and from our offices and will 
be used by the residents of the new “Colony at the Lakes” housing complex 
that is being constructed adjacent to the Foothill Transit administrative 
offices. Further, these stops are located at a key gateway to the City of West 
Covina.  
 
The Foothill Transit Bus Stop Enhancement Program (BSEP) was designed to 
provide member cities with financial assistance to make improvements to 
approved locations for the purchase of bus stop modules such as shelters, 
benches, trashcans, tree grates, sidewalk improvements, crosswalk 
improvements and landscaping. 
 
The BSEP was developed with the following goals: 

• Strengthen community identity and ownership 
• Complement adjacent activities 
• Provide safety-related amenities 
• Improve bus stop technology 
• Attract new customers 
• Reinforce the positive image of Foothill Transit 

 
The two existing older model bus shelters located next to the Administrative 
Office Building will be replaced with new bus shelters.  The two bus stops will 
be the flagship of bus shelters for Foothill Transit.  Further, these stops could 
be the first of several stops which could create a transit center and stronger 
transit presence in West Covina. Foothill Transit currently operates multiple  



Foothill Transit 
E: ,.. •• i ' 0 arc ~ ··ng 

Special Executive Board Meeting - 10/23/15 
West Covina Bus Stop Enhancement Project 

Page 2 

lines in West Covina along Vincent Avenue and West Covina Parkway. A 
sufficient transit center and corresponding amenities are not in place to serve 
the many transit riders who travel along this corridor. 

The new bus shelters are expected to incorporate elements of the fa<;:ade 
found at the exterior of the Foothill Transit administrative office building, LED 
lights, including conduit for future electronic customer information display 
board. The estimated cost for construction is estimated to be as much as 
$200,000 depending on the selected design to be proposed and the 
complexity of the work to be completed which may require relocation of light 
posts and changes to the adjacent sidewalk. 

As part of this project, Foothill Transit's Executive Director, under his contract 
approval authority, is anticipated to enter into an agreement with RNL Design, 
Foothil l Transit's On-Ca ll Arch itectural, Design and Engineering Services firm, 
to design the two bus shelters. 

The project will be conducted in col laboration with the City of West Covina. 
The design for this project will be presented to the Foothil l Transit Executive 
Board for approval and to the appropriate pol icy body for the City of West 
Covina. Once the design plans are approved, the City will be responsible for 
construction of the bus shelters. 

Budget Impact 

Foothill Transit's current Business Plan includes fund ing for this project. 

Sincerely, 

harlane Bailey 
Director of Facilities 

Agenda Item No. 15 



 

Agenda Item No. 16 

 
 
 
October 23, 2015 
 
 
To: Executive Board 
 
Subject: Fiscal Year 2015-2016 First Quarter Performance Indicators 

Report 
 
 
Recommendation 

Receive and file the FY 2015-2016 First Quarter Performance Indicators 
Report. 

Summary 

This report provides an analysis of Foothill Transit’s performance indicators 
for the first quarter of FY 2015-2016.  Foothill Transit monitors a number of 
measures in evaluating the services provided to the public.  There are key 
performance indicators that record the bus system safety, courtesy, and 
reliability standards, along with industry-standard measurements which are 
monitored to assess transit operations. 
 
In the first quarter of FY 2015-2016, Foothill Transit achieved three out of nine 
key performance indicator goals.  The performance indicator targets met for 
the quarter are: miles between service interruptions; average hold time; and 
average cost per vehicle service hour. 
 
Further detail on each performance measure including a description and 
analysis to account for the variances between reporting periods follows in the 
analysis section of this item.  Foothill Transit’s performance indicators are 
summarized below. 
 

• Boardings– Total number of boardings recorded by the farebox in the 
first quarter was 3.48 million– a seven percent decrease from the same 
quarter last year. 

• Fare Revenue– Total fare revenue for the quarter was $4.44 million.  
The average fare was $1.28 per boarding. 

• Operating Expenses– Operating expenses incurred in the quarter 
totaled to $18.5 million, resulting in an average cost per service hour of 
$93.24. 



Special Executive Board Meeting – 10/23/15 
FY 2015-2016 First Quarter Performance Indicators Report 

Page 2 
 

 Agenda Item No. 16 

• Accidents– The system averaged 0.93 preventable accidents per 
100,000 miles. 

• Customer Complaints– Foothill Transit received 18.48 complaints per 
100,000 boardings in the first quarter.  This is six percent higher than 
the first quarter of the previous year. 

• Schedule Adherence– In the first quarter, Foothill Transit recorded 83.9 
percent on-time performance.  This is a two percent improvement from 
the first quarter of last year. 
 

Analysis 

In order to accomplish its mission, Foothill Transit has the following goals: 
 

Goal 1: Operate a safe transit system. 
Goal 2: Provide outstanding customer service. 
Goal 3: Operate an effective transit system. 
Goal 4: Operate an efficient transit system. 

 
These goals provide a framework for performance indicators to quantify and 
measure how well Foothill Transit is performing.  Attachments A1 - B4 
summarize the performance indicators used to determine Foothill Transit’s 
progress toward achieving these goals for FY 2015-2016.  Performance 
indicators are derived from data collected from a variety of sources including 
the fareboxes on buses, the SMARTBus CAD/AVL system, reports from the 
operations contractors, and financial performance data. 

Overall System Performance 
Foothill Transit’s overall system performance is based on several key 
indicators.  These include total ridership, fare revenues, vehicle service hours, 
and total operating expenses. 
 
Attachment A1 summarizes performance indicators and system goals for the 
first quarter of FY 2015-2016.  Attachments A2 - A4 provide the same 
information at the monthly level for July, August, and September 2015.  
Attachment L1 provides additional operations-related performance measures 
for the quarter.  Attachments L2 - L4 provide the same information 
summarized at the monthly level for July, August, and September 2015. 
 
Total Boardings and Total Fare Revenues 
In the first quarter of FY 2015-2016, Foothill Transit buses had 3.48 million 
boardings.  Compared to the same period last year, this is a seven percent 



Special Executive Board Meeting – 10/23/15 
FY 2015-2016 First Quarter Performance Indicators Report 

Page 3 
 

 Agenda Item No. 16 

decrease from 3.7 million boardings.  Analysis of the three service classes 
show that compared to the same period the previous year, there was a 6.8 
percent decline in boardings on local lines, a 10.5 percent decline in boardings 
on local express lines (Lines 481, 690 and Silver Streak), and a 0.1 percent 
increase in boardings on commuter express lines.  Nationally and regionally, 
bus transit ridership has been on the decline for some time now.  The 
decrease in ridership may be attributed to continued economic recovery, 
increase in automobile sales, and changing demographics in the region.  
Foothill Transit staff continues to closely monitor transit ridership trends for 
the system and the Southern California region, and is investigating a number 
of strategies to attract and retain customers. 
 
Total fare revenue recorded in the quarter was $4.4 million, an eight percent 
decline from the same period last year.  The decline in fare revenue can be 
attributed to the seven percent decline in ridership as well as a lower average 
fare per boarding.  Average fare per boarding for this quarter was $1.28 
compared to $1.30 the same period the previous year. 
 

 
 
Vehicle Service Hours and Operating Expenditure 
In the first quarter, Foothill Transit operated 198,361 service hours which 
represents a four percent increase compared to the same period during the 
previous year.  This is mainly the result of increased commuter express service 
and expanded Silver Streak service over the past year. 

0

200,000

400,000

600,000

800,000

1,000,000

1,200,000

1,400,000

1,600,000

1,800,000

2,000,000

Total Boardings and Total Fare Revenues 

Fare revenue ($)
Boardings



Special Executive Board Meeting – 10/23/15 
FY 2015-2016 First Quarter Performance Indicators Report 

Page 4 
 

 Agenda Item No. 16 

Foothill Transit incurred $18.5 million in operating expenses.  This is 6.5 
percent higher compared to the same period in the previous year.  After 
adjusting for inflation, this is 5.8 percent higher compared to the same period 
last year.  Variance between years is related to increased service provided. 

Goal 1: Operate a Safe Transit System 
Foothill Transit’s primary goal is to operate a safe transit system.  Foothill 
Transit monitors system safety by tracking the number of preventable 
accidents incurred for every 100,000 miles of vehicle operation. 
 
Preventable Accidents per 100,000 Miles 
In the first quarter of FY 2015-2016, Foothill Transit did not meet the adopted 
standard of 0.70 or fewer preventable accidents per 100,000 miles with an 
average of 0.93.  This is a 55 percent decline compared to the same period 
last year.  The majority of the preventable accidents in the first quarter were 
vehicles making contact with fixed objects.  Approximately one-third of the 
preventable accidents involved collisions with other vehicles. 
 
To address the negative trend in fixed-object related accidents, Foothill 
Transit continues to encourage the contractors to focus on these types of 
accidents in their various safety campaigns such as daily safety dispatch 
memos, weekly safety message boards, and mirror-adjustment tests at gate-
check before coaches leave the operating facility.  During the first quarter, 
particular emphasis was placed on vehicle awareness while pulling in and out 
of bus stops and maneuvering in transit centers.  In July, Foothill Transit staff 
and the operations contractors’ safety managers initiated a project to identify 
unsafe or problematic bus stops by combining geospatial data from archived 
accident reports with in-field observations by road supervisors and coach 
operators.  The goal is to equip operators with knowledge of road and bus 
stop conditions along specific routes so they can better avoid and prevent 
accidents.  These efforts resulted in a decrease in safety incidents at the 
Puente Hills Mall stop. 
 
Additionally, in preparation for the seasonal increase of vehicular and 
pedestrian traffic with the start of the school year beginning in late August, 
the contractors had specific campaigns to increase pedestrian safety and 
reinforce proper technique when entering intersections.  Another safety 
initiative for the quarter was a passenger fall prevention review.  The week of 
September 20 was National Fall Prevention Week which provided a prime 
opportunity to share best practices for operators to avoid passenger falls 
onboard their vehicles.  There was a decline in the number of passenger falls 



Special Executive Board Meeting – 10/23/15 
FY 2015-2016 First Quarter Performance Indicators Report 

Page 5 
 

 Agenda Item No. 16 

in the first quarter compared to previous periods.  As a continuation of this 
review, later this fiscal year Foothill Transit will be installing onboard interior 
cards to communicate safety tips to riders reminding them to stay seated 
and/or hold on to handrails while onboard to prevent slipping or falling.  Staff 
continues to monitor the trends and identify areas for improvement that are 
also addressed in the contractors’ monthly safety meetings. 
 

 
 
Goal 2: Provide Outstanding Customer Service 
Foothill Transit measures this goal by monitoring the following categories: 
schedule adherence, average miles between service interruptions, complaints 
per 100,000 boardings, and average hold time for customers calling the 
customer service line. 
 
Schedule Adherence 
Foothill Transit measures its schedule adherence using the industry standard 
metric of on-time performance (OTP).  OTP is calculated by evaluating a 
vehicle’s adherence to arrival and departure at time points as published in the 
planned schedule.  A trip is considered on-time if it departs the time point no 
more than five minutes late and buses are not allowed to depart a timepoint 
early.  Foothill Transit has adopted a goal of 85 percent or higher OTP for this 
fiscal year.  In the first quarter, Foothill Transit achieved 83.9 percent OTP for 
the entire system.  This is a two percent improvement over last year.  This 

0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1

1.2

1.4

1.6

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

P
re

ve
nt

ab
le

 A
cc

id
en

ts
 p

er
 1

0
0

,0
0

0
 M

ile
s 

Preventable Accidents per 100,000 Miles 

Target FY 2014-15 FY 2015-16



Special Executive Board Meeting – 10/23/15 
FY 2015-2016 First Quarter Performance Indicators Report 

Page 6 
 

 Agenda Item No. 16 

variance is mostly attributed to significant improvements to OTP for local 
lines. 
 
OTP for local routes for the first quarter was 84.4 percent which is three 
percent higher compared to last year’s OTP of 81.8 percent.  On average local 
express and commuter express routes performed better in July and August of 
this year compared to the same two months last year.  However, in 
September local express routes had two percent lower OTP and commuter 
express routes had six percent lower OTP compared to September of last 
year.  In September 2015, increased AM and PM peak congestion on Interstate 
10, State Route 60, and the 210 Freeway resulted in a significant increase in 
travel time for local express and commuter express routes traveling on those 
freeway corridors.  Quality assurance staff monitor the SMARTBus system in 
real-time to ensure that the bus service runs in accordance to the published 
schedule.  Staff is currently monitoring travel times for these routes so that, if 
necessary, adjustments can be made in the winter for the new schedule. 
 
Foothill Transit and the operations contractors are using information from 
quality assurance staff and archived SMARTBus data to inform service 
planning decisions to improve schedule adherence.  Schedule adjustments to 
improve OTP were implemented in the current schedule starting on July 12, 
2015.  This quarter, Foothill Transit staff held meetings with the contractors’ 
runcutting teams in a joint effort to improve schedule adherence through 
better runcuts.  This initiative has been very successful and continues to result 
in improved OTP. 
 



Special Executive Board Meeting – 10/23/15 
FY 2015-2016 First Quarter Performance Indicators Report 

Page 7 
 

 Agenda Item No. 16 

 
 
Average Miles Between Service Interruptions 
Average miles between service interruptions is a maintenance performance 
indicator that measures the miles between mechanical roadcalls of a vehicle 
used during revenue service resulting in a service delay of more than five 
minutes.  In the first quarter, Foothill Transit averaged 23,063 miles between 
service interruptions as reported by the operations contractors.  Foothill 
Transit exceeded the maintenance reliability goal of at least 20,000 miles 
between service interruptions and the metric is 15 percent lower compared to 
last year. 
 
To continue upholding the adopted maintenance standard, in the first quarter, 
Foothill Transit staff continued various projects to monitor all aspects of bus 
fleet maintenance.  Staff launched a new program for monthly in-house bus 
audits, advanced the bus heavy maintenance project, and continued to 
collaborate with contractors at both facilities for proactive maintenance 
measures.  These preemptive measures have been effective in increasing the 
average miles between service interruptions.  Careful monitoring of roadcalls 
by Foothill Transit staff helped identify trends in types of mechanical failures 
which were used to advise targeted bus maintenance efforts. 
 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

O
n-

T
im

e 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

Schedule Adherence 

Target FY 2014-15 FY 2015-16



Special Executive Board Meeting – 10/23/15 
FY 2015-2016 First Quarter Performance Indicators Report 

Page 8 
 

 Agenda Item No. 16 

 
 
Complaints per 100,000 Boardings 
Customer complaints are counts of incidents where a customer reports 
dissatisfaction with the service.  All customer complaints received by Foothill 
Transit are subject to an investigative process which ensures all customers 
receive a response and allows Foothill Transit to identify those instances 
where a complaint may not be valid.  Investigations include contacting the 
customer and may include reviewing the SMARTBus system, dispatch logs, 
on-board videos, or verbal communication with the coach operator.  In the 
first quarter of the fiscal year, Foothill Transit received 18.48 complaints per 
100,000 boardings.  This is above the performance target of 15.00 or fewer 
complaints per 100,000 boardings and is a six percent increase compared to 
the same period the previous year. 
 
Of the complaints received this quarter, 48 percent were related to schedule 
adherence and 28 percent were related to courtesy.  Following the start of 
the new bus schedule in July, Foothill Transit worked to improve service 
delivery by focusing on schedule adherence on routes with high ridership.  In 
addition, Foothill Transit continued to advance communication of real-time 
information through technology by encouraging the use of the NEXTRIP web 
application and 1-800-RIDE-INFO customer service line which provide 
estimated real-time bus arrival information for passengers.  In the first quarter, 
improvements were made to the Rider Alert message system to ensure more 

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May JunA
ve

ra
g

e 
M

ile
s 

B
et

w
ee

n 
M

ec
ha

ni
ca

l 
S

er
vi

ce
 In

te
rr

up
ti

o
ns

 

Average Miles Between Service Interruptions 

Target FY 2014-15 FY 2015-16



Special Executive Board Meeting – 10/23/15 
FY 2015-2016 First Quarter Performance Indicators Report 

Page 9 
 

 Agenda Item No. 16 

customers receive the most comprehensive and accurate real-time schedule 
information. 
 
Foothill Transit continues to work closely with the operations contractors to 
improve courtesy through targeted bus operator training programs.  This 
quarter the contractors began customer service focused operator training 
such as ADA refresher training and Communication and Customer Service Skill 
training for new operators.  Another successful initiative this quarter was 
improving communication for alerting customers of holiday schedules by 
beginning a holiday phone greeting one week prior to the holiday on the 1-
800-RIDE-INFO customer service line.  The efforts were fruitful when Foothill 
Transit ran holiday service on July 3rd for Independence Day and on 
September 7th for Labor Day. 
 

 
 
Average Hold Time 
Phone systems at Foothill Transit’s five Transit Stores provide data on call 
volumes and times so that facilities can be staffed accordingly.  The recorded 
average hold time of 28 seconds during the first quarter is well below the 
performance target of less than 40 seconds and is a four percent 
improvement compared to the same period last year. 
 
Key among the findings from the onboard survey conducted in Foothill 
Transit’s Comprehensive Operational Analysis (COA) completed last fiscal 

0

5

10

15

20

25

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 p

er
 1

0
0

,0
0

0
 B

o
ar

d
in

g
s 

Complaints per 100,000 Boardings 

Target FY 2014-15 FY 2015-16



Special Executive Board Meeting – 10/23/15 
FY 2015-2016 First Quarter Performance Indicators Report 

Page 10 
 

 Agenda Item No. 16 

year are that around 18 percent of respondents would choose to access 
Foothill Transit information by calling Foothill Transit.  A key finding from the 
community survey also conducted for the COA is that around eight percent of 
respondents would choose to call Foothill Transit to find information to make 
a trip and around eight percent of respondents do not use the Internet.  These 
findings along with a 0.4 percent increase in call volume in the first quarter 
compared to the previous year, continues to motivate maintaining short 
average hold time.  This quarter, Foothill Transit focused on improving 
average hold time by continuing to refine holiday and queue messages and 
our contractor hiring bilingual staff to meet performance targets for both 
English and Spanish calls. 
 

 

Goal 3: Operate an Effective Transit System 
Foothill Transit measures service effectiveness by monitoring boardings per 
vehicle service hour and average weekday boardings. 
 
Boardings per Vehicle Service Hour 
Boardings per vehicle service hour is the total number of boardings divided 
by the total number of service hours in a given period.  Foothill Transit buses 
averaged 17.5 boardings per vehicle service hour in the first quarter.  This 
does not meet the performance target of 18.5 or more boardings per service 
hour and is an 11 percent decline compared to the same period last year.  The 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

A
ve

ra
g

e 
T

im
e 

to
 A

ns
w

er
 (

se
co

nd
s)

 

Average Hold Time 

Target FY 2014-15 FY 2015-16



Special Executive Board Meeting – 10/23/15 
FY 2015-2016 First Quarter Performance Indicators Report 

Page 11 
 

 Agenda Item No. 16 

operation of four percent more service hours along with a seven percent 
decline in ridership leads to this year-to-year variance in system performance. 
 
In the first quarter, Foothill Transit staff worked on various projects to 
increase boardings per vehicle service hour.  Foothill Transit continues to 
encourage more ridership by targeting specific demographics of customers 
through the Class Pass program and marketing towards schools, religious 
groups, and senior citizens.  In August, Foothill Transit embarked on another 
effort to improve system effectiveness by exploiting farebox boarding data 
and disaggregate vehicle service hour data to evaluate boardings per vehicle 
service hour by specific route, day-of-week, and time-of-day.  Improved data 
analysis allows Foothill Transit Planning staff to better understand travel 
demand in the service area.  Foothill Transit is using the information to 
develop an action plan and has identified potential ways to improve the bus 
schedule to increase boardings per vehicle service hour. 
 

 
 
Average Weekday Boardings 
The number of average weekday boardings is calculated by dividing the total 
number of weekday boardings by the number of days with weekday service in 
a given period.  The fiscal year 2015-2016 performance target for average 
weekday boardings is to achieve at least 49,490 average weekday boardings.  
In the first quarter, there were 45,838 average weekday boardings which is a 
seven percent decline from the same period the previous year.  Foothill 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

B
o

ar
d

in
g

s 
p

er
 V

eh
ic

le
 S

er
vi

ce
 H

o
ur

 

Boardings per Vehicle Service Hour 

Target FY 2014-15 FY 2015-16



Special Executive Board Meeting – 10/23/15 
FY 2015-2016 First Quarter Performance Indicators Report 

Page 12 
 

 Agenda Item No. 16 

Transit did not meet the performance target.  There was a 7.5 percent decline 
in average weekday boardings on local lines, a 10.6 percent decline in average 
weekday boardings on local express lines, and a 0.1 percent increase in 
boardings on commuter express lines.  The overall trends in average weekday 
boardings closely matches the overall trends in total boardings. 
 
In the first quarter, Foothill Transit analyzed average weekday boarding 
trends and developed targeted communication and marketing strategies to 
encourage weekday ridership.  Foothill Transit completed the 2015-2016 
media buy which focuses heavily on student, seniors, and minority customers.  
In August and September, the Class Pass campaign, an important program for 
attracting student riders, successfully launched for the 2015-2016 academic 
year.  Average weekday boardings for all Foothill Transit college programs 
during the first quarter was 27 percent higher compared to last year.  
Throughout the first quarter, Foothill Transit refined business outreach for 
commuting employee populations by continuing to work closely with 
Employee Transportation Coordinator (ETC) partners and advancing business 
park ridesharing programs.  Foothill Transit also launched the new resident 
program which familiarizes new residents of the service area with the Foothill 
Transit bus system. 
 

 

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

80,000

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

A
ve

ra
g

e 
W

ee
kd

ay
 B

o
ar

d
in

g
s 

Average Weekday Boardings 

Target FY 2014-15 FY 2015-16



Special Executive Board Meeting – 10/23/15 
FY 2015-2016 First Quarter Performance Indicators Report 

Page 13 
 

 Agenda Item No. 16 

Goal 4: Operate an Efficient Transit System 
Foothill Transit measures its overall efficient use of available resources by 
monitoring the average cost per vehicle service hour and farebox recovery 
ratio.  
 
Farebox Recovery Ratio 
Farebox recovery ratio is a measure of the proportion of operating cost 
recovered by passenger fares.  The farebox recovery ratio is calculated by 
dividing total fare revenue by total operating expense.  As part of the budget 
development process, a goal of 24.10 percent has been established for the 
fiscal year.  A minimum farebox recovery ratio of 20 percent for transit 
service is required by the Transportation Development Act (TDA) in order for 
transit agencies to receive the state sales tax available for public transit 
purposes.  Foothill Transit’s farebox recovery ratio for the first quarter was 
24.03 percent.  The first quarter’s farebox recovery ratio is nearly at the fiscal 
year performance target of greater than 24.10 percent and exceeds the TDA 
requirement of 20 percent.  The lower farebox recovery as compared to the 
budget is a result of lower fare revenues than projected due to lower than 
anticipated boardings. 
 

 
 
 

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

F
ar

eb
o

x 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
at

io
 

Farebox Recovery Ratio 

Target FY 2014-15 FY 2015-16



~~r--------~~~~~ 
Executive Board M~eting Foothill Transit 

Special Executive Board Meeting - 10/23/15 
FY 2015-2016 First Quarter Performance Indicators Report 

Page l 4 

Average Cost p er Vehicle Service Hour 
Average cost per vehicle service hour is an industry standard utilized to 
measure the cost efficiency of transit service. It is derived by dividing 
operating expenses by vehicle service hours. Foothill Transit's average cost 
per vehicle service hour for the first quarter was $93.24, which meets the 
fiscal year target of less than $97.36. Year-to-date, Foothill Transit's average 
cost per vehicle service hour is four percent lower than the fiscal year target. 

Average Cost per Vehic le Hour 
$140 

"- $120 ::::> 
0 
I 
Q) $100 u 
> 
"-
Q) 

::: j 
(f) 

Q) 

u 
£ 
Q) 

> 
"- $40 l Q) 
Q. 
...., 
Vl $20 0 
u 

$0 
Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May 

Sincerely, 

Stephanie B. Mak 
Operations Analyst 

Target --- FY 2014-15 - FY 2015-16 

Doran J . Barnes 
Executive Director 

Agenda Item No. 16 



Goal Performance Indicator
FY 2015-2016 

First Quarter
Met Target?

FY 2014-2015 

First Quarter

% Improvement 

Over Same 

Quarter Last Year

FY 2015-2016 

YTD
Met Target?

FY 2014-2015 

YTD

% Improvement 

YTD

 Total Boardings 3,478,715 - 3,721,200 (7%) 3,478,715 - 3,721,200 (7%)

 Vehicle Service Hours 198,361 - 189,986 4% 198,361 - 189,986 4%

 Total Fare Revenue $4,444,356 - $4,843,905 (8%) $4,444,356 - $4,843,905 (8%)

 Total Operating Expense $18,496,039 - $17,359,722 (7%) $18,496,039 - $17,359,722 (7%)

Safety  Preventable Accidents per 100,000 Miles 0.93 No 0.60 (55%) 0.93 No 0.60 (55%) ≤ 0.70

 Schedule Adherence 83.9% No 81.9% 2% 83.9% No 81.9% 2% ≥ 85%

 Miles Between Mechanical Service Interruptions 23,063 Yes 26,990 (15%) 23,063 Yes 26,990 (15%) ≥ 20,000

 Complaints per 100,000 Boardings 18.48 No 17.39 (6%) 18.48 No 17.39 (6%) ≤ 15.00

 Average Hold Time (Seconds) 27 Yes 28 4% 27 Yes 28 4% ≤ 40

 Boardings per Vehicle Service Hour 17.5 No 19.6 (11%) 17.5 No 19.6 (11%) ≥ 18.5

 Average Weekday Boardings 45,838 No 49,408 (7%) 45,838 No 49,408 (7%) ≥ 49,490

 Farebox Recovery Ratio 24.03% No 27.90% (14%) 24.03% No 27.90% (14%) ≥ 24.10%

 Average Cost per Vehicle Service Hour $93.24 Yes $91.37 (2%) $93.24 Yes $91.37 (2%) ≤ $97.36

Red = did not meet target

Effectiveness

Efficiency

Attachment A1

Foothill Transit

Key Performance Indicators

Fiscal Year 2015-2016 First Quarter

Performance 

Target

Overall System 

Performance

Customer Service



Goal Performance Indicator July 2015 Met Target? July 2014
% Improvement 

Over Same Month 

Last Year

FY 2015-2016 

YTD
Met Target?

FY 2014-2015 

YTD

% Improvement 

YTD

 Total Boardings 1,124,280 - 1,211,759 (7%) 1,124,280 - 1,211,759 (7%)

 Vehicle Service Hours 66,991 - 64,465 4% 66,991 - 64,465 4%

 Total Fare Revenue $1,386,458 - $1,570,708 (12%) $1,386,458 - $1,570,708 (12%)

 Total Operating Expense $6,410,484 - $5,675,977 (13%) $6,410,484 - $5,675,977 (13%)

Safety  Preventable Accidents per 100,000 Miles 0.68 Yes 0.38 (80%) 0.68 Yes 0.38 (79%) ≤ 0.70

 Schedule Adherence 85.3% Yes 84.0% 2% 85.3% Yes 84.0% 2% ≥ 85%

 Miles Between Mechanical Service Interruptions 24,860 Yes 25,584 (3%) 24,860 Yes 25,584 (3%) ≥ 20,000

 Complaints per 100,000 Boardings 19.12 No 15.51 (23%) 19.12 No 15.51 (23%) ≤ 15.00

 Average Hold Time (Seconds) 20 Yes 20 0% 20 Yes 20 0% ≤ 40

 Boardings per Vehicle Service Hour 16.8 No 18.8 (11%) 16.8 No 18.8 (11%) ≥ 18.5

 Average Weekday Boardings 43,112 No 47,507 (9%) 43,112 No 47,507 (9%) ≥ 49,490

 Farebox Recovery Ratio 21.63% No 27.67% (22%) 21.63% No 27.67% (22%) ≥ 24.10%

 Average Cost per Vehicle Service Hour $95.69 Yes $88.05 (9%) $95.69 Yes $88.05 (9%) ≤ $97.36

Red = did not meet target

Effectiveness

Efficiency

Attachment A2

Foothill Transit

Key Performance Indicators

July 2015

Performance 

Target

Overall System 

Performance

Customer Service



Goal Performance Indicator August 2015 Met Target? August 2014
% Improvement 

Over Same Month 

Last Year

FY 2015-2016 

YTD
Met Target?

FY 2014-2015 

YTD

% Improvement 

YTD

 Total Boardings 1,120,942 - 1,211,077 (7%) 2,245,222 - 2,422,836 (7%)

 Vehicle Service Hours 66,300 - 63,373 5% 133,291 - 127,838 4%

 Total Fare Revenue $1,550,942 - $1,603,035 (3%) $2,937,400 - $3,173,742 (7%)

 Total Operating Expense $6,059,010 - $6,129,893 1% $12,469,494 - $11,805,870 (6%)

Safety  Preventable Accidents per 100,000 Miles 0.70 Yes 0.39 (78%) 0.69 Yes 0.39 (78%) ≤ 0.70

 Schedule Adherence 85.4% Yes 81.8% 4% 85.3% Yes 82.9% 3% ≥ 85%

 Miles Between Mechanical Service Interruptions 23,011 Yes 30,335 (24%) 23,910 Yes 27,730 (14%) ≥ 20,000

 Complaints per 100,000 Boardings 12.94 Yes 15.69 18% 16.03 No 15.60 (3%) ≤ 15.00

 Average Hold Time (Seconds) 29 Yes 31 6% 25 Yes 26 4% ≤ 40

 Boardings per Vehicle Service Hour 16.9 No 19.1 (12%) 16.8 No 19.0 (11%) ≥ 18.5

 Average Weekday Boardings 43,685 No 47,320 (8%) 43,392 No 47,415 (8%) ≥ 49,490

 Farebox Recovery Ratio 25.60% Yes 26.15% (2%) 23.56% No 26.88% (12%) ≥ 24.10%

 Average Cost per Vehicle Service Hour $91.39 Yes $96.73 6% $93.55 Yes $92.35 (1%) ≤ $97.36

Red = did not meet target

Effectiveness

Efficiency

Attachment A3

Foothill Transit

Key Performance Indicators

August 2015

Performance 

Target

Overall System 

Performance

Customer Service



Goal Performance Indicator September 2015 Met Target? September 2014
% Improvement 

Over Same Month 

Last Year

FY 2015-2016 

YTD
Met Target?

FY 2014-2015 

YTD

% Improvement 

YTD

 Total Boardings 1,233,493 - 1,298,364 (5%) 3,478,715 - 3,721,200 (7%)

 Vehicle Service Hours 65,070 - 62,148 5% 198,361 - 189,986 4%

 Total Fare Revenue $1,506,955 - $1,671,163 (10%) $4,444,356 - $4,843,905 (8%)

 Total Operating Expense $6,026,545 - $5,553,852 (9%) $18,496,039 - $17,359,722 (7%)

Safety  Preventable Accidents per 100,000 Miles 1.42 No 1.04 (36%) 0.93 No 0.60 (55%) ≤ 0.70

 Schedule Adherence 81.0% No 79.8% 1% 83.9% No 81.9% 2% ≥ 85%

 Miles Between Mechanical Service Interruptions 21,499 Yes 25,586 (16%) 23,063 Yes 26,990 (15%) ≥ 20,000

 Complaints per 100,000 Boardings 17.67 No 20.72 15% 18.48 No 17.39 (6%) ≤ 15.00

 Average Hold Time (Seconds) 32 Yes 32 0% 27 Yes 28 4% ≤ 40

 Boardings per Vehicle Service Hour 19.0 Yes 20.9 (9%) 17.5 No 19.6 (11%) ≥ 18.5

 Average Weekday Boardings 50,848 Yes 53,487 (5%) 45,838 No 49,408 (7%) ≥ 49,490

 Farebox Recovery Ratio 25.01% Yes 30.07% (17%) 24.03% No 27.90% (14%) ≥ 24.10%

 Average Cost per Vehicle Service Hour $92.62 Yes $89.36 (4%) $93.24 Yes $91.37 (2%) ≤ $97.36

Red = did not meet target

Effectiveness

Efficiency

Attachment A4

Foothill Transit

Key Performance Indicators

September 2015

Performance 

Target

Overall System 

Performance

Customer Service



Goal Performance Indicator
FY 2015-2016 

First Quarter

FY 2014-2015 

First Quarter

% Improvement 

Over Same 

Quarter Last Year

FY 2015-2016 

YTD

FY 2014-2015 

YTD

% Improvement 

YTD

Average fare per boarding $1.28 $1.30 (2%) $1.28 $1.30 (2%)

Average cost per boarding $5.32 $4.67 (14%) $5.32 $4.67 (14%)

Average subsidy per boarding $4.04 $3.36 (20%) $4.04 $3.36 (20%)

Total vehicle miles 3,874,613 3,832,608 1% 3,874,613 3,832,608 1%

Vehicle service miles 2,881,550 2,797,223 3% 2,881,550 2,797,223 3%

Total vehicle hours 262,182 257,301 2% 262,182 257,301 2%

In-service speed (mph) 14.5 14.7 (1%) 14.5 14.7 (1%)

Boardings per vehicle service mile 1.21 1.33 (9%) 1.21 1.33 (9%)

Red = did not meet target

Operations

Attachment B1

Foothill Transit

Operations Report

Fiscal Year 2015-2016 First Quarter



Goal Performance Indicator July 2015 July 2014
% Improvement 

Over Same Month 

Last Year

FY 2015-2016 

YTD

FY 2014-2015 

YTD

% Improvement 

YTD

Average fare per boarding $1.23 $1.31 (6%) $1.23 $1.31 (6%)

Average cost per boarding $5.70 $4.68 (22%) $5.70 $4.68 (22%)

Average subsidy per boarding $4.47 $3.39 (32%) $4.47 $3.39 (32%)

Total vehicle miles 1,317,578 1,304,807 1% 1,317,578 1,304,807 1%

Vehicle service miles 974,582 950,507 3% 974,582 950,507 3%

Total vehicle hours 88,240 87,496 1% 88,240 87,496 1%

In-service speed (mph) 14.5 14.7 (1%) 14.5 14.7 (1%)

Boardings per vehicle service mile 1.15 1.27 (9%) 1.15 1.27 (9%)

Red = did not meet target

Operations

Attachment B2

Foothill Transit

Operations Report

July 2015



Goal Performance Indicator August 2015 August 2014
% Improvement 

Over Same Month 

Last Year

FY 2015-2016 

YTD

FY 2014-2015 

YTD

% Improvement 

YTD

Average fare per boarding $1.38 $1.32 5% $1.31 $1.31 (0%)

Average cost per boarding $5.41 $5.06 (7%) $5.55 $4.87 (14%)

Average subsidy per boarding $4.02 $3.74 (8%) $4.25 $3.56 (19%)

Total vehicle miles 1,288,621 1,274,067 1% 2,606,199 2,578,874 1%

Vehicle service miles 962,281 932,102 3% 1,936,863 1,882,609 3%

Total vehicle hours 86,971 85,702 1% 175,211 173,197 1%

In-service speed (mph) 14.5 14.7 (1%) 14.5 14.7 (1%)

Boardings per vehicle service mile 1.16 1.30 (10%) 1.16 1.29 (10%)

Red = did not meet target

Operations

Attachment B3

Foothill Transit

Operations Report

August 2015



Goal Performance Indicator September 2015 September 2014
% Improvement 

Over Same Month 

Last Year

FY 2015-2016 

YTD

FY 2014-2015 

YTD

% Improvement 

YTD

Average fare per boarding $1.22 $1.29 (5%) $1.28 $1.30 (2%)

Average cost per boarding $4.89 $4.28 (14%) $5.32 $4.67 (14%)

Average subsidy per boarding $3.66 $2.99 (23%) $4.04 $3.36 (20%)

Total vehicle miles 1,268,414 1,253,734 1% 3,874,613 3,832,608 1%

Vehicle service miles 944,687 914,615 3% 2,881,550 2,797,223 3%

Total vehicle hours 86,971 84,104 3% 262,182 257,301 2%

In-service speed (mph) 14.5 14.7 (1%) 14.5 14.7 (1%)

Boardings per vehicle service mile 1.31 1.42 (8%) 1.21 1.33 (9%)

Red = did not meet target

Operations

Attachment B4

Foothill Transit

Operations Report

September 2015


	Agenda
	Minutes for September 25, 2015
	Item 7: FY 2015-2016 Financial Statements & Investment Summary
	Item 8: October 2015 Legislative Summary
	Item 9: Resolution Adopting Executive & Governing Board Meeting Schedule for 2016
	Item 10: Proposed Procurement Policies & Procedures Manual Revisions
	Item 11: Request to Issue IFB 16-023 - Arcadia Vault Canopy
	Item 12: Contract Award - Art Component at the Azusa Intermodal Transportation Center
	Item 13: FY 2014-2015 Comprehensive Annual Financial Audit Report Results
	Item 14: California Transit Association's 50th Annual Fall Conference & Expo Update, November 18-20, Pasadena
	Item 15: West Covina Bus Stop Enhancement Project
	Item 16: FY 2015-2016 First Quarter Performance Indicators Report



